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USAMUEBILITY"

ONE SGURCE FOR WIRELESS

USA Mobility is a major provider
of reliable and afferdable
wireless communications solutions
to the healthcare, government,
large enterprise and emergency

response sectors.

)

As a single source provider,

the Company supplies wireless
connectivity solutions to more
than 80% of the Fortune 1000
companies, including one-way
paging, two-way messaging and
customized wireless systems
for enterprise-based campus
environments, We also offer
mobile voice and data services,
such as cell phones, BlackBerry
devices and GPS-location
applications, M2M telemetry,
asset-tracking and other remote
device monitoring, through a
variety of telecom partners.

President’s Message

To Our Stockholders:

USA Mobility, Inc. made significant strides in 2006 operating the Company profitably
while continuing to expand our wireless product offerings and solutions to business
customers nationwide. We met our operating goals by greatly reducing costs, increasing
operational efficiencies and generating sufficient cash flow to return capital to
stackholders in the form of cash distributions. Although we still face many competitive
challenges, we believe our accomplishments and steady progress during the past
year gave us positive momentum and established the groundwork for us to continue
our cash flow focus into 2007,

Operating Results for 2006 Included:

- Subscriber trends continued to improve in 2006 as the net unit loss was 16.0%
compared to 18.1% and 22.3% in the prior two years {(proforma). Moreover, gross unit
additions increased in each quarter of 2006. Units in service at December 31, 2006
were 4.1 million.

- Revenue was $497.7 million compared to $618.6 million for 2005. Yet the rate of
revenue erosicn slowed to 19.5% from 21.6% in 2005 and 22.3% in 2004 (proforma).
- We continued to significantly reduce our cost structure. Operating expenses,

less depreciation, amortization and accretion, declined $102.8 million, or 22%, from
the prior year, largely the result of well executed network rationalization initiatives
and numerous other company-wide cost efficiencies.

- Netincome was $40.2 million for 2006, or $1.46 per fully dituted share, compared
to $12.9 million, or $0.47 per fully diluted share, in 2005.

- The Company generated $127.9 milfion in cash during the year from operating

and investing activities. We paid a special distribution of $3.00 per share in July and
our first quarterly distribution of $0.65 per share in December. Together, the cash
distributions represented a return of capital to stockholders totaling $99.8 million.

As the paging and wireless messaging industry continues to evolve, two of USA
Mobility's most important priorities during 2006 were to redefine our sales and marketing
strategy to better reflect the realities of the marketplace and to communicate more
effectively our capabilities as a provider of multiple wireless services. To achieve
these goals, we reorganized and upgraded our sales and marketing staffs and
launched a corporate re-branding program in April with a new logo and tagline:

“One Source for Wireless.”

The re-branding initiative was designed to underscore the scope of the Company's
products and services beyond basic paging and two-way messaging. Our expanded
offerings now include & wide range of mobile voice and data services, such as
BlackBerry devices and GPS-location applications, which are provided through a variety
of telecom partners. We also offer customized wireless connectivity systems for
enterprise-based campus environments, VoIP and RFID asset-tracking solutions, and
telemetry or remote monitoring applications such as Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL)
and utility meter reading. We unveiled a new customer-oriented web site in October
that provides our customers and potential clients a comprehensive and interactive
online resource that creates easy access to information about the Company's expanded
capabilities.

We refocused our sales and marketing strategy during 2006 around the Company’s
core business segments of healthcare, government, and large enterprise, which
represented 59% of our subscribers at year-end. The reason for this strategic shift was
to better align cur sales and marketing efforts with those vertical markets where we
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Vincent D. Kelly
President and Chief Executive Officer
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President’s Message

have found the greatest recurring demand for our services, experienced the fewest
disconnects, and developed the most valued relationships, expertise, and shared
success with our customers over many years. By concentrating on these business
segments, we hope to leverage our existing customer contacts and accumulated
knowledge to broaden our presence and create new sales and service opportunities.
In addition to these important steps to solidify our customer base and enhance our
sales prospects, we established a business development unit within our marketing
organization in August to explore new revenue opportunities.

Another important corporate initiative during 2006 was our increased involvement
in govermment affairs and legislative relations. We advocated fair regulatory treatment
for our industry and our customers in rulemakings and other proceedings before the
Federal Communications Commission. We presented formal testimony to an FCC
panel in March and to a Congressional subcommittee in July, describing the unique
and significant performance advantages of paging technology versus those of landline
and mobile phone providers in reacting to natural disasters and other emergencies.
We believe paging from USA Mobility can help emergency responders at the federal,
state, and local levels operate with greater efficiency and safety. We are working
diligently to ensure that the value of our technology is recognized by government
policymakers and that we can respond to the needs of those who are responsible for
our nation’s important public safety programs.

During 2006 we continued to implement the network rationalization plan that
we began over two years ago with the merger between Arch and Metrocall to form
USA Mobility. We eliminated redundant locations, consolidated equipment and
removed excess capacity, yielding a net reduction of 1,980 transmitters. Cost savings
from network rationalization were $25 million in 2006, and we expect to eliminate
approximately 2,200 more transmitters and thereby generate additional cost savings
of approximately $23 million during 2007. We also achieved substantial cost savings
during 2006 by closing 100 offices, terminal and storage facilities, and by selling
our last in-house call center to our outsourced provider of cali center services.

Looking ahead, we will continue to focus on serving the wireless communications
needs of our custorners with a variety of communications solutions, while operating
an efficient, profitable and free cash flow-based business strategy. Our principal
operating objectives and priorities for 2007 include the following: (1) drive cash flow
by supporting a low-cost operating platform; (2) preserve revenue per unit; (3) reduce
paging subscriber erosion; and (4) maximize revenue opportunities around our core
business segments, particularly healthcare. We believe these goals are in the best
interests of our customers, our employees and our stockholders.

Without question, USA Mobility’s success in 2006 was due to the tireless efforts of
our dedicated work force, We are grateful for our employees’ commitment to our
business goals. As we move forward to fulfill our business mission in 2007, | also want
to thank our customers and stockholders for their loyalty and ongoing support.
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Vincent D. Kelly
President and Chief Executive Officer

March 16, 2007
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Solutions

With more than four million subscribers and a dedicated focus on the business-to-
business marketplace, USA Mobility serves an impressive selection of the nation’s
premier organizations. Our customer base includes more than one-third of afl U.S.
hospitals, numerous federal, state and {ocal governments across the country and

over 80% of the Fortune 1000 corporations.

These three vertical market segments - healthcare, government, and large enterprise
~ account for 59% of the Company's subscribers and a solid majority of new business
opportunities. To better serve existing customers and to deepen sales penetration in
these markets, USA Mobility is increasing the focus of its sales, marketing and customer
care organizations to fully meet the needs of these core vertical segments.

Healthcare

Healthcare is the largest segment within our customer base. It is also the most
promising in terms of new revenue potential and most stable with respect to customer
turnover. In the coming year, we will focus on increasing sales opportunities within
our current healthcare paging accounts through the sale of advanced wireless solutions.
USA Mobility has developed a wide selection of offerings for healthcare customers
that includes cellular phones, voice and data applications for the increasing presence
of Wi-Fi networks within healthcare facilities, and enterprise applications that unify
and control all messaging traffic for an organization.

In addition, in the fourth quarter of 2006, we launched our Private Medical Messaging
Netwark, a new enterprise solution that allows a healthcare organization to substantially
upgrade its wireless communications without capital expenditure.

Government

Governments at all levels are focused on defining and implementing emergency
communications solutions for response to disaster situations. Wireless communications
are a critical component of an overait solution and USA Mobility is well positioned to
meet this need. Our wireless messaging products demonstrate levels of redundancy,
reliability and interoperability that are unmatched by other wireless technologies.

In 2006, we launched our First Responder Communications Network, a wireless
communications solution that delivers reliable, survivable wireless communications on
a fully deployed, nationwide network that is proven to withstand disaster situations
of various types. This cost-effective solution can serve as primary communications
or as a redundant, backup network.

Large Enterprise

Our core paging products are used in large enterprises primarily within IT organizations
and field service functions. To expand this business, USA Mobility is shifting from a
product to a solutions-oriented approach. By combining wireless devices with software
applications that target a specific need and integrate with existing company systems,
we can now deliver more value to customers in this segment.

The Company is also aggressively pursuing the development of new products and
initiating new partnerships that will expand our wireless offerings and increase the
value we bring to these core vertical market segments.




Wireless Messaging

Wireless Phones

Products
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Wireless Messaging
USA Mobility is the nation's most comprehensive provider of reliable and affordable
wireless messaging with nationwide coverage and focal support.

Two-Way Messaging - Users are able to send and receive important messages and
emails with confirmed message delivery.

Alphanumeric Messaging - Users can receive text messages and emails.

Numeric Messaging - Users receive alerts and have the ability to deliver one-to-many
group messages through an efficient method unique to paging technology.

Wireless Phones

USA Mobility is an authorized dealer of Sprint Nexte! - offering the full line of Sprint
Nextel products, services and data applications. As Sprint's largest dealer serving the
business-to-business marketplace, USA Mobility provides complete wireless solutions
to business and government customers. Qur professional, consultative team works
with customers to define wireless needs and recommends the right combination of
network, devices, service-plans and advanced wireless solutions. OQur product offerings
include the popular BlackBerry Email Solution, the leading wireless business solution
that keeps mobile professionals connected and productive while on the go. Its proven
platform provides secure, wireless access to corporate email, attachments, calendar,
address book and corporate intranet applications.

Advanced Wireless Applications -
USA Mobility develops customized, integrated wireless communication solutions
for the healthcare, government and large enterprise markets:

Enterprise Messaging - Customers are able to unify and integrate critical messaging
with existing enterprise systems.

Wi-Fi Network Solutions - Customers can deploy hands-free voice and asset-tracking
solutions that operate on existing Wi-F infrastructures.

Emergency Messaging - We offer software solutions for emergency communications
that integrate multiple wireless technologies into a single messaging system.
Private Messaging - Customers may build and deploy private networks and software
applications to manage messaging traffic for single site and campus environments,

M2M Services

USA Mability offers M2M {machine-to-machine) communications that monitor, control
and manage equipment wirelessly to increase efficiency and reduce costs.
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Partner Alliances

Partner Alliances

USA Mobility has formed strategic alliances with leading telecommunications companies,
international alliances that expand wireless coverage beyond national borders as well
as leading wireless product companies for the distribution of innovative technologies.

Carrier Services Division
The Carrier Services Division manages the wholesale distribution of USA Mobility’'s
paging networks to a range of telecommunications providers.

Resellers

USA Mobility offers up-to-date product and service information, marketing materials,
training tips and downloadable coverage maps for the more than 2,000 businesses
that are authorized resellers,

International
Through international partnerships, the USA Mobility Network covers 12 countries
in North and South America.

Product Partnerships

USA Mobility has developed resale partnerships with leading wireless technology
providers including Vocera Communications, PanGo, Commtech Wireless and
Emergin Software.

M2M Services
Customers can increase their efficiency and reduce costs with our wireless data systems.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report contains forward-looking statements and information relating to USA Mobility, Inc. and its
subsidiaries that are based on management’s beliefs as well as assumptions made by and information currently
available to management. These statements are made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Statements that are predictive in nature, that depend upon or refer to future events or
conditions, or that include words such as “anticipate”, “believe”, “estimate”, “expect”, “intend” and similar
expressions, as they relate to USA Mobility, Inc. and its subsidiaries or its management are forward-looking
statements. Aithough these statements are based upon assumptions management considers reasonable. they are
subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including but not limited to those factors set forth below
under the captions “Business”, “Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations”. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying
assumiptions prove incorrect, actual results or outcomes may vary materially from those described herein as
anticipated, believed. estimated, expected or intended. Investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements, which speak only as of their respective dates. The Company undertakes no obligation
to update or revise any forward-looking statements. All subsequent written or oral forward-looking statements
attributable to USA Mobility, Inc. and its subsidiaries or to persons acting on their behalf are expressly qualified in
their entirety by the discussion under Iiem 1A “Risk Factors™.




PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

USA Mobility, Inc. (“USA Mobility” or the “Company™) is a comprehensive provider of reliable and
affordable wireless communications solutions to the healthcare, government, large enterprise and emergency
response sectors. As a single-source provider, USA Mobility’s focus is on the business-to-business marketplace and
supplying wireless connectivity solutions to more than 80% of the Fortune 1000 companies. The Company operates
nationwide one-way and two-way paging networks. In addition. USA Mobility offers mobile voice and data
services through a third party provider, including BlackBerry devices and global positioning system applications.
The Company’s product offerings include customized wireless connectivity systems for healthcare, government
and other campus environments. USA Mobility also offers M2M (“machine to machine”) telemetry selutions for
numerous applications that include asset tracking, utility meter reading and other remote device monitoring
applications on u national scale.

The Company’s principal office is located at 6677 Richmond Highway, Alexandria, Virginia 22306, and its
telephone number is 866-662-3049. USA Mobility’s Internet address is www.usamobilitv.com. The Company
makes available free of charge through the web site its annual, quarterly and current reports, and any amendments Lo
those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a} or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as soon as
reasonably practicable after such reports are filed or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC"). The information on the web site is not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K
and should not be considered a part of this report.

Merger of Arch Wireless, Inc. and Metrocall Holdings, Inc.

USA Mobility is a holding company that was formed on March 5, 2004 to effect the merger of Arch Wireless,
Inc. and subsidiaries (“Arch”) and Meirocall Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (“Metrocall”), which occurred on
November 16, 2004. Prior to the merger, USA Mobility had conducted no operations other than those incidental to
its formation. Upen consummation of the merger exchange, former Arch and Metrocall common stockholders held
approximately 72.5% and 27.5%, respectively, of USA Mobility’s common stock on a diluted basis.

The merger was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting pursuant to Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141, Business Combinations, (“SFAS No, 1417), Arch was deemed to be the
accounting acquirer of Metrocall. Accordingly, the basis of Arch’s assets and liabilities as of the acquisition date are
reflected in the balance sheet of USA Mobility at their historical basis. Amounts allocated to Metrocall’s assets and
liabilities were based upon the total purchase price and the estimated fair values of such assets and liabilities. Since
Arch was deemed the acquiring entity, Arch’s historical financial results prior to the merger are presented
throughout this Form 10-K.

Industry Overview

The mobile wireless telecommunications industry consists of multiple voice and data providers that compete
ameng one another, both directly and indirectly, for subscribers. Messaging carriers like USA Mobility provide
customers with services such as numeric and alphanumeric messaging, Customers receive these messaging services
through a small, handheld device. The device, often referred to as a pager, signals a subscriber when a message is
received through a tone and/or vibration and displays the incoming message on a small screen. With numeric
messaging services, the device displays numeric messages, such as a telephone number. With alphanumeric
messaging services, the device displays numeric and/or text messages.

Some messaging carriers also provide two-way messaging services using devices that enable subscribers to
respond to messages or create and send wireless email messages to other messaging devices. including pagers,
personal digital assistants (“PDAs”) and personal computers. These two-way messaging devices, often referred 1o
as two-way pagers, are similar to one-way devices except that they have a small QWERTY keyboard that enables
subscribers to type messages which are sent to other devices as noted above. USA Mobility provides two-way

3




messaging and other short messaging-based services and applications using its narrowband personal communi-
cation services networks,

Mobile telephone service, such as cellular and broadband personal communication services (“PCS8”) carriers
provide telephone voice services as well as wireless messaging services that compete with USA Mobility's one and
two-way messaging services. Customers subscribing to cellular, broadband PCS or other mobile phone services
utilize a wireless handset through which they can make and receive voice telephone calls. These handsets are
commonly referred to as cellular or PCS telephones or personal data devices and are generally also capable of
receiving numeric. alphanumeric and e-mail messages as well as information services, such as stock quotes, news,
weather and sports updates, voice mail, personalized greetings and message storage and retrieval.

Technological improvements in PCS telephones and PDAs, including their interoperability with the users’
electronic mail systems, declining prices, and the degree of similarity in messaging devices, coverage and battery
life, have resulted in competitive messaging services continuing to take market share from USA Mobility’s paging
subscriber base.

Although the U.S. traditional paging industry has several licensed paging companies, the overall number of
one and two-way messaging subscribers has been declining as the industry faces intense competition from
“broadband”/voice wireless services and other forms of wireless message delivery. As a result, demand for USA
Mobility's one and two-way messaging services has declined over the past several years, and the Company believes
that it witl continue to decline for the foreseeable future. The decline in demand for messaging services has largely
been attributable (o competition from cellular and broadband PCS carriers.

2007 Business Strategy

USA Mobility believes that paging, both one-way and two-way, is a cost-effective, reliable means of delivering
messages and a variety of other information rapidly over a wide geographic area directly to a mobile person. Paging
is a method to communicate at lower cost than cellular and PCS telephones, For example, the messaging equipment
and airtime required to transmit an average message costs less than the equipment and airtime for cellular and PCS
telephones. Furthermore, paging devices operate for longer periods due to superior battery life, often exceeding one
month on a single battery. Numeric and alphanumeric subscribers generally pay a flat monthly service fee. In
addition, these messaging devices are unobtrusive and mobile.

During 2007 USA Mobility will continue to focus on serving the wireless communications needs of the
Company’s customers with a variety of communications solutions, while operating an efficient, profitable and free
cash flow-based business strategy. USA Maobility’s principal operating objectives and priorities for 2007 include the
following:

*» Drive cash flow by supporting a low-cost operating platform;

* Preserve revenue per unit;

* Reduce paging subscriber erosion; and

» Maximize revenue opportunities around our core business segments, particularly healthcare.

Drive cash flow by supporting a low-cost operating platform — Throughout 2007 USA Mobility expects to
continue to reduce its underlying cost structure. These reductions will come from all areas of operations but most
significantly from the Company’s continuing network rationalization efforts that impact its lease and telecom-
munications expenses.

Preserve revenue per unit — The Company’s customer base continues to become more concentrated around
larger customers, which are characterized by a larger number of units in service per account, but due to volume
discounting have lower revenue per unit as compared to the smaller volume accounts which are leaving at a faster
rate. This concentration has over the past several years had the effect of reducing the Company’s overall average
revenue per unit. During 2007, USA Mobility intends to reinforce the valuable attributes of paging to the
Coinpany’s customers in order to minimize the effects of the Company’s changing mix on revenue through
largeted pricing increases and holding firm to pricing on value-added features.
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Reduce paging subscriber erosion — USA Mobility will increase the Company’s focus on loyalty programs
and other customer care programs in 2007 to effect continued improvement in the rate of subscriber disconnects. At
the same time USA Mobility will continue the Company’s focus on sales and marketing to produce high levels of
sales productivity and gross unit placements.

Maximize revenue opportunities around our core business segments, pm;ricular!y healthcare — Healthcare
customers are the most stable and loyal paging customers. and represent about one-third of our paging revenue and
subscribers. USA Mobility offers a comprehensive and robust suite of wireless messaging products and services
focused on healthcare and “cumpus” type environments. The Company will use these advantages to target
additional sales opportunities in the healthcare, government and large enterprise segments in 2007.

Paging and Messaging Services, Products and Operations

USA Mobility provides one and two-way wircless messuging services including information services
throughout the United States and Puerto Rico. These services are offered on a local, regional and nationwide
basis employing digital networks,

The Company’s customers include businesses with employees who need to be accessible to their offices or
customers, first responders who need to be accessible in emergencies, and third parties, such as other telecom-
munications carriers and resellers that pay the Company to use its networks. Customers include businesses,
professionals, management personnel, medical personnel, field sales personnel and service forces, members of the
construction industry and construction trades, real estate brokers and developers, sales and service organizations,
specialty trade organizations, manufacturing organizations and governmenl agencies.

USA Mobility markets and distributes its services through a direct sales force and a small indirect sales force.

Direct.  The direct sales force rents or sells products and messaging services directly to customers ranging
from small and medium-sized businesses to Fortune 1000 companies, healthcare and related businesses and
government agencies. USA Mobility intends to continue to market to commercial enterprises utilizing its direct
sales force as these commercial enterprises have typically disconnected service at a Jower rate than individual
consumers. As of December 31. 2006. USA Mobility sales personnel were located in approximately 80 offices in
35 states throughout the United States. In addition, the Company maintains several corporate sales groups focused
on medical sales; federal government accounts; large enterprises; advanced wireless services; systems sales
applications; telemetry and other product offerings.

Indirect.  Within the indirect channel the Company contracts with and invoices an intermediary for airtime
services. The intermediary or “reseller” in turn markets, sells, and provides customer service to the end user.
Generally, there is no contractual relationship that exists between USA Mobility and the end subscriber, Therefore,
operating costs per unit to provide these services are lower than those required in the direct distribution channel.
Indirect units in service typically have lower average monthly revenue per unit than direct units in service. The rate
at which subscribers disconnect service in the indirect distribution channel has been higher than the rate
expentenced with direct customers, and USA Mobility expects this to continue in the foreseeable future.

The following table sets forth units in service associated with the Company’s channels of distribution:

As of December 31,
2004 2005 2006
Units % Units % Units %
T (Units in thousands)

DAFCCL . . oo e 5003 81% 4183 86% 3,598  88%
T S 1,199 19% 703 _14% 507  12%
Total oo 6,202 100% 4,886 100% 4,105  100%

Customers may subscribe to one or two-way messaging services for a monthly service fee which is generally
based upon the type of service provided, the geographic area covered, the number of devices provided to the
customer and the period of commitment. Voice matil, personalized greeting and equipment loss and/or maintenance
protection may be added to either one or two-way messaging services, as applicable, for an additional monthly fee.
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Equipment loss protection allows subscribers who lease devices to limit their cost of replacement upon loss or
destruction of a messaging device. Maintenance services are offered to subscribers who own their device.

A subscriber to one-way messaging services may select coverage on a local, regional or nationwide basis to
best meet their messaging needs. Local coverage generally allows the subscriber to receive messages within a small
geographic area, such as a city. Regional coverage allows a subscriber to receive messages in a larger area, which
may include a large portion of a state or sometimes groups of states. Nationwide coverage allows a subscriber to
receive messages in major markets throughout the United States. The monthly fee penerally increases with coverage
area. Two-way messaging is generally offered on a nationwide basis.

The following table summarizes the breakdown of the Company’s one-way and two-way units in service at
specified dates:
As of December 31,
2004 2005 2006
Units o Units %o Units Fo
{Units in thousands)

One-way messaging. .. ... vvv i nnna-- 5,673 91% 4,439 91% 3,735 91%
Two-way messaging. . . ... ................un. 529 9% 447 9% 370 9%
Total ... e 6,202 100% 4,886 100% 4,105 100%

USA Mobility provides wireless messaging services to subscribers for a monthly fee, as described above. In
addition, subscribers either lease a messaging device from the Company for an additionat fixed monthly fee or they
own a device, having purchased it either from the Company or from another vendor. USA Mobility also sells devices
to resellers who lease or resell devices to their subscribers and then sell messaging services utilizing the Company’s
networks.

The following table summarizes the number of units in service owned by the Company. its subscribers and
indirect customers at specified dates:

As of December 31,

2004 2005 2006
. (Units in thousands)
Owned and leased to subscribers ... ............ 4,755 T7% 3.762 77% 3,308 81%
Owned by subscribers . ...................... 248 4% 421 9% 290 7%
Owned by indirect customers or their subscribers ... 1,199 19% 703 14% _507 _12%

Total . ..o 6202  100% 4,886 100% 4,105  100%

Messaging Networks and Licenses

USA Mobility holds licenses to operate on various frequencies in the 150 MHz, 450 MHz and 900 MHz bands.
The Company is licensed by the Federal Communications Commission (the “FCC”) to operate Commercial Mobile
Radio Services (“CMRS™). These licenses are required to provide one-way and two-way messaging services over
the Company’s networks. ’

USA Mobility operates local, regional and nationwide one-way networks, which enable subscribers to receive
messages over a desired geographic area. The majority of the messaging traffic that is transmitted on the Company’s
150 MHz and 450 MHz frequency bands utilize the Post Office Code Stundardization Advisory Group
(“POCSAG™) messaging protocol. This technology is an older and less efficient air interface protocol due to
slower transmission speeds and minimal error correction. One-way networks operating in 900 MHz frequency
bands predominantly utilize the FLEX™ protocol developed by Motorola, Inc.; some legacy POCSAG traffic also is
broadcast in the 900 MHz frequency band. The FLEX™ protocol is a newer technology having the advantages of
functioning at higher network speeds (which increases the volume of messages that can be transmitted over the
network) and of having more robust error correction (which facilitates message delivery to a device with fewer
transmission errors),




The Company’s two-way messaging networks utilize the ReFLEX 25™ protocol, also developed by Motorola,
Inc. ReFLEX 25™ promotes spectrum efficiency and high network capacity by dividing coverage areas into zones
and sub-zeones. Messages are directed to the zone or sub-zone where the subscriber is located allowing the same
frequency to be reused to carry different traffic in other zones or sub-zones. As a result, the ReFLEX 25™ protocol
allows the two-way network to transmit substantially more messages than a one-way néetwork using either the
POCSAG or FLEX™ protocols. The two-way network also provides for assured message delivery. The network
stores messages that could not be delivered to a device that is out of coverage for any reason, and when the unit
returns to service, those messages are delivered. The two-way messaging network operates under a set of licenses,
called narrowband PCS which uses 900 MHz frequencies. These licenses require certain minimum five and ten-year
build-out commitments established by the FCC, which have been satisfied.

Although the capacities of the Company’s networks vary by market, USA Mobility has a significant amount of
excess capacity. The Company has implemented a plan to manage network capacity and to improve overall network
efficiency by consolidating subscribers onto fewer, higher capacity networks with increased transmission speeds.
This plan is referred to as network rationalization. Network rationalization will result in fewer networks and
therefore fewer transmitter locations, which the Company believes will result in lower operating expenses.

Sources of Equipment

USA Mobility does not manufacture the messaging devices its customers need to take advantage of its services
or the network equipment it uses to provide messaging services. The Company has relationships with several
vendors for new equipment. Used equipment is available in the secondary market from various sources. The
Company believes existing inventory, returns of devices from customers that cancel service, and purchases from
other available sources of new and reconditioned devices will be sufficient to meet expected device requirements for
the foreseeable future.

The Company currently has network equipment that it believes will be sufficient to meet equipment
requirements for the foreseeable future.

Competition

The wireless messaging industry is highly competitive. Companies compete on the basis of price, coverage
- area, services offered, transmission quality, network reliability and customer service.

USA Mobility competes by maintaining competitive pricing for its products and services, by providing broad
coverage options through high-quality, reliable messaging networks and by providing quality customer service.
Direct competitors for USA Mobility’s messaging services include American Messaging Service, LLC, Skytel
Corporation (a division of Bell Industries, Inc.) and a variety of other regional and local providers. The products and
services offered by the Company also compete with a broad array of wireless messaging services provided by
mobile telephone companies, including AT&T Mobility LLC (formerly known as Cingular Wireless LLC), Sprint
Nextel Corporation, T-Mobile USA, Inc., and Verizon Wireless, Inc, This competition has intensified as prices for
the services of mobile telephone companies have declined and as those companies have incorporated messaging
capability into their mobile phone devices. Many of these companies possess financial, technical and other
resources greater than those of USA Mobility.

While cellular. PCS and other mobile telephone services are, on average, more expensive than the one and two-
way messaging services the Company provides, such mobile telephone service providers typically provide one and
two-way messaging service as an element of their basic service package. Most PCS and other mobile phone devices
currently sold in the U.S. are capable of sending and receiving one and two-way messages. Most subscribers that
purchase these services no longer need to subscribe to a separate messaging service. As a result, many one-way and
two-way messaging subscribers can readily switch to cellular, PCS and other mobile telephone services. The
decrease in prices and increase in capacity and functionality for cellular, PCS and other mobile telephone services
has led many subscribers to select combined voice and messaging services from mobile telephone companies as an
alternative to stand alone messaging services.




Regutlation
Federal Regulatién

The FCC issues licenses to use radio frequencies necessary to conduct USA Mobility’s business and regulates
many aspects of the Company’s operations. Licenses granted to the Company by the FCC have varying terms,
generally of up to ten years, at which time the FCC must approve renewal applications. In the past, FCC renewal
applications generally have been granted upon showing compliance with FCC regulations and adequate service to
the public. Other than those still pending, the FCC has thus far granted each license renewal USA Mobility has filed.

The Communications Act of 1934, as amended (the “Act”), requires radio licensees such as USA Mobility to
obtain prior approval from the FCC for the assignment or transfer of control of any construction permit or station
license or authorization of any rights thereunder. The FCC has thus far granted each assignment or transfer request
the Company has made in connection with a change of control.

The Act also places limitations on foreign ownership of CMRS licenses, which constitute the majority of
licenses held by the Company. These foreign ownership restrictions limit the percentage of stockholders’ equity that
may be owned or voted, directly or indirectly, by aliens or their representatives, foreign governments or their
representatives, or foreign corporations. USA Mobility’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
permits the redemption of its equity from stockholders where necessary to protect compliance with these
requirements.

The FCC’s rules and regulations require the Company to pay a variety of fees and otherwise increase the
Company’s costs of doing business. For example, the FCC requires licensees such as the Company to pay levies and
fees, such as “Universal Service” fees, to cover the costs of certain regulatory programs and to promote various
other societal goals. These requirements increase the cost of the services provided. By law, USA Mobility is
permitted to pass through most of these regulatory costs to customers and typically does so. Additionally, the
Communications Assistance to Law Enforcement Act, ("*CALEA”) and certain rules implementing CALEA require
some telecommunications companies. including USA Mobility, to design and/or modify their equipment in order to
allow law enforcement personnel to "“wiretap” or otherwise intercept messages. Other regulatory requirements
restrict how the Company may use customer information and probibit certain commercial electronic messages, even -
to the Company’s own customers.

[n addition, the FCC’s rules require the Company to pay other carriers for the transport and termination of some
telecommunications traffic. As a result of various FCC decisions over the last few years, the Company no longer
pays fees for the termination of traffic originating on the networks of local exchange carriers providing wireline
services interconnected with the Company's services. In some instances, the Company received refunds for prior
payments to certain local exchange carriers. USA Mobility has entered into a number of interconnection agreements
with local exchange carriers in order to resolve various issues regarding charges imposed by local exchange carriers
for interconnection.

Although these and other regulatory requirements have not, to date, had a material adverse effect on the
Company’s operating results, such requirements could have a material adverse effect on USA Mobility's operating
results in the future.

Failure to follow the FCC’s rules and regulations can result in a variety of penalties, ranging from monetary
fines to the loss of licenses. Additionally, the FCC has the authority to modify licenses, or impose additional
requirements through changes to its rules.

State Regulation

As a result of the enactment by Congress of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1993 in August 1993,
states are now generally preempted from exercising rate or entry regulation over any of USA Mobility's operations.
States are not preempted, however, from regulating “other terms and conditions™ of the Company’s operations,
including consumer protection and similar rules of general applicability. Zoning requirements are also generally
permissible; however, provisions of the Act prohibit local zoning authorities from unreasonably restricting wireless
services. States that regulate the Company’s services also may require it to obtain prior approval of (1) the
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acquisition of controlling interests in other paging companies and (2) a change of control of USA Mobility. At this
time, USA Mobility is not aware of any proposed state legislation or regulations that would have a material adverse
impact on its existing operations.

Arch Chapter 11 Proceeding

Certain holders of 12%% senior notes of Arch Wireless Communicatibns, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of
Arch Wireless, [nc., filed an involuntary petition against it on November 9, 2001 under Chapter 11 of the bankruptey
code in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Massachusetts, Western Division, On December 6,
2001, Arch Wireless Communications. Inc. consented to the involuntary petition and the bankruptcy court entered
an order for relief under Chapter 11. Also on December 6, 2001. Arch and 19 of its wholly owned domestic
subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions for relief under Chapter 1| with the bankrupicy court. These cases were jointly
administered under the docket for Arch Wireless, Inc., et al., Case No. 01-47330-HJIB. After the voluntary petition
was filed, Arch and its domestic subsidiaries operated their businesses and managed their properties as debt-
ors-in-possession under the bankruptcy code until May 29, 2002, when Arch emerged from bankruptcy. Arch and its
domestic subsidiaries are now operating their businesses and properties as a group of reorganized entities pursuant
to the terms of the plan of reorganization.

Trademarks

USA Mobility owns the service marks “"USA Mobility”, “Arch™ and “Metrocall”, and holds federal regis-
trations for the service marks “Metrocall”, “Arch Wireless™ and “PageNet™ as well as various other trademarks.

Employees

At March 1, 2007, USA Mobility had 1,195 full time equivalent employees. The Company has no employees
that are represented by labor unions. USA Mobility belteves that its employee relations are good.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following important factors, among others, could cause USA Mobility's actual operating results to differ
maierially from those indicated or suggested by forward-looking statements made in this Form 10-K or presented
elsewhere by management from time to time.

The rate of revenue erosion may not improve, or may deteriorate.

USA Mobility and the paging industry continues to face intense competition for subscribers due to competition
from the mobile phone and personal digital assistant service providers as they continue to lower device prices while
adding functionality, A key factor in the Company’s ability to be profitable and produce net cash flow from
operations is realizing improvement in the rate of revenue erosion from historical levels. USA Mobility is dependent
on net cash provided by operations as its principal source of liquidity. If no improvement is realized, or if revenue
erosion accelerates, it would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s ability to remain profitable. to
continue to produce positive cash flow, and to continue the payment of cash distributions to stockholders.

USA Mobility may fail to achieve the cost savings necessary to maintain positive cash flow from
operations.

USA Mobility expects its revenue to continue to decline substantially in the future, therefore maintaining
positive cash flow 1s dependent on substantially reducing operating costs. Achieving cost reductions of the
magnitude necessary requires the Company to continue to reduce its internal costs, as well as to continually
negotiate lower costs from its outside vendors. There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in
reducing its costs to the level necessary to maintain positive net cash flow. If the Company is not successful at
continuing to reduce operating costs, it would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s ability to remain
profitable, to continue to produce positive cash flow, and to continue the payment of cash distributions to
siockholders,




If the Company is unable to retain key management personnel, it might not be able to find suitable
replacements on a timely basis or at all, and the Company’s business could be disrupted.

USA Mobility’s success will depend, to a significant extent, upon the continued service of a relatively small
group of key executive and management personnel. USA Mobility has an employment agreement with its president
and chief executive officer. In addition, the Board of Directors has implemented both short-term and long-term
incentive plans for key employees of the Company. Annually, the Company has a cash-based short-term incentive
program based on certain performance metrics including profitability and continved employment with the
Company. With respect to long-term incentives, the Company in 2005 granted to key employees restricted shares
of common stack (“restricted stock”) that vest starting on January 1, 2007 through January 1, 2008 and depend upon
continued employment with the Company. Additionally, in 2006, the Company implemented a second fong-term
incentive plan that includes both a restricted stock component and a cash component, each subject to vesting on
January 1, 2009, to achieving expense reduction goals during the Company’s 2008 calendar year and to continuing
employment with the Company. The loss or unavailability of one or more of the Company’s executive officers or the
inability to attract or retain key employees in the future could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
future financial position, results of operations, cash flows and ability to continue payment of cash distributions to
stockholders.

USA Mobility may be unable to find vendors willing to supply it with paging equipment based on future
demands.

The Company purchases paging equipment from third party vendors. This equipment is sold or leased to
customers in order to provide wireless messaging services. The reduction in industry demand for paging equipment
has caused various suppliers to cease manufacturing this equipment. There can be no assurance that the Company
can continue to find vendors to supply paging equipment, or that the vendors will supply equipment at costs that
allow the Company to remain a competitive alternative in the wireless messaging industry. A lack of paging
equipment could impact the Company’s ability to provide certain wireless messaging services and could have a
material adverse effect on its future financial position, results of operations, cash flows, and ability to continue
payment of cash distributions to stockholders.

USA Mobility may be unable to realize the benefits associated with its deferred income tax assets.

The Company has significant deferred income tax assets that are available to offset future taxable income and
increase cash flows from operations. The use of these deferred income tax assets is dependent on the availability of
taxable income in future periods. The availability of future laxable income is dependent on the Company’s ability to
continue to reduce operating costs and maintain profitability as both revenues and subscribers are expected to
decline in the future. To the extent that anticipated reductions in operating costs do not occur or sufficient revenues
are not generated, the Company may not achieve sufficient taxable income to allow for use of its deferred income
tax assets. If the Company is unable to use these deferred income tax assets, there could be a material reduction in
the Company’s aiter-tax net income, cash flows from operations and ability to continue payment of cash
distributions to stockholders.

Future changes in ownership of the Company’s stock could prevent USA Mobility from using its deferred
income tax assets to offset future taxable income, which would materially reduce the Company’s expected
after-tax net income and cash flows from operations. Actions available io the Company to preserve ils
consolidated tax assets could result in less liquidity for its common stock and/or depress the market value
of its stock.

If USA Mobility were to undergo an “ownership change”, as that term is defined in Section 382 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “IRC™), the Company’s use of its deferred income tax assets would be
restricted, which would reduce the Company’s afier-tax net income and cash flow. This in turn could affect the
Company’s ability to be profitable, produce positive cash flow, and continue the payment of cash distributions to
stockholders.
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Generally, an ownership change will occur if a cumulative shift in ownership of more than 50% of
USA Mobility’s common stock occurs during a rolling three-year period. The cumulative shift in ownership is
a measurement of the shift in ownership of the Company’s common stock held by stockholders that own 5% or more
of such stock. In general terms, it will equal the aggregale of any increases in the percentage of common stock
owned by each stockhelder that owns 5% or more of USA Mobility stock at any time during the testing period over
the lowest percentage of common stock owned by each such stockholder during the testing period. The testing
period generally is the prior three years.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company has undergone a combined cumulative change in ownership of
approximately 35.0%. The determination of the Company’s percentage ownership change is dependent on
provisions of the tax law that are subject to varying interpretations and on facts that are not precisely determinable
by USA Mability at this time. Therefore, the Company's cumulative shift in ownership may be more or less than
approximately 35.0% and, in any event, may increase by reason of subsequent transactions in the Company’s
common stock by stockholders who own 5% or more of such stock, and certain other transactions affecting the
direct or indirect ownership of common stock.

Please refer to Item 3, Market for Registrani’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equiry Securities, for a description of the transfer restrictions that are available to the Company in its
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation which permit USA Mobility to restrict transfers by or to any 5%
stockholder of its common stock or any transfer that would cause a person or group of persons to become a 5%
stockholder of its common stock. USA Mobility intends to enforce these restrictions in order to preserve its deferred
income tax assets, and such enforcement may result in less liquidity for the Company’s common stock and/or
depress the market price for shares of USA Mobility’s common stock.

USA Mobility’s deferred income tax assets are based on tax positions that have not been validated by fed-
eral and/or state tax authorities.

The Company’s largest individual class of assets is its deferred income tax assets. These deferred income tax
assets are based on past tax positions taken by the Company and its predecessors and subsidiaries in their federal and
state income lax returns. These tax positions were based on the applicable laws and regulations existing at the time,
and. in some cases. these laws and regulations were subject to varying interpretations. While the Company believes
that its tax positions are supportable, reasonable and appropriate, the Company’s interpretations have not been
validated by either the Internal Revenue Service or applicable state agencies, Should the Company be subject 1o
federal and/or state income tax audits, the final results of these audits could result in adjustments to the Company’s
previously taken tax positions and the underlying deferred income tax assets. Any such adjustments could resultin a
material change to the carrying value of the deferred income tax assets. Material downward adjustments to the
deferred income tax assets could result in future taxable income from operations, Future taxable income could result
in cash payments for income taxes and in a material reduction in cash from operating activities. Significant cash
payments for income taxes could impact the Company’s future financial position, results of operations, cash flows
and ability to pay cash distributions to stockholders.

USA Mobility is regulated by the Federal Communications Commission and, to a lesser extent, state and
local regulating governmental bodies. Changes in regulation could result in increased costs to the
Company.

USA Mobility is subject to regulation by the FCC and, to a lesser extent, by state and locat authorities. Changes
in regulatory policy could increase the fees the Company must pay to the government or to third parties and could
subject the Company to more stringent requirements that could cause the Company to incur additional operating
expenditures.

For example, the FCC is considering changes to its rules governing the collection of universal service fees, and
such changes could significantly increase required contributions by the Company. While the Company passes
through such fees to consumers, increased fees could diminish the demand for the Company’s services. In addition,
USA Mobility’s costs associated with the transmission of telecommunications traffic could increase. Although the
Company no longer pays fees for the termination of traffic originating on the networks of local exchange carriers,
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the Company may be liable to local exchange carriers for costs associated with delivering traffic that does not
originate on that local exchange carrier’s network, referred to as transit traffic. Depending on further FCC
disposition of these issues and the agreements reached between USA Mobility and the local exchange carriers, the
Company could face increased costs in connection with such transit traffic. If these issues are not ultimately decided
through settlement negotiations or via the FCC in the Company’s favor, USA Mobility may be required to pay past
due contested transit traffic charges not addressed by existing agreements or to offset against payments due from
local exchange carriers. The Company may also be assessed interest and late charges for amounts withheld.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED SEC STAFF COMMENTS
The Company had no unresolved SEC staff comments as of March 7, 2007.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

At December 31, 2006, USA Mobility owned four offtce buildings in the United States. In addition, the
Company leased facility space. including its executive headquarters, sales, technical, and storage facilities in
approximately 219 locations in 35 states.

Also at December 31, 2006, USA Mobility leases transmitter sites on commercial broadcast towers, buildings
and other fixed structures in approximately 8.790 locations in all 50 states and Puerto Rico. These leases are for
various terms and provide for monthly lease payments at various rates.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

USA Mobility, from time to time, is involved in lawsuits arising in the normal course of business, USA
Mobiiity believes that its pending lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on its reported results of
operations. cash flows or financial position.

USA Mobility was named as defendant in a breach of contract suit filed in the U.S. District Court for the
Northern District of Texas (Ad Valorem Services Company v. USA Mobilirv, Inc., No. 4-06CV-742-Y), alleging that
the Company owes a property tax filing services firm monetary damages of up to $3.3 million in addition to amounts
already paid by the Company to the tirm under the contract. The Company was served with the complaint in this
action on October 26, 2006 and filed its answer to the complaint on December 35, 2006, denying all of Ad Valorem’s
allegations. The parties have exchanged initial disclosures under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 26, but the court
has not yet entered a scheduling order, and no discovery has taken place. In the Comnpany’s view, this suit is without
merit and will have no material effect on the Company’s financial results or operations.

On August 2, 2006, Nationwide Paging, Inc, (“Nationwide”) filed a two-count civil action in Massachusetts
Superior Court against defendants USA Mobility, Inc., Arch Wireless Inc., Arch Operating Company, Inc., and
Paging Network, Ine. (collectively “Arch”) titled Nationwide Paging, fnc. v. Arch Wireless, Inc. and Puaging
Nenwork, Inc. MICV2006-02734, Middlesex County Superior Court, Massachusetts (the “2006 Superior Court
Case™). Nationwide alleged that, in 2000 and 2001, Arch breached its contract with Nationwide by supplying
defective pagers and by over billing Nationwide for paging services. In addition, Nationwide alteged that Arch
breached the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing and destroyed or injured Nationwide's right to receive
the fruits of its contract with Arch. Nationwide’s complaint alleges damages in the amount of $6.9 million.

Nationwide served the 2006 Superior Court Case on USA Mobility on October 27, 2006. The Company denies
liability to Nationwide and intends to vigorously defend the allegations of the complaint.

There are two related cases that are outstanding, Natiomwide Paging, Inc. v. Arch Wireless, Inc. and Paging
Network, Inc.. MICV2002-02329. Middlesex County Superior Court, Massachusetts (the “2002 Superior Court
Case™) and It re Arch Wireless, Inc., U.S. Bankruptey Coun, District of Massachusetts, Western Division,
Chapter 11. Case No. 01-47330-HJB (the “Arch Bankruptcy Case™). The 2002 Superior Court Case has been
stayed due to Nationwide’s filing in October 2005 of u voluntary Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceeding. The Arch
Bankruptcy Case involves Arch’s motion for contempt against Nationwide and alleges that Nationwide's claims in
the 2002 Superior Court Case are barred by the discharge injunction in the Arch Bunkruptcy Case. The bankruptcy
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court denied that motion on October 13, 2005. The Company appealed that decision. The U.S. District Court
affirmed the decision of the bankruptcy court on February 20, 2007.

USA Mobility awaits the written opinion of the district court and will determine whether to pursue a further
appeal. If it chooses not to pursue an appeal of the decision of the district court aftirming the bankruptcy court’s
denial of Arch’s motion for contempt against Nationwide, or it pursues an appeal of the district court’s decision but
does not prevail on the appeal, and, in either event, the stay is lifted, then USA Mobility intends to defend the 2006
Superior Court Case, and also to defend the claims by Nationwide in the 2002 Superior Court Case. Further, if the
stay is lifted, Arch intends to prosecute vigorously its counterclaims against Nationwide. In the Company’s view
these suits are without merit and will have no material effect on the Company’s financial results or operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

USA Mobility’s sole class of common equity is its $0.0001 par value common stock, which is listed on the
Nasdag National Market® and is traded under the symbol “USMO.”

The following table sets forth the high and low intraday sales prices per share of USA Mobility’s common
stock for the peried indicated, which corresponds to its quarterly fiscal periods for financial reporting purposes.
Prices for the Company’s common stock are as reported on the Nasdag National Market® from January 1, 2005
through December 31, 2006.

2005 Ist Quarter beginning Janvary 1,2005 .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ..., $39.75  $29.77
2005 2nd Quarter beginning April 1, 2005 ... ... ... ... ... . ... 32.51 24.02
2005 3rd Quarter beginning July 1, 2005 . ... .. ... .. .. ... . oL 20.71 26.21
2005 4th Quarter beginning October 1,2005. . ... ... . ... ... .. ... 28.86 24.30
2006 Ist Quarter beginning January 1, 2006 .. ........ ... ... ... ... ..., 29.81 26.40
2006 2nd Quarter beginning April 1, 2006 ... ... .. ... ... .. .. .. ... ... 28.95 15.87
2006 3rd Quarter beginning July 1,2006 . ... ... .. ... ... .. ... ...... 23.50 16.55
2006 4th Quarter beginning October 1,2006. . . ... ... ... .. ... ...... 25.76 21.38

USA Mobility sold no unregistered securities during 2006 and made no repurchases of its common stock
during 2006.

As of March 7, 2007, there were 1,613 holders of record of USA Mobility common stock.

Cash Distributions to Stockholders

On November 2, 2003, the Board of Directors of USA Mobility declared a special one-time cash distribution to
stockholders of $1.50 per share, with a record date of December 1, 2005, and a payment date of December 21, 2005.
This cash distribution of approximately $40.7 million was paid from available cash on hand.

On June 7, 2006, the Board of Directors of USA Mobility declared a special one-time cash distribution to
stockholders of $3.00 per share, with a record date of June 30, 2006, and a payment date of July 21, 2006. This cash
distribution of approximately $81.4 million was paid from available cash on hand.

On August 8, 2006, the Company announced the adoption of a regular quarterly cash distribution of $0.65 per
share. On November 1, 2006, the Board of Directors of USA Mobility declared the first regular cash distribution,
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with a record date of November 16, 2006, and a payment date of December 7, 2006. This cash distribution of
approximately $17.5 million was paid from available cash on hand. '

On February 7, 2007, the Board of Directors of USA Mobility declared the second regular quarterly cash
distribution, with a record date of February 22, 2007, and a payment date of March 15, 2007. This cash distribution
will be paid from available cash on hand.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth, as of December 31, 20060, the number of securities outstanding under the
Company’s equity compensation plan, the weighted average exercise price of such securities and the number of
securities available for grant under this plan:

Number of

Securities Remaining
Number of Available for Future

Securities to Issuance Under
be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Equity Compensation

Exercise of Qutstanding Exercise Price of Plans (Excluding
Options, Warrants Qutstanding Options, Securities Reflected

and Rights Warrants and Rights in Column [a]}

Plan Category [a} [b] [e]

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders:

USA Mobility, Inc. Equity Incentive
Plan ........ ... ... ... ... ... 8,426(1) — 1,647,979(2)

Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders:

1,647,979

%
=
=R
oo
[
.

I

42

|

(1) Restricted stock units of 8,426 issued to the members of the Board of Directors for services performed, of which
878 restricted stock units relate to distributions.

(2) The USA Mobility, Inc. Equity Incentive Plan provides that Common Stock authorized for issuance under the
plan may be issued in the form of common stock, options, restricted stock and restricted stock units.
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Performance Graph

The Company began trading on the Nasdaq National Market® on November 17, 2004. The chart below
compares the relative changes in the cumulative total return of the Company’s Common Stock for the period
November 17, 2004 to December 31, 2006, against the cumulative total return of the Nasdaq Market Value Index
and the Nasdaq Telecommunications Index® for the same period.

The chart below assumes that on November 17, 2004, the date the Company’s shares first were publicly traded
following the merger between Metrocall and Arch, $100 was invested in USA Mobility’s Common Stock and in
each of the indices. The comparisons assurne that all dividends were reinvested. The chart indicates the dollar value
of each hypothetical $100 investment based on the closing price as of the last trading day of each month from
November 2004 to December 2006,

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
AMONG USA MOBILITY, INC,,
NASDAQ MARKET INDEX AND NASDAQ TELECOMMUNICATIONS INDEX®

ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON NOV. 17, 2004
ASSUMES DIVIDEND REINVESTED
FISCAL YEAR ENDING DEC. 31, 2006
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Transfer Restrictions on Common Stock.  In order 1o reduce the possibility that certain changes in ownership
could impose limitations on the use of the Company’s deferred income tax assets, USA Mobility’s Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation contains provisions which generally restrict transfers by or to any 5%
stockholder of the Company’s common stock or any transfer that would cause a person or group of persons to
become a 5% stockholder of the Company’s common stock. After a cumulative indirect shift in ownership of more
than 45% since its emergence from bankruptcy proceedings in May 2002 (as determined by taking into account all
relevant transfers of the stock of Arch prior to its acquisition, including transfers pursuant to the merger or during
any relevant three-year period) through a transfer of the Company's common stock, any transfer of USA Mobility’s
common stock by or to a 5% stockholder of the Company’s common stock or any transfer that would cause a person
or group of persons to become a 5% stockholder of such common stock, will be prohibited unless the transferee or
transferor provides notice of the transfer to the Company and the Company’s Board of Directors determines in good
faith that the transfer would not result in a cumulative indirect shift in ownership of more than 47%.

Prior to a cumulative indirect ownership change of more than 45%, transfers of the Company’s common stock
will not be prohibited except to the extent that they result in a cumulative indirect shift in ownership of more than
47%, but any transfer by or to a 5% stockholder of the Company’s common stock or any transfer that would cause a
person or group of persons to become a 5% stockholder of the Company’s common stock requires notice to USA
Mobility. Similar restrictions apply to the issuance or transfer of an option to purchase the Company’s common
stock if the exercise of the option would result in a transfer that would be prohibited pursuant to the restrictions
described above. These restrictions will remain in effect until the earliest of (a) the repeal of Section 382 of the IRC
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(or any comparable successor provision} and (b) the date on which the limitation amount imposed by Section 382 of
the IRC in the event of an ownership change would not be less than our tax atiributes subject to these limitations.
Transters by or to USA Mobility and any transfer pursuant to & merger approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors or any tender offer to acquire all of USA Mobility’s outstanding stock where a majority of the shares have
been tendered will be exempt from these restrictions.

ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

USA Mobility is a holding company formed to effect the merger of Arch and Metrocall, which occurred on
Navember 16, 2004, Prior to these acquisitions, USA Mobility had conducted no operations other than those that
were incidental to its formation. For financial reporting purposes, Arch was deemed the acquiring entity and is the
predecessor registrant of USA Mobility. Accordingly, the consolidated historical information and operating data for
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 reflect that of Arch and Metrocall; and the consolidated historical
information and operating data for the year ended December 31, 2004 reflects that of Arch for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2004 and the acquired operations of Metrocall for the period November 16, 2004 to
December 31, 2004. Historical financial information und operating data as of December 31, 2002, and 2003,
and for the two years ended December 31, 2003 reflect that of Arch. The table below sets forth the selected
historical consolidated financial and operating data for each of the five years ended December 31, 2006.

On May 29, 2002, Arch emerged from proceedings under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. The
consolidated financial statements of Arch, prior to its emergence from Chapier 11 on May 29, 2002 (the
“Predecessor Company”), have been prepared in accordance with the American Institate of Certified Public
Accountants Statement of Position 90-7, Financial Reporiting by Entities in Reorganization under the Bankruptcy
Code (*SOP 90-7") and on a going concern basis, which contemplates continuity of operations, realization of assets
and liquidation of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. Although May 29, 2002 was the effective date of
Arch's emergence from bankruptcy, for financial reporting convenience, Arch accounted for consummation of the
plan as of May 31, 2002. Substantially all of the Predecessor Company’s pre-petition debt was in default. As
required by SOP 90-7, the Predecessor Company recorded the pre-petition debt instruments at the allowed amount,
as defined by SOP 90-7.

Upon emergence from Chapter 11, (the “Reorganized Company™) restated its assets and liabilities, in
accordance with SOP 90-7. on the fresh start basis of accounting, which requires recording the assets on a fair
value basis similar to those required by SFAS No. 141.

As a result of the application of fresh start accounting, Arch’s financial results during the vear ended
December 31, 2002 include two different bases of accounting. Accordingly, the operating results and cash flows of
the Reorganized Company and the Predecessor Company are presented separately. The Reorganized Company’s
financial information is not comparable with those of the Predecessor Company.

The selected financial and operating data as of December 31, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006 and for the five
~months ended May 31, 2002, the seven months ended December 31, 2002 and the four years ended December 31,
2006 have been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of USA Mobility or its predecessor,
Arch.




The following consolidated financial information should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Dis-
cussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the consolidated financial statements

and notes set forth below.

Statements of Operations Data:
Revenues:

Service, rental and
maintenance. . . .........

Product sales. ............

Operating Expenses:
Cost of products sold. . . . . ..

Service, rental and
maintenance, . ..........

Selling and marketing
General and administrative. . .
Depreciation, amortization
and aceretion . ... ... ...
Severance and restructuring . .

Operating income

Interest and non-operating
expenses, net.............

Gain (loss) on extinguishment
of debt

Income before reorganization
items, net and fresh start
accounting adjustments, net . .

Reorganization items, net

Fresh start accounting
adjustments, net. . .........

Income (loss) before income
taxes...................

“Income tax expense..........

Net income (loss)

Basic net income (loss) per
common share: ... ........

Diluted net income (loss) per
common share: ...........

Other Operating Data;
Capital expenditures, excluding
acquisitions . . .. ..........
Cash distributions declared per
common share. ... ........

Arch
Predecessor

Company

Reorganized Company

Seven Months

Fﬁg:dhg;’ﬁh; 1, DECEII:I(I!)‘;? at, Year Ended December 31,
2002 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
{Dollars in thousands except per share amounts)
$ 351,71 $432,445  $571,98% $470,751 $592,690 $476,138
13,639 20,924 25,489 19,409 25,882 21,556
365,360 453,369 597478 490,160 618,572 497,694
10,426 7,740 5,580 4,347 4,483 3,837
105,990 132,698 189,700 160,514 215848 177,120
35,313 37,897 45,660 36,117 43,371 43,902
116,668 137,751 172,735 134,507 179,784 127,877
82,720 110,192 129,658 107,629 131,328 73,299
— 5,934 16,683 11,938 16,609 4,586
14,243 21,157 37,462 35,108 27,149 67,073
(2,178) (18,340  (19,237)  (5914) (1323) 3,868
1,621,355 — — (1,031) (1,338) —
110 (1,129) 516 814 (1,004) 300
1,633,530 1,688 18,741 28,977 23,484 71,741
(22,503} (2,765) (425) — — —
47,895 — — — — —
1,658,922 (1,077) 18,316 28,977 23,484 71,741
— {(2,265) (5,308y (16,810 (10,577y (31,560)
$1,658,922 $ (3,342) 3 13,008 § 12,167 § 12,907 $ 40,18]
§ 9.09 $ (t7) 8 065 $ 058 % 047 § 147
$ 9.09 $ (I § 065 % 058 § 047 $§ 146
$ 44474 $ 39935 $ 25446 $ 19232 § 13,499 § 20,990
$ — 1§ — 3 — 3 — $ 150 § 365




Reorganized Company
December 31,

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Balance Sheet Data:
Current assets . .. ... vuti i $115,231 $110,567 $128,058 $105,279 $123,564
Total @SSeIS . ...ttt e e 442634 495495 782,147 633,793 588,214
Long-term debt, less current maturities . ... ... .. 162,185 40,000 47,500 — —
Stockholders™ equity. . ..................... 114,224 326,264 556,040 532,993 475972

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with USA Mobility’s consolidated
financial statements and related notes and the discussions under “Application of Critical Accounting Policies” (also
under [tem 7), which describes key estimates and assumptions the Company makes in the preparation of its financial
statements and Item 1A “Risk Factors”, which describes key risks associated with the Company’s operations and
industry.

Merger of Arch and Metrocall

USA Mobility is a holding company that was formed to effect the merger of Arch and Metrocall, which
occurred on November 16, 2004. Prior to the merger, USA Mobility had conducted no operations other than those
incidental to its formation. For financial reporting purposes, Arch was deemed to be the accounting acquirer of
Metrocall. The historical information for USA Mobility includes the historical financial information of Arch for
2002, 2003 and 2004 through November 15, 2004 and the acquired operations of Metrocall from November 16,
2004. Accordingly, the results of operations reflect increases in revenues and costs due to the inclusion of Metrocall
during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2004, which
included the results of Metrocall only from November 16, 2004 to December 31, 2004.

USA Mobility believes that the combination of Arch and Metrocall provided the Company with stronger
operating and financial results than either company could have achieved separately, by reducing overall costs while
the Company’s revenues continue to decline sequentially.

Since the merger on November 16, 2004, the Company has undertaken significant integration and consol-
idation activities. These activities have included management and staff reductions and reorganizations, network
rationalization and consolidation and changes in operational systems, processes and procedures. Such changes are
described below.

Overview
Revenue — Units in Service and Average Revenue Per Unit (“ARPU”)

USA Mobility derives the majority of its revenues from fixed monthly or other periodic fees charged to
subscribers for wireless messaging services. Such fees are not generally dependent on usage. As long as a subscriber
maintains service, operating results benefit from recurring payment of these fees. Revenues are generally based
upon the number of units in service and the monthly charge per unit. The number of units in service changes based
on subscribers added, referred to as gross placements, less subscriber cancellations, or disconnects. The net of gross
placements and disconnects is commonly referred to as net gains or losses of units in service. The absolute number
of gross placements as well as the number of gross placements relative to average units in service in a period,
referred to as the gross placement rate, is monitored on a monthly basis. Disconnects are also monitored on a
monthly basis. The ratio of units disconnected in a period to average units in service for the same period, called the
disconnect rate, is an indicator of the Company’s success at retaining subscribers, which is important in order to
maintain recurring revenues and to control operating expenses.
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The following table sets forth units in service associated with the Company’s channels of distribution:
As of December 31,

2004 2005 2006
Units %o Units % Units Yo
(Units in thousands)
Dhrect ..o e 5,003 81% 4,183 86% 3,598 88%
Indirect . . ... .. e 1,199 19% 703 14% 507 12%
Total ... .. e 6,202  100% 4,886 100% 4,105 100%

The following table sets forth the Company’s gross placements and disconnects for the periods stated:

For the Year Ended December 31,
2004(a) i 2005(a) 2006(a)

Gross Gross Gross
Placements Disconnects Placements Disconnects Placements Disconnects

{Units in thousands)

Direct .. .......... 540 1,179 612 1315 519 1,105
Indirect .. ......... 205 545 285 663 123 318
Total ........... 745 1,724 897 1,978 642 1,423

{a) Includes gross placements and disconnects of Arch for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 and
Metrocall for the period November 16, 2004 to December 31, 2006.

The demand for one-way and two-way messaging services declined during the three years ended December 31,
2006, and USA Mobility believes demand will continue to decline for the foreseeable future in line with recent
trends, During 2004, units in service increased 1,765,000 units due to the addition of 2,744,000 units associated with
the Metrocall merger partially offset by the decrease of 979,000 units as a result of operations. During 2005, units in
service decreased 1,316,000. During the conversion of the Metrocall billing system to the Arch billing system,
which was completed in early July 2005, the Company became aware of errors in the Metrocall units in service
counts and differences in the definition of units in service between Metrocall and Arch. As a result, as of June 30,
2005, the Company reduced its units in service by 235,000 units to correct the errors and to conform to the Arch
billing system standard unit definition. The remaining decrease of 1,081,000 units resulted from 2005 operations.
During 2006, units in service decreased 781,000 as a result of 2006 operations.

The following table set forth information on the Company’s direct units in service, including the account size
of ending units in service, the percentage.of end of period units in service to total direct units in service, the
percentage of account size net unit loss and account size ARPU for the period stated. No consolidated historic data
prior to 2006 is available for this information:

As of December For the Year Ended December 31, 2006
__ 31,2006 | Ending Units in
' Ending Units in Service % of Net Unit Loss
Account Size Service (00{)’s) Total Direct % ARPU
lto3 Units....................... 276 7.7% (29.0)% $14.00
4w i0Units...................... 163 4.5 (26.2) 12.84
IMto350Units . ........0cvvirunnnn. 398 1.1 (24.6) 10.69
501t0 100 Units .. ..., ............. 226 6.3 (20.8) 9.32
10l 1000 Units .. ..........c..... 967 269 : (14.7) 8.15
> 1000 Unnts. ......... Cen e 1,568 43.6 (3.6) 8.02
Total Direct Customers. . ............. 3,508 100.0% (14.0)% $ 920

As previously discussed, the monthly charge per unit is dependent on the subscriber’s service, extent of
geographic coverage, whether the subscriber leases or owns the messaging device and the number of units the
customer has on his or her account. The ratio of revenues for a period to the average units in service for the same
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period, commonly referred to as ARPU, is a key revenue measurement as it indicates whether monthly charges for
similac services and distribution chanaels are increasing or decreasing. ARPU by distribution channel and
messaging service are monitored regularly. The following table sets forth USA Mobility’s ARPU by distribution

channel for the periods stated.
For the Year Ended Decémber 31,

2004(a) 2005(a) 2006(a)

DHEECt .« o o $10.17 $9.76 $9.20
Indirect. . . . o e 4.00 4.59 4.76
Consolidated . . . .. ot e e e 9.17 8.91 8.60

(a) Includes average revenue per unit for Arch for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 and
Metrocall for the period November 16, 2004 to December 31, 2006.

While ARPU for similar services and distribution channels is indicative of changes in monthly charges and the
revenue rate applicable to new subscribers, this measurement on a consolidated basis is affected by several faclors,
most notably the mix of units in service. Gross revenues increased in 2005 over 2004 due to the Metrocall merger
but decreased in 2006 over 2003, and the Company expects future sequential annual revenues to decline in line with
recent trends. Consolidated ARPU decreased $0.26 in 2005 from 2004 and decreased $0.31 in 2006 from 2005. The
majority of these decreases was due primarily to the change in composition of the Company’s customer base as the
percentage of units in service attributable to larger customers continues to increase. The change in ARPU in the
direct distribution channel is the most significant indicator of rate-related changes in the Company’'s revenues. USA
Mobility expects that ARPU for its direct units in service will decline in future periods.

Operating Expenses

The Company’s operating expenses are presented in functional categories. Certain of the Company’s
functional categories are especially important to overall expense control; these operating expenses are categorized
as follows:

= Service, rental and maintenance. These are expenses associated with the operation of the Company’s
networks and the provision of messaging services and consist largely of telephone charges to deliver
messages over the Company's networks, lease payments for transmitter locations and payroll expenses for
the Company’s engineering and pager repair functions.

» Selling and marketing.  These are expenses associated with USA Mobility’s direct and indirect sales forces
and marketing expenses in support of the sales force. This classification consists primarily of salaries,
commissions and other payroll related expenses.

« General and adminisirative.  These are expenses associated with customer service, inventory management,
billing, collections, bad debt and other administrative functions,

USA Mobility reviews the percentages of these operating expenses to revenues on a regular basis. Even though
the operating expenses are classified as described above, expense controls are also performed by expense category.
In 2006, approximately 75.0% of the operating expenses referred to above were incurred in three expense
categories: payroll and related expenses; lease payments for transmitter locations; and telecommunications
eXpenses.

Payroll and related expenses include wages, commissions, incentives, employee benefits and related taxes.
USA Mobility reviews the number of employees in major functional categories such as direct sales, engineering and
technical support, customer service, collections and inventory on a monthly basis. The Company also reviews the
design and physical locations of functional groups to continuously improve efficiency, to simplify organizational
structures and to minimize the number of physical locations. Since the merger on November 16, 2004, the Company
has reduced its employee base from 2,844 full ume equivalent employees (“FTEs”) at the time of the merger to
1,235 FTEs at December 31, 2006. During the second quarter 2006, USA Mobility sold an internally managed call
center 1o an outside provider, resulting in a reduction of 203 FTEs. While certain staff reductions have resulted in
significant severance expenses, the Company’s on-going cost of payroll and related expenses will be reduced.
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Lease payments for transmitter locations are largely dependent on the Company’s messaging networks. USA
Mobility operates local, regional and nationwide one-way and two-way messaging networks. These networks each
require locations on which to place transmitters, receivers and antennae. Generally, lease payments are incurred for
each transmitter location. Therefore, lease payments for transmitter locations are highly dependent on the number
of transmitters, which, in turn, is dependent on the number of networks. In addition, these expenses generally do not
vary directly with the number of subscribers or units in service, which is detrimental to the Company’s operating
margin as revenues decline. In order to reduce this expense, USA Mobility has an active program to consolidate the
number of networks and thus transmitter locations, which the Company refers to as network rationalization. In
addition, in August 2005 and Junuary 2006, USA Mobility executed agreements with its two largest site lease
vendors. These agreements will reduce the Company’s future lease payments for transmitter locations. During
2005. the Company decommissioned the former Arch two-way network. This network rationalization resulted in an
increase in depreciation expense, but is an important element of the Company’s integration and cost reduction
strategy.

Telecommunications expenses are incurred to interconnect USA Mobility’s messaging networks and to
provide telephone numbers for customer use, points of contact for customer service and connectivity among the
Company’s offices. These expenses are dependent on the number of units in service and the number of office and
network locations the Company maintains. The dependence on units in service is related to the number of telephone
numbers provided to customers and the number of telephone calls made to the Company’s call centers, though this is
not always a direct dependency. For example, the number or duration of telephone calls 1o call centers may vary
from period to period based on factors other than the number of units in service, which could cause telecom-
munications expenses (o vary regardless of the number of units in service. In addition, certain phone numbers USA
Mobility provides to its customers may have a usage component based on the number and duration of calls to the
subscriber’s messaging device, Telecommunications expenses do not necessarily vary in direct relationship to units
in service. Therefore, based on the factors discussed above, efforts are underway to review and reduce telephone
circuit inventories and capacities and to reduce the number of transmitter and office locations from which the
Company operates.

USA Mobility did experience limited damage to transmission equipment located in the Gulf of Mexico region
of the United States from Hurricanes Katrina and Rita in the third quarter of 2005. Expenses resulting from storm-
retated recovery efforts have been included in service, rental and maintenance expenses, and were immaterial for
the third quarter of 2005. In addition, the Company recorded $23 1,000 to reflect the loss of damaged assets. To date,
the impact to revenues or bad debt expense has been immaterial. The Company has an insurance policy that affords
recovery for operational expenses, asset losses and business interruption, and has submitied its claims; at this time,
however, the Company cannot estimate the amount and timing of insurance recoveries, if any.

The total of USA Mobility's cost of products sold; service. rental and maintenance; selling and marketing. and
general and administrative expenses was $335.5 million, $443.5 million and $352.7 miilion for the years ended
December 31, 2004. 2005 and 2006, respectively. Since the Company betieves the demand for. and the Company’s
revenues from, one-way and two-way messaging will continue to decline in future quarters, expense reductions will
be necessary in order for USA Mobility to mitigate the financial impact of such revenue declines on its cash from
operating activities. However, there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to maintain margins or
generate net cash from operating activities,

Results of Operations

As previously discussed, Arch and Metrocall merged on November 16, 2004. The results of operations and
cash flows discussed below for 2004, 2005 and 2006 include the operating results and cash flows of Arch for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, and Metrocall for the period November 16, 2004 to
December 31, 2006. Accordingly, the apparent growth in operations from 2004 to 2005 is due to the merger of Arch
and Metrocall and is not indicative of future operating trends or results.
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Comparison of the Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2006

For the Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 Change Between
% of % of 2005 and 2006
Amount Revenue Amount Revenue Amount e
(Dollars in thousands)
Revenues:
Service, rental and maintenance . . . . .. $502,690 95.8% $476,138 95.7% $(116,552) (19.7)%
Productsales ................. ... 25,882 4.2 21,556 i 43 {4.326) (16.7)
$618,572 100.0% $497,694 100.0% $(120.878) (19.5)%
Selected operating expenses:
Cost of productssold .. ............ $ 4,483 07% $ 3,837 08% % (646) (14.)%
Service, rental and maintenance ... ... 215,848 349 177,120 35.6 (38,728) (17.9)
Selling and marketing. . . ........... 43,371 1.0 43,902 8.8 531 1.2
General and administrative . . . ....... 179,734 29.1 127,877 257 (51,907 (23.9)
$443,486 71.7% $352,736 70.9% § (90,750) (20.5)%
REVENUES

Service, rental and maintenance revenues consist primarily of recurring fees associated with the provision of
messaging services and rental of leased units. Product sales consist primarily of revenues associated with the sale of
devices and charges for leased devices that are not returned. The decrease in revenues reflects the decrease in
demand for the Company’s wireless services. USA Mobility’s total revenues were $618.6 million and $497.7 mil-
lion for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2005 2006
(Dollars in thousands}

Service, rental and maintenance revenues:

Paging:
Direct:
One-way messaging
Two-way messaging

Indirect:
One-way messaging
Two-way messaging

Total Paging:
One-way messaging
Two-way messaging

Non-Paging revenue

Total service, rental and Mainteniance TEVENMUES . . v . v v v v v ot e e e e e et et e e

.............................................. $421,505  $342.226
.............................................. 109,790 87415
$531,295  $429.641

.............................................. $ 39,724 § 26,941
.............................................. 9,382 7.611
$ 49,106 § 34,552

.............................................. $461,229  $369,167
.............................................. 119,172 95,026
580,401 464,193

.............................................. 12,289 11,945
$592,690  $476,138
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The table below sets forth units in service and service revenues, the changes in each between 2005 and 2006
and the change in revenue associated with differences in the numbers of units in service and ARPU.

Units in Service Revenues
As of December 31, For the Year Ended December 31, Change Due to:
2005 2006 Change 2005(a) 2006{(a) Change ARPU Units
(Units in thousands) {Dollars in thousands)
One-way messaging . ..... 4,439 3,735 (704) $461,229 $369,167 $ (92,062) $(3.663) $ (88,399)
Two-way messaging . .. ... 447 370 (77} 119,172 95,026 (24,146 (4,728) (19,418)
Total. ................. 4,886 4,105 (781) $580401 $464,193 $(i16,208) $(8,391) 5(107,817)

(2) Amounts shown exclude non-paging and product sales revenues,

As previously discussed, demand for messaging services has declined over the past several years and the
Company anticipates that it will continue to decline for the foreseeable future, which would result in reductions in
service, rental and maintenance revenue due to the lower number of subscribers and related units in service.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of Products Sold.  Cost of products sold consists primarily of the cost basis of devices sold to or lost by
USA Mobility’s customers. The $0.6 million decrease in 2006 was due primarily to a decrease in product sales.

Service, Rental and Maintenance. Service, rental and maintenance expenses consist primarily of the

following significant items:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 Change Between
% of % of 2005 and 2006
Amount Revenue Amount Revenue Amount %
(Dollars in thousands)
Lease payments for transmitier locations. .. $124,573 201% § 99,638 200% $(24935) (20.00%
Telecommunications related expenses . . . . . 42,306 6.8 32,107 6.5 (10,199) (24.1)
Payroll and related expenses. . .......... 31,131 5.0 26,277 53 (4.854) (15.6)
Stock based compensation ............. 260 0.0 320 0.1 60 231
Other. . ... ... ... e 17,578 28 18,778 33 1,200 6.8
Total ...... . .. ... . ... . .. $215,848 349% $177,120 35.6% $(38,728) (i7.9%
FTEs. ... ... ... ... .. .. . .. ... .. ... 407 350 57y (14.0)%

As illustrated in the table above, service, rental and maintenance expenses decreased $38.7 million or 17.9%
from 2005,

Following is a discussion of each significant item listed above:

= Lease payments for transmitter locations — The decrease of $24.9 million in lease payments for transmitter
locations is primarily due to the rationalization of Arch’s two-way network and renegotiated master lease
agreements. As discussed earlier, the combined Company has deconstructed one of its two-way networks
and has begun to rationalize its one-way networks. The Company has negotiated two master lease
agreements (“MLAs") that cover approximately 28% of its transmitters. These MLAs provide for a
maximum monthly rental for a fixed number of sites that can decline over time. These ML As have allowed
the Company to reduce its lease payment expense as its network rationalization continues. As required by
SFAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases, the Company is required to expense its lease payments on a straight-
line basis. This has increased long-term prepaid rent by $4.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.
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s Telecommunications related expenses — The decrease of $10.2 million in telecommunications expenses is
due 1o the consolidation of one-way and two-way networks. Continued reductions in these expenses should
occur as the Company’s networks continue to be consolidated throughout 2007.

» Payroll and related expenses — Payroll consists largely of field technicians and their managers. This
functional work group does not vary as closely to direct units in service as other work groups since these
individuals are a function of the number of networks the Company operates rather than the number of units in
service on its networks. Payroll for this category decreased $4.9 million due primarily to a reduction in
headcount. Total FTEs declined by 57 from 407 FTEs at December 31, 2005 to 350 FTEs at December 31,
2006. : ‘

» Stock based compensation — Stock based compensation consists primarily of amortization of compensation
expense associated with restricted stock and options issued to certain members of management and the
Board of Directors. and the compensation cost associated with a long-term management incentive plan. The
increase for the year ended December 31, 2006 reflects the vesting of Metrocall options in May 2005, offset
by restricted stock grants to management for June 7, 2005 (103,937 shares) and for February 1, 2006
(132,572 shares) that vest through various periods until January 1, 2009.

* Qther expenses — Other expenses consist primarily of an increase in other miscellaneous expenses of
$1.5 million resulting from one-time adjustments in 2005 to the Company’s asset retirement obligations.
This was offset partially by a decrease of $0.6 million in repairs and maintenance from continued site and
office reductions as USA Mobility continues to streamline its operations.

Selling and Marketing.  Selling and marketing expenses consist of the following major items:
For the Year Ended December 31, l

2005 2006 Change Between
% of % of 2005 and 2006
Amount Revenne Amount Revenue Amount T

{Dollars in thousands}

Payroll and related expenses. .. ............ $29,429 4.8%  $28,924 58% $ (505) (1.7Y%
CommISSIONS . . . .o it e e i 10,316 1.7 9,583 1.9 (733) (7.1
Stock based compensation .. .............. 226 0.0 570 0.1 344 1522
Other. . ... .. i 3,400 0.5 4.825 1.0 1.425 419
Total ... e $43.371 7.0%  $43.902 88% § 531 1.2%
FTEs. ... o 460 421 {39) (8.5)%

As indicated in the table above, selling and marketing expenses consist primarily of payroll and related
expenses. Selling and marketing payroll and related expenses decreased $0.5 million or 1.7% over 2005. While tota!
FTEs declined by 39 from 460 FTEs at December 31, 2005 to 421 FTEs at December 31, 2006. the Company has
launched a major initiative to reposition the Company and refocus its marketing goals. The sales and marketing staff
are all involved in selling the Company’s paging products and services on a nationwide basis as well as reselling
other wireless products and services such as cellular phones and email devices under authorized agent agreements.
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General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses consist of the following
significant items:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 Change Between
% o % of 2005 and 2006
Amount Revenue Amount Revenue Amount %o
{Dollars in thousands)
Payroll and related expenses. . .......... $ 63,443 10.3% § 42,546 8.5% $(20,897) (32.9%
Stock based compensation .. ..... ... ... 2,346 04 1,838 0.4 (508) (2L.7)
Baddebt .. ... ... ... ... ... ........ 8.828 1.4 7.505 1.5 (1.323) (15.00
Facility expenses . ... ................ 21.161 34 14,953 3.0 (6.208) (29.3)
Telecommunications . .. ............... 10.101 16 7.802 1.6 (2,299 (22.8)
Outside services. . . .................. 28,109 4.5 25,334 5.1 (2.775) (9.9)
Taxes, licenses and permits. . .. ...... ... 19,204 3.1 9,392 1.9 9,812y (51.1)
Other. . ... . . e 26,592 43 18,507 3.7 (8,085) (30.4)
Total .. ... .. $179,784 29.1% §$127.877 25.7% $(51,907) (28.9%
FTEs .. ... ... . . 750 464 (286) (38.1)%

As illustrated in the table above, general and administrative expenses decreased $51.9 million from the year‘
ended December 31, 2005 due primarily 1o headcount reductions and office closures. The percentages of these
expenses to revenue also decreased, primarily due to the following:

« Payroll and related expenses — Payroll and related expenses include employees in customer service,
inventory, collections, finance and other back office functions as well as executive management. The
decrease in this expense was due primarily to a reduction in headcount since the Metrocall merger. Total
general and administration FTEs decreased by 286 from 750 FTEs at December 31, 2005 to 464 FTEs at
December 31, 2006. In June 2006, the Company sold an internally managed and staffed call center to an
outside provider, which resulted in a reduction of 203 FTEs. The Company has engaged this third party to
provide outsourced customer service. USA Mobility anticipates continued staffing reductions during 2007,
however, the most significant reductions occurred throughout 2005.

* Stock based compensation — Stock based compensation consists primarily of amortization of compensation
expense associated with restricted stock and options issued to certain members of management and the
Board of Directors, and the compensation cost associated with a long-term management incentive plan. The
decrease for the year ended December 31, 2006 reflects the vesting of Metrocall options in May 2005, offset
by restricted stock grants to management for June 7, 2005 (103,937 shares) and for February 1, 2006
(132,572 shares) that vest through various periods until January 1, 2009.

» Bad debr — The decrease of $1.3 miilion in bad debt expense reflects a revision to the Company’s analysis
of its bad debt experience. Based on expecied trends the Company increased its bad debt expense as a
percentage of the related revenue. This increase primarily occurred during the first six months of 2006. The
decrease in overall expense from 2005 1o 2006 is generally consisient with the decrease in revenue during the
same period.

« Facility expenses — The decrease of $6.2 million is primarily due to the closure of office facilities as part of
the Company’s continued rationalization resulting from the merger of Arch and Metrocall.

» Telecommunications — The decrease of $2.3 million in telecommunications expense reflects continued
office and staffing reductions as USA Mobility continues to streamline its operations.

¢ Qutside services — Outside services consists primarily of costs associated with printing and mailing
invoices, outsourced customer service, temporary help and various professional fees. The decrease in
2006 was due primarily to a reduction in professional service fees for integration-related activities incurred
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in 2005, offset by increased outsourced customer service costs resulting from the sale of an internally
managed call center to an outside provider in June 2006.

s Taxes, licenses and permits — Taxes, licenses and permits consist of property, franchise, and gross receipts
taxes. The decrease in taxes, licenses and permits of $9.8 million is mainly due to lower than expected tax
settlements, gross receipts taxes, and property taxes. Additionally, in 2006 the Company received a net one-
time refund of $2.2 million for previously paid federal excise taxes.

« QOther expenses — Other expenses consist primarily of a decrease to repairs and maintenance of $3.9 million,
a decrease to insurance of $0.9 million, a decrease of $1.8 million to office expenses and a decrease of
$1.1 million to travel and entertainment, ali of which result from continued site and office reductions as USA
Mobility continues to streamline its operations.

Depreciation, Amortization and Accretion. Depreciation, amortization and accretion expenses decreased to
$73.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $131.3 million for the same period in 2005. The decrease
was primarily due to $31.2 million of fully depreciated paging infrastructure and other assets, $17.3 million in lower
depreciation expense on paging devices resulting from fewer purchases of paging devices and from fuily
depreciated paging devices, and $9.8 million in lower amortization expense.

Effective October 1, 2006, USA Mobility revised the estimated depreciable life of certain of its messaging
equipment assets, which are depreciated under the group method. This change in useful life resulted from changes
to the timing of the Company’s network rationalization program, in order to align the useful lives of these assets
with their planned removal from service. As a result of this change, depreciation expense decreased approximately
$0.1 million in the fourth quarter of 2006.

Severance and Restructuring. These costs were $16.6 million and $4.6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively. These costs primarily consist of severance charges of $15.5 million
and $4.2 million for 2005 and 2006, respectively. resulting from staff reductions as the Company continues to match
its employee levels to operational requirements.

Restructuring charges of $1.1 million and $0.4 million for 2005 and 2006, respectively, relate to lease
termination penalty expenses. )

Impairments. The Company did not record any impairment of long-lived assets, intangible assets or goodwill
in 2005 or 2006. The Company is required to evaluate goodwill of a reporting unit for impairment at least annually
and between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that would rore likely than not reduce the fair
value of the reporting unit to below its carrying amount. For this determination the Company as a whole is
considered the reporting unit. Declines in the Company’s stock price could indicate that a potential impairment has
occurred. Such a decline could require an evaluation of impairment more frequently than annually.

Interest Income (Expense). Net interest income is $3.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to net expense of $1.3 million for the same period in 2005. This increase was due to the investment of
available cash in short term interest bearing accounts for the year ended December 31, 2006, versus interest expense
for the same pertod in 2005 on the $47.5 million of average debt outstanding that was used to partially fund the cash
consideration to Metrocall stockhelders.

Income Tax Expense. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recognized $31.6 million of total
income tax expense, compared to $10.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, The increase in the tax
provision between 2005 and 2006 was primarily attributable to higher pre-tax book income, a charge of $1.8 million
resulting from recently enacted changes in state income tax laws, including Texas and Michigan, and a $0.8 million
charge to establish a valuation allowance against the portion of the Company’s charitable contribution carry forward
estimated to expire prior to utilization. The December 31, 2005 tax provision included a charge of $1.5 million
related to an enacted change to the Ohio income tax laws. USA Mobility anticipates that income tax expenses will
continue to be required for the foreseeable future, :
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Comparison of the Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2005

Revenues:
Service, rental and maintenance
Product sales

Selected operating expenses:
Cost of products sold
Service, rental and maintenance
Selling and marketing
General and administrative

For the Year Ended December 31,

%

259%
334

262%

31%
34.5
20.1
337

32.2%

2004 2005 Change Between
% of % of 2004 and 2005
Amount Revenue Amount Revenue Atmount
(Dollars in thousands)
$470,751 96.0% $592,690 95.8% $121,939
19,409 4.0 25,882 4.2 6,473
$490,160 100.0% $618,572 100.0% $128,412
$ 4347 09% $ 4483 0.7% $ 136
160,514 327 215,848 349 55,334
36,117 74 43,371 7.0 7,254
134,507 274 179,784 29.1 45,277
$335,485 68.4% $443,486 71.7% $108,001
REVENUES

Service, rental and maintenance revenues consist primarily of recurring fees associated with the provision of
messaging services and rental of leased units. Product sales consist primarily of revenues associated with the sale of
devices and charges for leased devices that are not returned. The increase in revenues in each revenue type is the
result of including revenues of Metrocall during the entire year of 2005 as compared to only 45 days in 2004. The
combined Company has experienced, and expects to experience, revenue declines for the foreseeable future.

Service, rental and maintenance revenues:
Paging:
Direct:
One-way messaging
Two-way messaging

Indirect:
One-way messaging
Two-way messaging

Total Paging:
One-way messaging
Two-way messaging

Non-Paging revenue

Total service, rental and maintenance revenues

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2004 ()

2005 (a)

{Doltars in thousands)

$421,505

.......................... $348,990
.......................... 87,211 109,790
$436,201  $531,295
.......................... $ 28384 § 39,724
.......................... 3,229 9,382
$ 31613  § 49,106
........................... $377,374  $461.229
........................... 90,440 119,172
467,814 580,401
.......................... 2,937 12,289
....................... $470,751  $592,690

(a) Includes revenues for Arch for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005 and Metrocall for the period
November 16, 2004 to December 31, 2005,
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The table below sets forth units in service and service revenues, the changes in each between 2004 and 2005
and the change in revenue associated with differences in the numbers of units in service and ARPU.

Units in Service Revenues
As of December 31, For the Year Ended December 31, Change Due to:
2004 2005  Change 2004(a) 2005(a) Change ARPU Units
{Units in thousands) (Dollars in thousands)
One-way messaging ........ 5673 4439 (1,234) $377,374 $461,229 $ 83,855 $73.980 § 9875
Two-way messaging . . ...... 529 447 (82) 90,440 119,172 28,732 11.290 17,442
Total ................... 6202 4886 (1,316) $467.814 $580401 S$112,587 $85.270 $27.317

(a) Amounts shown exclude non-paging and preduct sales revenues.

As previously discussed, demand for messaging services has declined over the past several years and the
Company anticipates that it will continue to decline for the foreseeable future, which would resuit in reductions in
service revenue due to the lower number of subscribers and related units in service.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of Products Sold.  Cost of products sold consists primarily of the cost basis of devices sold to or lost by
USA Mobility's customers. The $0.1 million increase in 2005 was due primarily to an increase in the number of
device transactions due to the Metrocall merger.

Service, Rental and Maintenance. Service, rental and maintenance expenses consist primarily of the
following significant components:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2004 2005 Change Between
% of % of 2004 and 2005
Amount Revenue Amount Revenue Amount %
{Dollars in thousands)
Lease payments for transmitter locations ... $ 85,530 174% $124,573 20.1% $39.043  45.6%
Telecommunications related expenses. .. . .. 28,587 5.8 42,306 6.8 13,719 480
Payroll and related expenses . ... ........ 26,415 54 31,131 5.0 4,716 17.9
Stock based compensation . .. ...... .. ... 370 0.1 260) 0.0 (110)  (29.7)
Other ... ... .. .o 19.612 4.0 17,578 28 (2,034) (10.4)
Total . ..o $160,514 32.7% $215.848 349% $55.334 34.5%
FTES ..ot c e 576 407 (169) (29.3)%

As illustrated in the table above, service, rental and maintenance expenses increased $55.3 million or 34.5%
from 2004. The percentage of these costs to revenues also increased, primarily due to the acquisition of Metrocall
one-way and two-way networks that resulted in increased lease and telecommunications-related expenses.

Following is a discussion of each significant item listed above:

o Lease pavments for transmitter locations — The increase in lease payments for transmitter locations
consists of an increase of $39.0 million primarily due to the inclusion of expenses associated with the
Metrocall one-way and two-way networks. As discussed elsewhere, the combined Company has decom-
missioned one of its two-way networks and has begun to rationalize its one-way networks. However, lease
payments are subject to underlying obligations contained in each lease agreement, some of which do not
allow immediate savings when equipment is removed. Further. leases may consist of payments for multiple
sets of transmitters, antenna structures or network infrastructures on a particular site. In some cases,
USA Mobility removes only a portion of the equipment to which the lease payment relates. Under these
circumstances, reduction of future rent payments is often subject 1o negotiation. Success is dependent on
many factors, including the number of other sites USA Mobility leases from the lessor, the amount and
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location of equipment remaining at the site and the remaining term of the lease. Therefore, lease payments
for transmitter locations are generally fixed in the short term, and as a result, to date, the Company has not
been able 1o reduce these payments at the same rate as the rate of decline in units in service and revenues,
resulting in an increase in these expenses as a percentage of revenues,

s Telecommunications related expenses — The increase in telecommunications expenses reflects an increase
of $13.7 million resulting from the Metrocall merger. USA Mobility has also begun the process to reduce
these costs as it consolidates and rationalizes its one-way and two-way networks. Reductions in these
expenses should occur as the Company’s networks are consolidated throughout 2006.

« Payroll and related expenses — Payroll consists largely of field technicians and their managers. This
functional work group does not vary as closely to direct units in service as other work groups since these
individuals are a function of the number of networks the Company operates rather than the number of units in
service on the networks. Payroll for this category increased $4.7 million due primarily to additional
employees resulting from the Metrocall merger.

« Stock based compensation — Stock based compensation consists primarily of amortization of compensation
expense associated with restricted stock and options issued to certain members of management and the
Board of Directors, and the compensation cost associated with a long-term management incentive plan. USA
Mobility uses the fair-value based method of accounting for stock based compensation. Stock based
compensation decreased to $0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $0.4 million for the
same period in 2004, primarily due to lower compensation costs associated with the long-term management
incentive plan, offset by the compensation expense of the grant of 103,937 shares of restricted stock to
eligible employees on June 7, 2003.

Selling and Marketing.  Selling and marketing expenses consist of the following major ilems:
For the Year Ended December 31,

2004 2005 Change Between
o of < of 2004 and 2005
Amount Revenue Amount Revenue Amount o
{Dollars in thousands)
Payroll and related expenses, .. ..........., $26,753 5.5% $29.429 48% $2.676 10.0%
COmmISSIONS . . o ..o it e e e a 7,953 1.6 10,316 1.7 2,363 29.7
Stock based compensation . .......... ... .. 32 0.0 226 0.0 194 606.3
Other. . ..o e 1,379 @ 3,400 % 2,021 146.6
Total . ... ... ... $36,117 7.4% $43,371 m% $7,254 20.1%
FTEs................ T 564 460 (104) 18.4Y%

As indicated in the table above, selling and marketing expenses consist primarily of payroll and related
expense. Selling and marketing payroll and related expenses increased $2.7 million or 10.0% over 2004. This
increase was due primarily to an increase in the number of sales representatives and sales management that resulted
from the Metrocall merger.

29




General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses consist of the following
significant components:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2004 2005 Change Between
%o 7 of 2004 and 2005
Amount Revenue Amount Revenue Amount o
(Dollars in thousands)
Payroll and related expenses .. .. ........ $ 56,132 11.5% § 63,443 10.3% $ 7,311 13.0%
Stock based compensation. . .. .......... 4,461 0.9 2,346 0.4 (2,115) (474)
Baddebt ................ ... ... ..., 3,789 0.8 8,828 1.4 5,030 1330
Facility expenses . ................... 15,873 3.2 21,161 34 5,288 333
Telecommunications . . .. ......ovven .- 7,065 1.4 10,101 1.6 3,036 43.0
Qutside Services . . . ..o vine oo 14,316 2.9 28,109 4.5 13,793 96.3
Taxes, licenses and permits . . ........... 12,716 2.6 19,204 3.1 6,488 51.0
Other . ... .. i 20,155 4.1 26,592 43 6,437 319
Total. . ..o o $134,507 27.4% $179,784 29.1% $45,277  33.7%
FTEs ............... e 1,333 750 (583) (43.7)%

As illustrated in the 1able above, general and administrative expenses increased $45.3 million from the year
ended December 31. 2004 due to the inclusion of Metrocall operations. The percentages of these costs to revenue
also increased, primarily due to the following:

o Payroll and related expenses — Payroll and related expenses include employees in customer service,
inventory collections, finance and other back office functions as well as executive management. USA
Mobility anticipates continued staffing reductions during 2006; however the most significant reductions
occurred throughout 2005.

« Stock based compensation — Stock based compensation consists primarily of amortization of compensation
expense associated with restricted stock and options issued to certain members of management and the
Board of Directors, and the compensation cost associated with a long-term management incentive plan. USA
Mobility uses the fair-value based method of accounting for stock based compensation. Stock based
compensation decreased to $2.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $4.5 million for the
same period in 2004, primarily due to lower compensation costs associated with the Jong-term management
incentive plan, offset by the compensation expense of the grant of 103,937 shares of restricted stock to
eligible employees on June 7, 2005. ‘

« Bad debt — The increase in bad debt expenses reflected an increase of $5.0 million due to higher levels of
overall accounts receivable of the combined operations.

. Telecommunications — The increase in telecommunications expense reflects the inclusion of Metrocall
operations.

o Qutside Services — Quitside services consists primarily of costs associated with printing and mailing
invoices, outsourced customer service, temporary help and various professional fees. The increase in 2005
was due primarily to higher temporary help and professional fees due to integration related activities. In
2005 outside services also included a benefit of $1.5 million recorded in the third quarter of 2005 for the
reimbursement of legal fees under an insurance policy.

o Taxes, licenses and permits — Taxes, licenses and permits consist primarily of property, franchise and gross
receipts taxes. The increase in taxes, licenses and permits is mainly due to the inclusion of Metrocall
operations. The increase in taxes, licenses and permits expense as a percentage of revenue was due to new
gross receipts taxes in several jurisdictions and the recognition of state and local taxes resulting from billing
system conversion activities.
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* Other expenses — Other expenses consist primarily of postage and express mail costs associated with the
shipping and receipt of messaging devices of $6.6 million, repairs and maintenance associated with
computer hardware and software of $5.8 million, insurance of $4.8 million and other expenses of
$9.4 million, which increased primarily due to the merger with Metrocall.

Depreciation, Amortization and Accretion.  Depreciation, amortization and accretion expenses increased to
$131.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $107.6 million for the same period in 2004. Part of this
increase was due to depreciation and amortization expense of the tangible and intangible assets acquired from
Metrocall, of $50.5 million, partiaily offset by a decrease of $26.8 million related to groups of assets becoming fully
depreciated in legacy Arch operations. Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2003, includes
$0.2 million for assets damaged and lost due to Hurricanes Katrina and Rita.

Severance and Restructuring.  Severance and restructuring expenses increased 1o $16.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005 from $11.9 million for the same period in 2004, These expenses primarily consist of
severance charges of $15.5 million and $8.9 million for 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase consists primarily
of both actual and planned reductions in headcount due to the reorganization plan to adjust the management
structure and consolidate three sales divisions of five regions into one national sales organization consisting of
eleven regions. Also included is the $4.3 million settlement agreement with three former Arch executives that was
paid during second quarter 2005,

Restructuring charges of $1.1 million and $3.0 million for 2005 and 2004, respectively, rclate to lease
termination penalty expenses.

Impairments. ‘The Company did not record any impairments of long-lived assets, intangible assets or
goodwill in 2004 or 2003, respectively. The Company is required to evalvate goodwill of a reporting unit for
impairment at least annually and between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more
likely than not reduce the fair value of the reporting unit is below its carrying amount. For this determination the
Company as a whole is considered the reporting unit. Declines in the Company’s stock price could indicate that a
potential impairment has occurred. Such a decline could require an evaluation of impairment more frequently than
anaually.

Inrerest Expense. Net interest expense decreased to $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from
$5.9 million for the same period in 2004. This decrease was due to the repayment of Arch’s 12% notes on May 28,
2004 partially offset by $2.4 million of expense associated with the $140.0 million of debt incurred o partially fund
the cash election to former Metrocall stockholders in accordance with the terms of the merger agreement. All of the
debt incurred as a result of the merger with Metrocall was repaid in 2005.

Income Tax Expense. For the yvear ended December 31, 2005, the Company recognized $10.6 million of
income tax expense, compared to $16.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The decrease in the tax
provision between 2004 and 2005 was the result of lower pre-tax book income and non-recurring adjustments to
state deferred income tax assets.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

Based on current and anticipated levels of operations, USA Mobility anticipates net cash provided by operating
activities, together with the available cash on hand at December 31, 2006. should be adequate to meet anticipated
cash requirements for the foreseeable future.

In the event that net cash provided by operating activities and cash on hand are not sufficient to meet future
cash requirements, the Company may be required to reduce planned capital expenditures, sell assets or seek
additional financing, USA Mobility can provide no assurance that reductions in planned capital expenditures or
proceeds from asset sales would be sufficient to cover shortfalls in available cash or that additional financing would
be available on acceptable terms,
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The Company’s net cash flows from operating. investing and financing activities for the periods indicated in
the table below were as follows (dollars in thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005 to 2006

Inerease/
2004 2005 2006 {Decrease)
Net cash provided by operating activities ... .. $ 114,265 $ 139,254  §$147,242 $ 7,988
Net cash used in investing activities ... .. .. .. $(133,722) $ (13,046) $(19.365) § 6319
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
ACUVILES. . o o e $ 31,870  $(135656) $(98.917)  $(36,739)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities.  As discussed above, USA Mobility is dependent on cash flows
from operating activities to meet its cash requirements. Cash from operations varies depending on changes in
various working capital items including deferred revenues, accounts payable, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses
and various accrued expenses. The following table includes the significant cash receipt and expenditure compo-
nents of the Company’s cash flows from operating activities for the periods indicated, and sets forth the change
between the indicated periods (dollars in thousands):

For the Year Ended
December 31,

Increase/

2005 2006 (Decrease)
Cash received from customers . . .. .. ... .ot $611,779 3504371  $(107,408)

Cash paid for —

Payroll and related expenses . ... ... .. .. ...l 160.902 109,481 (51,421)
Lease payments for tower locations . ... ............... 127,739 116,244 {11.495)
Telecommunicalions EXPENSES . . . v v e v v nne e onne. . 49,047 37,460 (11,587)
TEErest BXPENSE. . o oot vt it e 2,412 34 (2,378)
Other operating expenses. . .. ... .cveiernrnnonn- 132,425 93.910 (38.515)
472,525 357.129 (115,396)

Net cash provided by operating activities. . . .............. $139,254  §147.242 § 7,988

Net cash provided by operating activities for the twelve months ended December 31. 2006 increased
$8.0 million from the same period in 2005 due primarily to the following:

« Cash received from customers decreased $107.4 million in 2006 compared to the same period in 2005. This
measure consists of revenues and direct taxes billed to customers adjusted for changes in accounts
receivable, deferred revenue and tax withholding amounts. The decrease was due primarily to revenue
decreases of $120.9 million, as discussed earlier, and a decrease in accounts receivable of $11.8 million in
2006 compared to $1.9 million increase in 2005.

+ Cash payments for payroll and related expenses decreased $51.4 million due primarily to lower payroll
expenses. The lower payroll related expense resulted from the Company’s integration and consolidation
activilies.

+ Lease payments for tower locations decreased $11.5 million. This decrease was due primarily to lower
payments for leased locations as the Company rationalized its network and negotiated lower payments under
MLAs.

« Cash used for telecommunications-related expenditures decreased $11.6 miilion in 2006 compared to the
same period in 2005, This decrease was due primarily to factors presented above in the discussions of
service, rental and maintenance expenses and general and administrative expenses as the Company has
reduced its operating expenses to support its smaller customer base.

» The decrease in interest payments for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the same period in
2005 was due to the repayment in August 2005 of the $140.0 million borrowed in November 2004 to
partially fund a portion of the cash election in conjunction with the merger of Arch and Metrocall.
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* Cash payments for other expenses primarily include repairs and maintenance, outside services, facility rents,
taxes, licenses and permits, office and various other expenses. The decrease in these payments was primarily
related to decreased balances of prepaid expenses and other current assets, lower payments for outside
services of $2.7 million, taxes, licenses and permits of $9.8 million, office expense of $0.9 million, and
repairs and maintenance expense of $4.4 million. Other expenses have decreased as the Company has
reduced overall costs to match its declining subscriber base.

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities.  Net cash used in investing activities in 2006 increased $6.3 million
from the same period in 2005 due primarily to increased capital expenditures. USA Mobility's business requires
funds to finance capital expenditures, which primarily include the purchasc of messaging devices. system and
transmission equipment and information systems. Capilal expenditures for 2006 consisted primarily of the purchase
of messaging devices and other equipment, offset by the net proceeds from the sale of assets. The amount of capital
USA Mobility will require in the future will depend on a number of factors, including the number of existing
subscriber devices to be replaced, the number of gross placements, technological developments, total competitive
conditions and the nature and timing of the Company’s strategy (o integrate and consolidate its networks.
USA Mobility anticipates its total capital expenditures for 2007 to be between $18.0 and $20.0 million, and
expects to fund such requirements from net cash provided by operating activities.

Net Cash (Used In) Provided By Financing Activities.  Net cash used in financing activities in 2006 decreased
$36.7 million from the same period in 2003, In November 2004, the Company borrowed $140.0 million to primarily
fund a portion of the cash consideration related to the Metrocall merger. The Company's use of cash in 2003 related
primarily to principal repayments of those borrowings. All of this debt was repaid in August 2005,

Cash Distributions to Stockholders.  On November 2. 2005, the Board of Directors of USA Mobility declared
a special one-time cash distribution of $1.50 per share to stockholders, with a record date of December 1, 2005, and
a payment date of December 21, 2005. This cash distribution of approximately $40.7 million was paid from
available cash on hand.

On June 7, 2006. the Board of Directors of USA Mobility declared a special one-time cash distribution of
$3.00 per share to stockholders, with a record date of June 30, 2006, and a payment date of July 21, 2006. This cash
distribution of approximately $81.4 million was paid from available cash on hand.

On August 8, 2006, the Company announced the adoption of a regular quarterly cash distribution of $0.65 per
share. On November 1, 2006. the Board of Directors of USA Mobility declared the first regular cash distribution.
with a record date of November 16, 2006, and a payment date of December 7, 2006. This cash distribution of
approximately $17.5 million was paid from available cash on hand.

On February 7, 2007, the Board of Directors of USA Mobility declared the second regular quarterly cash
distribution, with a record date February 22, 2007, and a payment date of March 15, 2007. This cash distribution will
be paid from available cash on hand.

Borrowings, At December 31, 2004, the Company had aggregate principal amount of borrowings outstand-
ing under its credit agreement of $95.0 million. During the first three quarters of 2005, the Company repaid the
remaining balance of $95.0 million on its bank credit facility in full satisfaction of its bank debt obligation. As of
December 31. 2006, the Company had no material borrowings or associated debt service requirements.

Commitments

Contractual Obligations.  As of December 31, 2006, USA Mobility’s contractual payment obligations under
its long-term debt agreements and operating leases for office and transmitter locations are indicated in the table
below, For purposes of the table below, purchase obligations are defined as agreements to purchase goods or
services that are enforceable and legally binding and that specify all significant terms, including: fixed or minimum
quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum or variable pricing provisions; and the approximate timing of
transactions. These purchase obligations primarily relate to certain telephone and information technology related
expenses. The amounts are based on the Company’s contractual commitments; however, it is possible that the
Company may be able to negotiate lower payments if it chooses 10 exit these contracts before their expiration date.
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Payments Due By Period

Less Than More Than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
(Dollars in thousands)

Long-term debt obligations and accrued interest .. 3 - % - 5 — 3% — $ —
Operating lease obligations. . .. .............. 119,782 49 467 54,108 15,280 927
Purchase obligations. .. .................... 27,480 16,427 11,053 — —
Other Liabilities ... . ... ... e .. 35,784 22,694 7,943 1,143 4,004
Total ... .. $183,046  $88,588  $73,104 $16,423 $4,931

Other Commitments. USA Mobility has a commitment to fund annual cash flow deficits, if any, of Global
Technical Engineering Solutions, LLC (“GTES"), a company in which it has a majority ownership interest, of up to
$1.5 million during the initial three-year period following the investment date of February 11, 2004. Funds may be
provided to GTES in the form of capital contributions or loans. No funding has been required through December 31,
2006. The commitment pericd expires on February 10, 2007.

USA Mobility also has various Letters of Credit (“LOCs”) outstanding with multiple state agencies. The LOCs
typically have three-year contract requirements but are renewed annually. The deposits related to these LOCs are
classified within Other Assets on the balance sheet. ’

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements. USA Mobility does not have any relationships with unconsolidated
entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities,
which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. As such, the Company is not exposed to any financing, liquidity, market
or credit risk that could arise if it had engaged in such relationships.

Contingencies. USA Mobility, from time to time, is involved in lawsuits arising in the normal course of
business. USA Mobility believes that its pending lawsuits will not have a material adverse effects on its financial
position, results of operations, or cash flows.

USA Mobility has been named as a defendant in two lawsuits. The first lawsuit involves a breach of contract
dispute with a professional service firm and claims $3.3 million in damages. USA Mobility denies all liability and
will vigorously defend the claim alleged in the lawsuit. USA Mobility believes the lawsuit is without merit and will
have no material effect on its financial results or operations. '

The second lawsuit involves billing practices and service disputes with a former customer and claims
$6.9 million in damages. USA Mobility denies all liability and will vigorously defend the claim alleged in the
lawsuit. USA Mobility believes the lawsuit is without merit and will have no material effect on its financial results
or operations.

Related Party Transactions

Effective November 16, 2004, two members of the Company’s Board of Directors also serve as directors for
entities that lease transmission tower sites to the Company. During the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006,
the Company paid $23.6 million and $10.2 million, and $17.2 million and $18.4 million, respectively, to these
landlords for rent expenses that are included in service, rental and maintenance expense. Each director has recused
himself from any discussions or decisions the Company makes on matlers relating to the respective vendor for
which he serves as a director.

Inflation

Inflation has not had a material effect on USA Mobility’s operations to date. System equipment and operating
costs have not increased in price and the price of wireless messaging devices has tended to decline in recent years.
This reduction in costs has generally been reflected in lower prices charged to subscribers who purchase their
wireless messaging devices. The Company’s general operating expenses, such as salaries, lease payments for
transmitter locatipns, employee benefits and occupancy costs, are subject to normal inflationary pressures.
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Application of Critical Accounting Policies

The preceding discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based on
USA Mobility’s consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial statements
requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues, expenses and related disclosures. On an on-going basis, the Company evaluates estimates and assump-
tions, including but not limited to those related to the impairment of long-lived assets, accounts receivable
allowances, revenue recognition, depreciation expense, asset retirement obligations, severance and restructuring
accrued liabilities and income taxes. Management bases their estimates on historical experience and various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions or conditions.

USA Mobility believes the following critical accounting policies affect its more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,
("“"SFAS No. 144"}, the Company is required to evaluate the carrying value of its long-lived assets and certain
intangible assets. SFAS No. 144 first requires an assessment of whether circumstances currently exist which suggest
the carrying value of long-lived assets may not be recoverable. At December 31, 2006, the Company did not believe
any such conditions existed. Had these conditions existed, the Company would have assessed the recoverability of
the carrying value of its long-lived assets and certain intangible assets based on estimated undiscounted cash flows
to be generated from such assets. In assessing the recoverability of these assets, the Company would have projected
estimated enterprise-level cash flows based on various operating assumptions such as average revenue per unit,
disconnect rates, and sales and workforce productivity ratios. If the projection of undiscounted cash flows did not
exceed the carrying value of the long-lived assets, USA Mobility would have been required to record an impairment
charge to the extent the carrying value exceeded the fair value of such assets.

Intangible assets were recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 141 and are being amortized over periods
generally ranging from one to five years. Goodwill was also recorded in conjunction with the Metrocall merger.
Goodwill is not amortized but will be evaluated for impairment at least annually. or when events or circumstances
suggest a potential impairment may have occurred. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets ("SFAS No. 1427), USA Mobility has selected the fourth quarter to perform this annual
impairment test. SFAS No. 142 requires the comparison of the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying
amount to determine if there is potential impairment. For this determination, USA Mobility, as a whole, is
considered the reporting unit, If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an impairment loss
is required to be recorded to the extent that the implied value of the goodwill within the reporting unit is less than the
carrying value. The fair value of the reporting unit will be determined based upon discounted cash flows, market
multiples or appraised values as appropriate.

Accounts Receivable Allowances

USA Mobility records four allowances against its gross accounts receivable balance of which the two most
significant are: an allowance for doubtful accounts and an ailowance for service credits. Provisions for these
allowances are recorded on a monthly basis and are included as a component of general and administrative expense
and a reduction of revenue, respectively. ’

Estimates are used in determining the allowance for doubtful accounts and are based on historical collection
experience, current and forecasted trends and a percentage of the accounts receivable aging categories. In
determining these percentages, the Company reviews historical write-offs, including comparisons of write-offs
to provisions for doubtful accounts and as a percentage of revenues. USA Mobility compares the ratio of the
allowance to gross receivables to historical levels and monitors amounts collected and related statistics. The
allowance for doubtful accounts was $3.6 million and $4.1 million at December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.
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While write-offs of customer accounts have historically been within the Company’s expectations and the provisions
established, USA Mobility cannot guarantee that future write-off experience will be consistent with historical
experience, which could result in material differences in the allowance for doubtful accounts and related provisions.

The allowance for service credits and related provisions is based on historical credit percentages, current credit
and aging trends and actual credit experience. The Company analyzes its past credit experience over several time
frames. Using this analysis along with current operational data including existing experience of credits issued and
the time frames in which credits are issued, the Company establishes an appropriate allowance for service credits.
The allowance for service credits was $3.4 million and $3.0 million at December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.
While credits issued have been within the Company’s expectations and the provisions established, USA Mobility
cannot guarantee that future credit experience will be consistent with histerical experience, which could result in
material differences in the allowance for service credits and related provisions.

Other allowance accounts total $1.5 million at December 31, 2006.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue consists primarily of monthly service and rental fees charged to customers on a monthly, quarterly,
semi-annual or annual basis. Revenue also includes the sale of messaging devices directly to customers and other
companies that resell the Company’s services. In accordance with the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force
Issue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables, (“EITF No. 00-21"), the Company evaluated
these revenue arrangements and determined that two separate units of accounting exist, messaging service revenue
and product sale revenue. Accordingly. effective July 1, 2003, the Company recognizes messaging service revenue
over the pertod the service is performed and revenue from product sales is recognized at the time of shipment. The
Company recognizes revenue when four basic criteria have been met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement
exists, (2) delivery has occurred or services rendered, (3) the fee is fixed or determinable and (4} collectibility is
reascnably assured. Amounts billed but not meeting these recognition criteria are deferred until all four criteria have
been met. The Company has a variety of billing arrangements with its customers resulting in deferred revenue in
advance billing and accounts receivable for billing in-arrears arrangements.

Depreciation Expense

The largest component of USA Mobility’s depreciation expense relates to the depreciation of certain of its
messaging equipment assets. The primary component of these assets is a transmitter. During the year ended
December 31, 2006, $32.0 million of the total depreciation expense of 355.6 million related to these assets.

Transmitter assets are grouped into tranches based on the Company’s transmitter decommissioning forecast
and are depreciated using the group life method. Depreciation expense is determined by the expected useful life of
each tranche of the underlying transmitter assets. That expected useful life is bused on the Company’s forecast usage
of those assets and their retirement over time and so aligns the vseful lives of these transmitter assets with their
planned removal from service. This rational and systematic method matches the underlying usage of these assets to
the underlying revenue that is generated from these assets.

Depreciation expense for these assets is subject to change based upon fluctuations in the timing of the
Company’s network rationalization plans. USA Mobility believes these estimates are reasonable at the present time,
but the Company can give no assurance that changes in technology, customer usage patterns, its financial condition,
the economy or other factors would not result in changes to the Company’s transmitter decommissioning plans. Any
variations from the Company’s estimates could result in a change in the expected useful life of the underlying
transmitter assets and operating results could differ in the future by any difference in depreciation expense.

Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,
(“SFAS No. 143"), in 2002. SFAS No. 143 requires the recognition of liabilities and corresponding assets for future
obligations associated with the retirement of assets. USA Mobility has network assets, principally transmitters that
are located on leased locations. The underlying leases generally require the removal of equipment at the end of the
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lease term; therefore, a future obligation exists. The Company has recognized cumulative asset retirement costs of
$17.4 million at both December 31, 2005 and 2006. Network assets have been increased to reflect these costs and
depreciation is being recognized over their estimated lives, which range between one and nine years. Depreciation,
amortization and accretion expense in 2006 included $1.3 million related to depreciation of these assets. The asset
retirement costs, and the corresponding liabilities, that have been recorded to date generally relate to either current
plans to consolidate networks or to the removal of assets at an estimated future terminal date.

At December 31, 2005 and 2006, accrued other expenses included $3.6 million and $4.6 million, respectively,
of asset retirement liabilities related 1o USA Mobility’s efforts to reduce the number of transmitters it operates; other
long-term liabilities included $9.9 miltion and $9.0 million, respectively, related primarily to an estimate of assets to
be removed through 2013. The primary variables associated with these estimates are the number of transmitters and
related equipment to be removed, the timing of removal, and a fair value estimate of the outside contractor fees to
remove each asset. In November 2004, this liability was increased to reflect the merger with Metrocall and the
increased transmitters acquired, the extension of the economic life of the paging network and the Company’s plans
to rationalize the Arch two-way network in 2003,

The long-term cost associated with the original assessment, the additional amount recorded due to the
Metrocall merger, and the change in estimated removal cost timing refinements due to the Metrocall merger will
accrete to a total liability of $24.4 million through 2013, The accretion will be recorded on the interest method
utilizing a 24% discount rate for the original assessment and 13% for the 2004 incremental estimates. This estimate
is based on the transmitter locations remaining after USA Mobility has consolidated the number of networks it
operates and assumes the underlying leases continue to be renewed to that future date. Depreciation, amortization
and accretion expense in 2004, 2005 and 2006 included $2.2 million, $2.9 million and $3.2 million, respectively, for
accretion expense on the asset retirement obligation liabilities.

USA Mobility believes these estimates are reasonable at the present time, but the Company can give no
assurance that changes in technology, its financial condition, the economy or other factors would not result in higher
or lower asset retirement obligations. Any variations from the Company’s estimates would generally result in a
change in the assets and liabilities in equal amounts, and operating results would differ in the future by any
difference in depreciation expense and accreted operating expense.

Severance and Restructuring Accrued Liabilities

The Company continually evaluates its staffing levels to meet its business objectives and its strategy to reduce
its cost of operations. Severance costs are reviewed periodically to determine whether a severance charge is required
to be recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 112, Employers’ Accounting for Post-employment Benefits,
(“SFAS No. 112”). The provisions of SFAS No. 112 require the Company to accrue post-employment benefits
if certain specified criteria are met. Post-employment benefits include salary continuation, severance benefits and
continuation of benefits such as health and life insurance.

From time to time, the Company will announce reorganization plans that may include eliminating positions
within the Company. Each plan is reviewed to determine whether a restructuring charge is required to be recorded in
accordance with SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities, (“SFAS No. 146”).
The provisions of SFAS No. 146 require the Company to record an estimate of the fair value of any termination costs
based on certain facts, circumstances and assumptions, including specific provisions included in the underlying
reorganization plan.

Also from time to time, the Company ceases to use certain facilities, such as office buildings and transmitter
locations, including available capacity under certain agreements, prior to expiration of the underlying lease
agreements. Exit costs are reviewed in each of these circumstances on a case-by-case basis to determine whether a
restructuring charge is required to be recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 146. The provisions of SFAS No. 146
require the Company to record an estimate of the fair value of the exit costs based on certain facts, circumstances
and assumptions, including remaining minimum lease payments, potential sublease income and specific provisions
included in the underlying lease agreements.
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Subsequent to recording such accrued liabilities, changes in market or other conditions may result in changes
to assumptions upon which the original liabilities were recorded that could result in an adjustment to the liabilities
and, depending on the circumstances, such adjustment could be material.

Income Taxes

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of tax-related
assets and liabilities and income tax expenses. The Company assesses the recoverability of its deferred income tax
assets on an ongoing basis. The assessment is required o determine whether based on all available evidence, i1 is
more likely than not that all the Company’s net deferred income tax assets will be realized in future periods. This
assessment requires Significant judgment. USA Mobility does not recognize current or future tax benefits unless it is
probable that its tax positions will ultimately be sustained.

During 2002, Arch established a valuation allowance against its net deferred income tax assets existing at its
emergence from bankruptcy because, based on information available at that time, it was considered unlikely that
deferred income tax assets would be realized. However, during the quarter ended December 31, 2003, Arch
management evaluated new facts and, based on operating income for the prior two years, repayment of notes well
ahead of schedule and anticipated operating income and cash flows for future periods, concluded it was more likely
than not that deferred income tax assets would be realized. Accordingly, Arch management determined it was
appropriate to release the valuation allowance. Because operaticnal results for the year ended December 31, 2006
were consistent with the previous Arch management’s assessment, and because the Company’s anticipated results
including additional incremental income to be generated due to the merger with Metrocall, no valuation allowance
against deferred income tax assets is required as of December 31, 2006, except for the valuation allowance against
the deferred income tax asset related to the charitable contributions carry-forward.

Under the provisions of SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, and related interpretations, reductions in
a deferred income tax asset valuation allowance that existed as of the date of fresh start accounting are first credited
against an asset established for reorganization value in excess of amounts allocable to identifiable assets, then to
other identifiable intangible assets existing at the date of fresh start accounting and then, once these assets have been
reduced to zero, credited directly to additional paid-in capital. The release of the valuation allowance reduced the
carrying value of intangible assets by $2.3 million and $13.4 million for the seven-month period ended Decem-
ber 31, 2002 and the year ended December 31, 2003, respectively. Afier reduction of intangibles recorded in
conjunction with fresh start accounting, the remaining reduction of the valuation allowance of $195.9 million was
recorded as an increase to stockhelders’ equity as of December 31, 2003.

In USA Mobility management’s judgment, the Company is more likely than not to utilize its net deferred
income tax assets of $198.6 million through reductions in tax liabilities in future periods. Recovery, however, is
dependent on the Company achieving its forecast of future operating income over a protracted period of time. As of
December 31, 2006, the Company would require approximately $516.8 million in cumulative future operating
income to be generated to utilize its net deferred income tax assets. USA Mobility will review its forecast in relation
to actual results and expected trends on an ongoing basis. Failure to achieve the operating income targets may
change the assessment regarding the recoverability of the Company's net deferred income tax assets and such
change could result in a valuation allowance being recorded against some or all of the deferred income tax assets in
the future. Any increase in a valuation allowance would result in additional income tax expense, reduce stock-
holders’ equity, and could have a significant impact on the Company’s earnings in future periods.

In accordance with provisions of the IRC, Arch was required to apply the cancellation of debt income arising in
conjunction with its plan of reorganization against tax attributes existing as of its emergence from bankruptcy date.
The method utilized to allocate the cancellation of debt income is subject to varied interpretations of tax law and it
has a material effect on the tax attributes remaining after allocation, and thus the Company’s future tax position. As
a result of the method used to allocate cancellation of debt income, Arch had no net operating losses remaining and
the tax bases of certain other tax assets were reduced as of the May 29, 2002, the date of emergence from the
Chapter 11 proceedings. Other methods of allocating the cancellation of debt income are possible based on different
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interpretations of tax law and if such other methods were applied, the amount of deductions available 10 offset past
and future taxable income might be further limited, possibly resulting in an increased income tax liability.

Recent and Pending Accounting Pronouncements

New Accounting Pronouncements — In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, (“SFAS No. 157”). Among other requirements,
SFAS No. 157 defines fair value and establishes a framework for measuring fair value and also expands disclosure
about the use of fair value to measure assets and liabilities, SFAS No, 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 135, 2007. Management has determined that SFAS No. 157 will have no material impact to the Company.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other FPost-retirement Plans, (“SFAS No. 158”). SFAS No. 158 requires employers to fully recognize the
obligations associated with single-employer defined benefit pension, retiree healthcare and other post-retirement
plans in their financial statements. SFAS No. 158 is effective as of the end of the fiscal year ending after
December 15, 2000, for entities with publicly traded securities and at the end of fiscal year ending after June 135,
2007 for all other entities. Management has determined that SFAS No. 158 will have no material impact to the
Company,

In June 20006, the FASB issued Financial Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
(“FIN 48”). FIN 48 addresses the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in financial statements in
accordance with SFAS No. 109 and clarifies the recognition threshold and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be raken on a tax return. FIN 48 becomes effective for the Company in the first quarter of 2007.
Management is currently evaluating the impact that FIN 48 will have on the Company’s financial statements.

In June 2006, the FASB ratified the EITF Issue No. 06-3, How Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted
to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement, (“EITF No. 06-3"). EITF No. 06-3
requires an entity to disclose transactional tax amounts assessed by government authorities that are considered
significant. EITF No. 06-3 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2006,
Management has determined that EITF No. 06-3 will have no impact to the Company’s disclosures.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifving Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements”, (“SAB No. 1087).
SAB No. 108 requires quantification of errors using both a balance sheet approach and an income statement
approach in the determination of materiality in relation to a misstatement. SAB No. 108 is effective the first fiscal
year ending after November 15, 2006. Management has determined that SAB No. 108 will not have a material
impact on the Company.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

At December 31, 2006, USA Mobility’s outstanding debt financing has been fully repaid.

ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The financial statements and schedules listed in Item 15(a}(1) and (2) are included in this Report beginning on
Page F-1.
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There are no reportable events.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS ANID PROCEDURES
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision-and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer
and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer concluded
that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this annual report.
There have been no significant changes in our internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect the
internal controls subsequent to the date we completed the evaluation.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting
for USA Mobility.

Internal control over financial reporting refers to a process designed by, or under the supervision of, ‘our
principal executive officer and principal financial officer, and effected by our board of directors, management and
other personnel. to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of USA Mobility;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and members of the board
of directors of USA Mobility; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting
objectives because of its inherent limitations. Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves
human diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human
failures. Internal control over financial reporting also can be circumvented by collusion or improper management
override. Because of such limitations, there is a risk that material misstatements may not be prevented or detected on
a timely basis by internal control over financial reporting. However, these inherent limitations are known features of
the financial reporting process. Therefore, it is possible to design into the process safeguards to reduce, though not
eliminate, this risk.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a
remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected.

Management evaluated the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006, using the criteria set forth in the report of the Treadway Commission’s Committee of Sponsoring Orga-
nizations (“COSQ™), Internal Control — Integrated Framework.

As a result of the evaluation, management concluded that we did maintain effective internal control over
financial reporting at December 31, 2006, based on the criteria in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued
by COSO.

Management’s assessmemnt of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financtal reporting as of
December 31, 2006, has been audited by Grant Thornton LLP, an independent registered pubtic accounting firm, as
stated in their report, which appears herein.
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Remediation of Prior Year Material Weaknesses

With regard to the material weaknesses that were previously disclosed as of December 31, 2005, they were
remediated as of December 31, 2006. Please see “Item 9A. Controls and Procedures — Management’s Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting™ and “ltem 9A. Controls and Procedures — Management’s Remediation
Initiatives” contained in our report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 and “ltem 4. Controls
and Procedures” contained in our reports on subsequent Form 10-Qs. for disclosure of information about material
weaknesses that were reported as a result of our annual assessment as of December 31, 2005 and remediation for
each item. As disclosed in the Form 10-Qs for the first three quarters of fiscal year 2006, we have implemented and
executed our remediation plans. and as of December 31. 2006, such remediation plans were successfully tested and
all material weaknesses were deemed remediated.

Changes in Internal Controt Over Financial Reporting

During the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2006, there have been no changes in the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. other than refinement and complete implementation of
controls necessary to remediate the previous years® material weaknesses discussed above. As part of the Company’s
ongoing process improvement and compliance efforts, the Company performed testing procedures on our internal
controls deemed effective at December 31, 2005 and on our internal controls implemented during fiscal year 2006.
The Company believes that its disclosure controls and procedures were operating effectively as of December 31,

2006.
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART I

Certain information called for by ltems 10 — 14 is incorporated by reference from USA Mobility's definitive
Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2007 Annuval Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission no later than April 30, 2007,

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The following information required by this item is incorporated by reference to USA Mobility’s definitive
Proxy Statement for its 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders: -

» Information regarding directors is set forth under the caption “Election of Directors™;
+ Information regarding executive officers is set forth under the caption “Executive Officers™;

* Information regarding the Company’s audit committee and designated “‘audit committee financial expert™ is
set forth under the caption “The Board of Directors and Committees™;

*» Information regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is set forth under the caption
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”.

USA Mobility has adopted a code of ethics that applies to all of the Company's senior officers including the
principal executive officer, principal financiat officer, accounting officer and controller. This code of ethics may be
found at www.usamobility.com, During the period covered by this report the Company did not request a waiver of
its code of ethics and did not grant any such waivers.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the section of USA Mobility’s definitive
Proxy Statement for its 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders entitled “Compensation Discussion and Analysis
(GBCD&Avv)O‘l.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND REIATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The Information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the section of USA Mobility’s definitive
Proxy Statement for its 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders entitled “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management”.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND REILATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The Information required by this item with respect to certain relationships and related transactions is
incorporated by reference to the section of USA Mobility’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders entitled ““Certain Relationships and Related Transactions”. The Information required by
this item with respect to director independence is incorporated by reference to the section of USA Mobility’s
definitive Proxy Statement for its 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders entitled “The Board of Directors and
Committees”.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the section of USA Mobility’s definitive
Proxy Statement for its 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders entitled “Fees and Services .

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) (1) Reporis of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2006
Consolidated Income Statements for Each of the Three Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Stockhelders’ Equity for Each of the Three Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2005
and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for Each of the Three Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule I — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(b) Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the accompanying index to exhibits are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
USA Mobility, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of USA Mobility, Inc. {a Delaware
Corporation) and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2006, and the related consolidated statements
of income, stockholders” equity, and cash flows for the period ended December 3 1, 2006. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining. on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects.
the consolidated financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2006, and the consolidated results of its
operations and its cash flows for the period ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in note | to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company adopted SFAS
No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” effective January 1, 2006.

- Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinien on the basic consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole. Schedule 1T is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
consolidated financial statements. This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0) and our report dated March 15, 2007 expressed an
unqualified opinion on management’s assessment and an unqualified opinion on internal control effectiveness.

fsf GRANT THORNTON LLP

McLean, Virginia
March 15, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
USA Mobility, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report, that USA
Mobility, Inc. {a Delaware Corporation) and subsidiaries (the Company) maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in fmternal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ). The
Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a matenial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
{COS0O) . Also, in our apinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of December 31, 2006, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the period ended
December 31, 2006 and our report dated March 15, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial
statements.

fs/  GRANT THORNTON LLP

McLean, Virginia
March 15, 2007




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
USA Mobility, Inc.:

In our opinion, the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2005 and the related consolidated statements
of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of two years in the period ended December 31, 2005 present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of USA Mobility, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31,
2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended
December 31, 2005, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule for each of the two years in the period ended
December 31, 2005 presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in
conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these
statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Qversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement preseniation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

McLean, Virginia
May 24, 2006
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USA MOBILITY, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2005 2006
(In thousands)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ... ... . .. .. . . s $ 37,547 § 66,507
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $6,952 and $8,582 in 2005 and 2006,
FESPECHIVELY .. .o 38,177 26,364
) L7 1,687 1,883
Prepaid expenses and other, . . ... ... L L e 8,973 10,411
Deferred iNCOME LAX @SSEIS . . v v v v vt v et e et ettt e et e e 18,895 18,399
TOta] CUITENL BSSEIS .« o o ot i e et et v et e it et n oo e e et et e ae s $105.279  $123,564
Property and equipment, at cost:
Land, buildings and improvements . . ......... . ... ... .. i 12,888 9.616
Paging and computer equipment . . ... ... ... e 332,741 274,115
Furniture, fixtures and vehicles. .. ... ... ... .. . e 7,385 6,858
353,014 290,589
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . .......... .. .. ... el 225,212 199,027
Property and equipment, DEL. . .. ...t 127,802 91,562
GoodWill . . . . e e e 149,478 159,438
Intangible and other assets, less accumulated amortization of $37.085 and $46,031 in
2005 and 2006, respectively . . ... e 40,654 26,339
Deferred INCOME [AX D858, . o v« ot it e e e et it e ettt ea e e 207,150 180.244
L0111 T=) g T oL -3 3,430 7,067
TOTAL ASSETS & . o e e e e e e $633,793  $588,214
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-termdebt. . ... ... .. . . . . o i $ 13§ —
Accounts payable . .. oL e 3,632 3,634
Accrued compensation and benefits .. ... ..o oL e 12,332 13,533
Accrued BetwWork COSIS . o oo vt e 6,960 3,966
ACCTUEd LAXES . o . vttt et e e e e e e s 28,891 27,493
Accrued severance and restruCturing . . . ... ..o o e e 1,856 2,744
Accrued OLHEE . . ..t e e 12,048 12,609
Distributions payable . .. ... ... C— 435
Customer deposits .. .. .. vt e 3,104 2,250
Deferred revenue . .. ... e e 17,924 16,194
Total current Habilities . . . oottt e e e e e $ 86,760 $ 82,858
Long-term debt, less current maturities. ... ... ... e — —
Other long-term liabilities .. ... ... ... . e 14,040 29,384
TOTAL LIABILITIES . o . e e et et e e $100,800  $112,242
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 8)
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Preferred stock — $0.0001 par value, no shares issued or outstanding ........... — —
Common stock — $0.0001 par value, 27.215,493 and 27,340,033 shares issued at
December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively .. ....... .. . 3 3
Addidonal paid-in capital . . .. ... .. L e 523,052 475,969
Deferred stock cOmpensation . .. ... ... ...ttt (1,754) —
Retained eamings. . . ... .. ... e 11,692 —
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY ., . . ... .. ieeaens 532,993 475,972
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY .. ................... $633,793  $588,214

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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USA MOBILITY, INC.
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2005 2006
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
Revenue:
Service, rental and maintenance, net of service credits . ... .. $ 470751 0§ 392690 § 476,138
Product sales, net of service credits . .. ................. 19,409 25,882 21,556
Total revenue. . ... oo e e 490,160 618,572 497,694
Operating expenses:
Costof products sold. .. ...... ... i, 4,347 4,483 3,837
Service, rental and maintenance . .. .......... . . ... ... 160,514 215,848 177,120
Selling and marketing . . ... ... .. .. .. L. 36,117 43,371 43,902
General and administrative. . . ... ... ... . .o, 134,507 179,784 127,877
Depreciation, amorization and accretion .. .............. 107,629 131,328 73,299
Severance and restructuring . . . ... ... L e 11,938 16,609 4,586
Total operating eXpenses .. ...............cvonaan... 455,052 591,423 430,621
Operating inCOME .. ..« .. vt i 35,108 27,149 67,073
INEETESE EXPEIISE . oot ettt et iian e e (6.365) (2,412) (34)
INterest ifCOME . . . . vt e e ettt 451 1,089 . 3,902
Loss on extinguishment of debt. . ... ...... ... .. ... ... .. (1,031) (1,338) —
Other income (EXpense). .. ... ... ..o in e g14 (1,004) 800
Income before income tax expense . ..................... 28,977 23,484 71,741
InCome tax eXpense. . . .ot {16,310 {10,57DH (31,560)
Nt IICOIMIE . . o o e e e e e e e e e $ 12,167 § 12907 % 40,181
Basic net income per common share .. ... ... .. L $ 058 $ 047 3§ 1.47
Diluted net income per common share. .. ................. 3 058 § 047 § 1.46
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding. . . ... . ... 20,839,959 27,275,040 27,399 811
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding ... .. ... 20,966,405 27427120 27,582,377
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USA MOBILITY, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Additional R Total
Common  Paid-In  Deferred Stock Treasury Retained Stockholders’
Stock Capital  Compensation Stock Earnings Equity

(In thousands, except share amounts)

Balance, January 1,2004............... $2 $318,858 $2682) $ — $10,086 $326264
Netincome....................... — —_ — — 12,167 12,167
Issuance of 7,236,868 shares of common

stock and 317,044 options to purchase

common stock in conjunction with the
Metrocall merger . .. .............. 1 216,567 (2,332) — — 214.236

Issuance of common shares to
management pursuant to plan of

reOrganizalion . . .. ......... ... ... — 669 (669) —_ —_— _
Amortization of compensation expense

associated with stock options . .. ... .. — 358 614 — — 972
Amortization of deferred stock

COMmpensation .. ................. — — 1,094 — —_ 1,094
Purchase of treasury stock ... ......... — — — G.13) — (3.113)

Treasury stock recorded from
unrecognized compensation expense of
terminated management participating in
the restricted stock plan . , .. ... ... .. — — 2,120 (2,120} - —

Retirement of treasury stock . ......... — (2,765) — 5,233 (2,468) —
Recognition of deferred tax asset for

excess stock compensation deduction . . — 4,420 — — — 4,420
Balance, December 31,2004 . ... .. ... ... _3 538,107 (1,855) — 19,785 556,040
Netincome....................... — — — — 12,907 12.907
Issuance of common stock under Equity
Incentive Plan . . ................. — 2,683 (2,614) — — 69
Exercise of stock options . .. .. ..... ... — 80 — — — 80
Tax benefit from exercise of stock
OPtIONS . . ..ttt —_ 1,647 — — — 1,647
Forfeitures of options ... ............ — (12) 12 — — —
Amortization of unearned compensation . . —_ — 2,703 — — 2,703
Tax benefit from vesting of restricted
stock. . ... — 238 — — — 238
Cash distnibutions . .. ............... = {19,691) — —  (21,000)  (40,691)
Balance, December 31,2005 . ........... _3 523,052 (1,754) — 11,692 532,993
Netincome....................... — — — — 40,181 40,181
Transfer of deferred stock compensation
upon adoption of SFAS No, 123R., . . .. - (1,754) 1,754 — — —
Issuance of common stock under Equity
Incentive Plan ., ................. — 248 — — — 248
Tax benefit from exercise of stock
options . . .. ... —_ 12 — — — 12
Stock based compensation . . . ......... — 2,454 — — — 2,454
Cash distributions .. ................ e (48,043) — — (51,873) (99,916
Balance, December 31,2006............ $3  $475969 $ — $ — $§ — $475972

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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USA MOBILITY, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31,

Cash flows from operating activities:

Netincome. .. ... i i e e s

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation, amortization and accretion . .. ........ ... ... ...
Deferred income tax expense. . ... ...,
Loss on extinguishment of long-termdebt .. .................
Amortization of deferred financing costs . . ..................
Amortization of stock based compensation. . .. ...............
Provisions for doubtful accounts and service credits . .. ... ..., ..
Loss (gain) on disposals of property and equipment . .. .........

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of merger:
Accounts receivable . ... ... L L Lo
Prepaid expenses andother . ... ... .. ... . Lo i,
Intangibles and other long-term assets . ... ..................
Accounts payable and accrued expenses. . . ... .. ... L.
Customer deposits and deferred revenue . .. ... ... ... ... ..
Other long-term liabilities . ... ... ... .. o i,

Net cash provided by operating activities . ... ...................

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment ... .....................
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment. ... ..........
Receipts from long-term notes receivable .....................
Merger of companies, net of cash acquired . . ... ... ........... ..

Net cash used in investing activities .. ......... ... .............

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of long-termdebt . ... ... . ... ... .. .. ..,
Repayment of long-termdebt . ... .. ... ... .. .. .. ... .. ... ..
Cashdistributions . . . . ... ... .. . . . e
Purchase of commonstock . . ....... ... .o i
Exercise of options . . ... ... .. e

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities . ...............

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . ............
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period . ... ...............

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period .. .....................

Supplemental disclosure:
Interest paid . . .. ... L. e

Income taxes paid (local and state) . .............. ... ... .. ...
Common stock and options issued in Metrocall merger . ..........
Liabilities assumed inmerger ... ... . ... ... .. oL

Asset retirement obligation and cost . ....... ... . L L

2004 2005 2006
(In thousands)

$ 12,167 § 12907 § 40,181
107,629 131,328 73,299
17,766 7,461 16,197
1,036 1,338 _
372 714 —
4,863 2,832 2,728
13,565 25,055 17,204
(93) 1,287 601
(2,158) {23,439) (6,816)
4,745 5,109 {395)
(4,962) 7.978 (2,746)
(28,451) (21,276) (2,651)
(8.790) (6,911) (2,584)
(3,424) (5,129) 12,224
$114265  $139254  §$147.242
(19,232) {13,499) (20,990)
2,998 168 200
27} 285 1,425
{117.759) — -
$(133,722)  $ (13,046) $(19,365)
140,000 — —
(105,017 (95,045) (13)
— (40,691) (98,904)
(3.113) — —
$ 31.870 $(135,656) 3(98917)
$ 12413 § (9.448) 3 28,960
34,582 46,995 37,547
$ 46,995 § 37,547 % 66,507
$ 6966 § 2245 § 34
$ 1729 8 562 $ —
$214236 § — 3 —
$ 57214 § — 5 —
$ 5617 % — —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial stalements.
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USA MOBILITY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

Business — USA Mobility, Inc. (“USA Mobility” or the “Company™), is a leading provider of wireless
messaging in the United States. Currently, USA Mobility provides one-way and two-way messaging services.
One-way messaging consists of numeric and alphanumeric messaging services. Numeric messaging services enable
subscribers to receive messages that are composed entirely of numbers, such as a phene number, while
alphanumeric messages may include numbers and letters, which enable subscribers to receive text messages.
Two-way messaging services enable subscribers to send and receive messages to and from other wireless messaging
devices. including pagers, personal digital assistants and personal computers. USA Mobility also offers voice mail,
personalized greeting, message storage and retrieval and equipment loss and/or maintenance protection to both one-
way and two-way messaging subscribers. These services are commonly referred to as wireless messaging and
information services. )

Organization and Principles of Consolidation — USA Mobility is a holding company formed to effect the
merger of Arch Wireless, Inc. and subsidiaries (“Arch”) and Metrocall Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries
{(“Metrocall™), which occurred on November 16, 2004 (see Note 2). Prior to the merger, USA Mobility had
conducted no operations other than those incidental to its formation. For financial reporting purposes, Arch was
deemed to be the accounting acquirer of Metrocall, The historical information for USA Mobility includes the
historical financial information of Arch for 2004 and 2005 and the acquired operations of Metrocall from
November 16, 2004. The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company
and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. Investments in affiliated companies that are less than 50% owned entities, or those in which the
Company can otherwise exercise significant influence, are accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
which include PageNet Canada, Inc. and Iris Wireless, Inc., both of which have no remaining carrying value.

Prepuaration of Financial Statements — The consolidated financial statements of USA Mobility have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and the rules and regulations of the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

Amounts shown on the consolidated income statements within the Operating Expense categories of cost of
products sold; service, rental and maintenance; selling and marketing; and general and administrative are recorded
exclusive of depreciation, amortization and accretion: and severance and restructuring charges. These items are
shown separately on the consolidated income statements within Operating Expenses.

Reclassificarions — Certain prior years’ amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year’s pre-
sentation. Those reclassifications include (1) a decrease of $40.6 million to paging and computer equipment and 1o
accumulated depreciation and amortization at December 31, 2005 associated with fully depreciated paging assets,
and (2) decreases to stock based compensation of $4.9 million and $2.8 million for the year ended December 31.
2004 and 2005, respectively, with increases to service, rental and maintenance of $0.4 million and $0.3 million
respectively, increases to selling and marketing of $0.03 million and $0.2 million respectively. and increases to
general and administrative of $4.5 million and $2.3 million respectively.

Risks and Other Important Factors — See “ltem 1A, Risk Factors” of Part | of this annual report, which
describes key risks associated with USA Mobility’s operations and industry.

Based on current and anticipated levels of operations, USA Mobility’s management believes that the
Company’s net cash provided by operating activities, together with cash on hand will be adequate to meet its
cash requirements for the foreseeable future.

In the event that net cash provided by operating activities and cash on hand are not sufficient to meet future
cash requirements, USA Mobility may be required to reduce planned capital expenditures, sell assets or seek
additional financing. USA Mobility can provide no assurance that reductions in planned capital expenditures or
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USA MOBILITY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

proceeds from asset sales would be sufficient to cover shortfalls in available cash or that additional financing would
be available or, if available, offered on acceptable terms.

USA Mobility believes that future fluctuations in its revenues and operating results may occur due to many
factors, particularly the decreased demand for its messaging services. If the rate of decline for the Company’s
messaging services exceeds ifs expectations, revenues may be negatively impacted, and such impact could be
material. USA Mobility’s plan to consolidate its networks may also negatively impact revenues as customers
experience a reduction in, and possible disruptions of, service in certain areas. Under these circumstances, USA
Mobility may be unable to adjust spending in a timely manner to compensate for any future revenue shertfall. It is
possible that, due to these fluctuations, USA Mobility’s revenue or operating results may not meet the expectations
of investors, which could reduce the value of USA Mobility’s common stock.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assels, liabilities, revenues, expenses and related disclosures. On an on-going basis,
USA Mobility evaluates its estimates and assumptions, including but not limited to those related to the impairment
of long-lived assets and goodwill, accounts receivable allowances, revenue recognition, depreciation expense, asset
retirement obligations, income taxes and severance and restructuring accrued lizbilities, USA Mobility bases its
estimates on historical expertence and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual resulis may differ from these estimates under
different assumptions or conditions.

Accounts Receivable Aflowances — USA Mobility extends trade credit to its customers for messaging
services. Service to customers is generally discontinued if payment has not been received within approximately
sixty days of billing. Once service is discontinued, accounts are subject to internal and external collection activities.
If these efforts are unsuccessful, the account is written off, which generally occurs within 120 days of billing.
USA Mobility records two material allowances against its gross accounts receivable balance: an allowance for
doubtful accounts and an allowance for service credits. Provisions for these allowances are recorded on a monthly
basis and are included as a component of general and administrative expense and a reduction of revenue,
respectively.

Estimates are used in determining the allowance for doubtful accounts and are based on historical collection
experience, current and forecasted trends and a percentage of the accounts receivable aging categories. In
determining these percentages historical write-offs are reviewed, including comparisons of write-offs to provisions
for doubtful accounts and as a percentage of revenues. The ratio of the allowance 1o gross receivables is compared to
historical levels and amounts collected and related statistics are monitored. The allowance for doubtful accounts
was $3.6 million and $4.1 million at December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

The allowance for service credits and related provisions is based on historical credit percentages, current credit
and aging trends and actual credit experience. The Company analyzes its past credit experience over several time
frames. Using this analysis along with current operational data including existing experience of credits issued and
the time frames in which credits are issued, the Company establishes an appropriate allowance for service credits.
The allowance for service credits was $3.4 millien and $3.0 million at December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Other allowances total $1.5 million at December 31, 2006.
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USA MOBILITY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
Long-Lived Assets — Leased messaging devices sold or otherwise retired are removed from the accounts at

their net book value using the weighted-average method. Property and equipment is depreciated using the straight-
line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Useful Life
Asset Classification - (In Years)
Buildings and improvements . ... ... e e e 20
Leasehold improvements . ......... .. ...ttt i, Shorter of 3 or

Lease Term

Messaging devices . . .. ... ... . .. e 1-2
Messaging and cOMpUtEr eqUIPMENt , . . . . . . ..o\ttt e e 1.25-9

Furniture and fiXtUres. . . . .. o0 e 5

USA Mobility calculates depreciation on certain of its messaging equipment assets using the group life
method; accordingly, ordinary asset retirements and disposals are charged against accumulated depreciation with
no gain or loss recognized.

Depreciation Expense — The largest component of USA Mobility’s depreciation expense relates to the
depreciation of certain of its messaging equipment assets, The primary compenent of these assets is a transmitter.
During the year ended December 31, 2006, $32.0 million of the total depreciation expense of $55.6 million related
to these assets.

Transmitter assets are grouped tnto tranches based on the Company’s transmitter decommissioning forecast
and are depreciated using the group life method. Depreciation expense is determined by the expected useful life of
each tranche of the underlying transmitter assets. That expected useful life is based on the Company’s forecast usage
of those assets and their retirement over time and so aligns the useful lives of these transmitter assets with their
planned removal from service, This rational and systematic method matches the underlying usage of these assets to
the underlying revenue that is generated from these assets.

Impairments — The Company did not record any impairments of long-lived assets, intangible assets or
goodwill in 2005 or 2006, respectively. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™)
No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (“SFAS No. 144™), USA Mobility is
required to evaluate the carrying value of its long-lived assets and certain intangible assets. SFAS No. 144 first
requires an assessment of whether circumstances currently exist which suggest the carrying value of long-lived
assets may not be recoverable. At December 31, 2005 and 2006, the Company did not believe any such conditions
existed. Had these conditions existed, USA Mobility would have assessed the recoverability of the carrying value of
the Company’s long-lived assets and certain intangible assets based on estimated undiscounted cash flows to be
generated from such assets. In assessing the recoverability of these assets, USA Mobility would have projected
estimated cash flows based on vartous operating assumptions such as average revenue per unit, disconnect rates, and
sales and workforce productivity ratios. If the projection of undiscounted cash flows did not exceed the carrying
value of the long-lived assets, USA Mobility would have been required to record an impairment charge to the extent
the carrying value exceeded the fair value of such assets.

Goodwill. is not amortized and will be evaluated for impairment at least annually, or when events or
circumstances suggest a potential impairment may have occurred. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets, (“"SFAS No. 142"), USA Mobility has selected the fourth quarter to perform its annual
impairment test. SFAS No. 142 requires USA Mobility to compare the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying
amount on an annual basis to determine if there is a potential impairment. For this determination, the Company, as a
whole, is considered the reporting unit. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an
impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the implied value of the goodwill within the reporting unit is less than
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USA MOBILITY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

the carrying value. The fair value of the reporting unit is determined based on discounted cash flows, market
multiples or appraised values as appropriate.

Declines in the Company's stock price could indicate that a potential impairment has occurred. Such a decline
could require an evaluation of impairment more frequently than annually.

Other intangible assets were recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition and amortized over periods
generaily ranging from one to five years.

Revenue Recognition — USA Mobility’s revenue consists primarily of monthly service and rental fees
charged to customers on a monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual basis. Revenue also includes the sale of
messaging devices directly to customers and other companies that resell the Company’s services. In accordance
with the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables. (“EITF No. 00-21"), the Company evaluated these revenue arrangements and determined that two
separate units of accounting exist, messaging service revenue and product sale revenue. Accordingly, the Company
recognizes messaging service revenue over the period the service is performed and revenue from product sales is
recognized at the time of shipment. The Company recognizes revenue when four basic criteria have been met:
(1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (2) delivery has occurred or services rendered. (3) the fee is fixed
or determinable and (4) collectibility is reasonably assured. Amounts billed but not meeting these recognition
criteria are deferred until all four criteria have been met. The Company has a variety of billing arrangements with its
customers resulting in deferred revenue in advance billing and accounts receivable for billing in-arrears
arrangements.

USA Mobility’s customers may subscribe to one-way or two-way messaging services for a monthly service fee
which is generally based upon the type of service provided, the geographic area covered, the number of devices
provided to the customer and the period of commitment. Voice mail, personalized greeting and equipment loss
and/or maintenance protection may be added to either one-way or two-way messaging services, as applicable, for an
additional monthly fee. Equipment loss protection allows subscribers who lease devices to limit their cost of
replacement upon loss or destruction of a messaging device. Maintenance services are offered to subscribers who
own their device.

In June 2005, the Company announced an alliance with Advanced Metering Data Systems, LLC (“"AMDS")
and Sensus Metering Systems (“Sensus™) to provide meter-monitoring services over a narrow-band PCS network.
The Company agreed to sell one of its FCC licenses and to provide tower space and other custom network services
to AMDS. On August 29, 2005, the FCC approved the license sale. Closing occurred on October 12, 2005. Proceeds
from these sales included a note receivable of $1.5 million and a royalty of 1% to 3% of net monitoring revenue
derived from the use of the FCC license. The Company did not consider collectibility of the proceeds to be
reasonably assured. As such, the Company recognized the gain on sale of the license through Other Income, as the
monthly payments were made. Proceeds of $0.3 million were recognized as received in Other Income during the
period Qctober 12, 2005 to May 31. 2006. Revenue relating to the ancillary services agreement is recognized as
earned as part of Service, Rental and Maintenance revenue.

On June 2, 2006, Sensus acquired substantially all of the assets and assumed certain liabilities of AMDS. Due
to this change in control, the balance outstanding on the AMDS note receivable has been paid. Sensus assumed
AMDS’ obligation to pay the balance of AMDS’ royalty fees in accordance with the original agreement and agreed
to pay the full amount of the note in July 2006. With subsequent collection of total proceeds in July, all four of the
criteria for revenue recognition were met and the Company recognized in June 2006 $1.2 million in Other Income
with respect to the AMDS note receivable.

Shipping and Handling Costs — USA Mobility incurs shipping and handling costs to send and receive
messaging devices to/from its customers. These costs are included in general and administrative expense and
amounted to $4.5 million, $4.9 million and $4.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006,
respectively.
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Advertising Expenses — USA Mobility incurs advertising expenses to support the Company’s marketing
goals. These costs are expensed as incurred and are included in selling and marketing and general and admin-
istrative expenses. These costs amounted to $0.6 million annually for each of the years ended December 31, 2004,
2005 and 2006.

Cash Eguivalents — Cash equivalents include short-term, interest-bearing instruments purchased with
remaining maturities of three months or less.

Sales and Use Taxes — Sales and use taxes imposed on the ultimate consumer are excluded from revenue
where the Company is required by law or regulation to act as collection agent for the taxing jurisdiction,

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — US A Mobility’s financial instruments, as defined under SFAS No, 107,
Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, include its cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable
and bank debt. The fair value of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable are equal 1o their carrying values at
December 31, 2005 and 2006. At December 31, 2006, there is no debt outstanding.

Stock-Based Compensarion — Effective January 1, 2003, compensation expense associated with options and
restricted shares of common stock (“restricted stock™) is being recognized in accordance with the fair value
provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock Based Compensation, (“SFAS No. 1237), over the instruments’
vesting period. The transition to these provisions was accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the provisions
of SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, utilizing the prospec-
tive method.

On January 1, 2006 the Company implemented the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, Shared Based Payment,
(“SFAS No. 123R”). The implementation of SFAS No. 123R. including the cumulative effect of changes in expense
attribution, did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations. The
Company has followed the modified prospective transition election, In addition, the Company transferred the
balance of deferred stock compensation in the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity to additional paid-
in capital on January 1, 2006 as required by SFAS No. 123R.

Severance and Restruciuring Accrued Liabilities — The Company continually evaluates its staffing levels to
meet its business objectives and its strategy to reduce its cost of operations. Severance costs are reviewed
periodically to determine whether a severance charge is required to be recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 112,
Employers’ Accounting for Post-employinent Benefits, (“SFAS No. 1127). The provisions of SFAS No. 112 require
the Company to accrue post-employment benefits if certain specified criteria are met. Post-employment benefits
include salary continuation, severance benefits and continuation of benefits such as health and life insurance.

From time to time, the Company will announce reorganization plans that may include eliminating positions
within the Company. Each plan is reviewed to determine whether a restructuring charge is required to be recorded in
accordance with SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities, (“SFAS No. 146”).
The provisions of SFAS No. 146 require the Company to recerd an estimate of the fair value of any termination costs
based on certain facts, circumstances and assumptions, including specific provisions included in the underlying
reorganization plan,

Also from time to time, the Company ceases 1o use certain facilities, such as office buildings and transmitter
locations, including available capacity under certain agreements, prior to expiration of the underlying lease
agreements. Exit costs are reviewed in each of these circumstlances on a case-by-case basis (o determine whether a
restructuring charge is required to be recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 146. The provisions of SFAS No. 146
require the Company to record an estimate of the fair value of the exit costs based on certain facts, circumstances
and assumptions, including remaining minimum lease payments, potential sublease income and specific provisions
included in the underlying lease agreements.
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Subsequent o recording such accrued liabilities, changes in market or other conditions may result in changes
to assumptions upon which the original accrued liabilities were recorded that could result in an adjustment to the
accrued liabilities and, depending on the circumstances, such adjustment could be material.

Income Taxes — USA Mobility accounts for income taxes under the provisions of SFAS No. 109, Accounting
for Income Taxes, (“SFAS No. 1097). Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the
difference between the financial statement bases and the income tax bases of assets and liabilities, given the
provisions of enacted laws. The Company would provide a valuation allowance against net deferred income tax
assets if, based on available evidence, it is more likely than not the deferred income tax assets will not be realized
(see Note 6).

New Accounting Pronouncements — In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, (“SFAS No. 157"). Among other requirements,
SFAS No. 157 defines fair value and establishes a framework for measuring fair value and also expands disclosure
about the use of fair value to measure assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. Management has determined that SFAS No. 157 will have no material impact to the Company,

Tn September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Post-retirement Plans, (“SFAS No. 158”). SFAS No. 158 requires employers to fully recognize the
obligations associated with single-employer defined benefit pension, retiree healthcare and other post-retirement
plans in their financial statements. SFAS No. 158 is effective as of the end of the fiscal year ending after
December 15, 2006, for entities with publicly traded securities and at the end of fiscal year ending after June 135,
2007 for all other entities. Management has determined that SFAS No. 158 will have no material impact to the
Company.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Financial Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
{“FIN 48™). FIN 48 addresses the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in financial statements in
accordance with SFAS No. 109 and clarifies the recognition threshold and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken on a tax return. FIN 48 becomes effective for the Company in the first quarter of 2007.
Management is currently evaluating the impact that FIN 48 will have on the Company’s financial statements.

In June 2006, the FASB ratified the EITF Issue No. 06-3, How Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted
to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement, (“EITF No. 06-3). EITF No. 06-3
requires an entity to disclose transactional tax amounts assessed by government authorities that are considered
significant. EITF No. 06-3 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2006.
Management has determined that EITF No. 06-3 will have no impact to the Company’s disclosures.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements”, (“SAB No. 1087).
SAB No. 108 requires quantification of errors using both a balance sheet approach and an income statement
approach in the determination of materiality in relation to a misstatement. SAB No. 108 is effective the first fiscal
year ending after November 15, 2006. Management has determined that SAB No. 108 will not have a material
impact on the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

2. Merger of Arch and Metrocall

" USA Mobility, a holding company, was formed to effect the merger of Arch and Metrocall, which occurred on
November 16, 2004. The merger was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. Arch was the
accounting acquirer. Accordingly, the basis of Arch’s assets and liabilities as of the acquisition date are reflected in
the balance sheet of USA Mobility at their historical basis. Amounts allocated 1o Metrocall’s assets and liabilities
were based upon the total purchase price and the estimated fair values of such assets and liabilities. The results of
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operations of Metrocall have been included in the USA Mobility results from November 16, 2004; therefore, the
results presented for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005 include results associated with Metrocall from
the merger date.

USA Mobility expects to achieve operating and other synergies through elimination of redundant overhead and
duplicative network structures. Subsequent to the merger, the Company began an extensive review of all operating
systems, the rationalization of the one-way and two-way messaging networks, and the composition of the sales
force. The Company expects to continue its reviews through 2007 and beyond as it deconstructs networks and
standardizes its systems. In this process, the Company has incurred and expects to incur additional costs,

3. Long Lived Assets

Property and Equipment — Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense related to property and equip-
ment for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2006, respectively, was as follows (in thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31,

2004 2005 2006
Depreciation ... ... .. ... .. e 510,713 $104,127 855,613
AMOrtizZation . . .. ... ... .. e 3,718 24,313 14,526
A CCTERION . L L e e e e 2,198 2,888 3,160

$107,629  $131,328  $73,299

The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations
{“SFAS No. 1437), in 2002. SFAS No. 143 requires the recognition of liabilities and corresponding assets for
future obligations associated with the retirement of assets. USA Mobility has network assets that are located on -
leased locations. The underlying leases generally require the removal of equipment at the end of the lease term;
therefore a future obligation exists. The Company has recognized cumulative asset retirement costs of $17.4 million
at both December 31, 2005 and 2006. Network assets have been increased to reflect these costs and depreciation is
being recognized over their estimated lives, which range between one and nine years. Depreciation, amortization
and accretion expense for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 included $1.6 million, $3.5 million
and $1.3 million, respectively, related to depreciation of these assets. The asset retirement costs, and the
corresponding liabilities, that have been recorded to date generally relate to either current plans to consolidate
networks or to the removal of assets through 2013.

The components of the changes in the asset retirement obligation balances for the year ended December 31,
2006 were as follows (in thousands):

Current Portion Long-Term Portion
{Dollars in thousands)

Balance at December 31,2005. .. .. .. ... ... .. $ 3,608 $ 9,924
Accretion . . ....... ... .. e 498 2,662
Amounts paid . ... ... e (3,168) —
Reclassifications .. ..........c. v 3,631 (3,631)
Balance at December 31,2006. ... ... ... ... ... ... ..... $ 4,569 % 8,955

The balances above were included in accrued other and other long-term liabilities, respectively, at
December 31, 2006.

The primary variables associated with the estimate are the number and timing of wansmitters and related
equipment o be removed, the timing of removal, and a fair value estimate of the outside contractor fees to remove
each asset. In November 2004, this liability was increased to reflect the merger with Metrocal! and the increased
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transmitters acquired, the extension of the economic life of the paging network and the Company’s plans to
rationalize the Arch two-way network through 2005. In addition, the obligation was increased by the cost associated
with rationalization of the combined one-way network.

The long-term asset retirement cost associated with the original assessment, the additional amount recorded
due 10 the Metrocall merger, and the refinements of the estimated removal cost timing due to the Metrocall merger
will accrete to a total liability of $24.4 million through 2013. The accretion will be recorded on the interest method
utilizing a 24% discount rate for the original assessment and 13% for the 2004 incremental estimates. This estimate
is based on the transmitter locations remaining after USA Mobility has consolidated the number of networks it
operates and assumes the underlying leases continue to be renewed to that future date. Depreciation, amortization,
and accretion expense in 2004, 2005 and 2006 included $2.2 million, $2.9 million and $3.2 million, respectively, for
accretion expense on the asset retirement obligation liabilities.

Effective November 16, 2004, USA Mobility revised the estimated depreciable lives of certain of its messaging
equipment assets from five years to a range of one to approximately ten years. The changes in useful life resulted
from the timing of USA Mobility’s network rationalization program due to the inerger with Metrocall and aligned
the useful lives of these-assets with their planned removal from service. As a result of this prospective change
depreciation expense decreased approximately $0.7 million in the fourth quarter 2004.

Effective October 1, 2006, USA Mobility revised the estimated depreciable life of certain of its messaging
equipment assets, which are depreciated under the group method. This change in useful life resulted from changes
to the timing of the Company’s network rationalization program, in order to align the useful lives of these assets
with their planned removal from service. As a result of this change, depreciation expense decreased approximately
$0.1 million in the fourth quarter of 2006.

Goodwill and Amortizable Intangible Assets — Goodwill of $159.4 million at December 31, 2006 resulted
from the purchase accounting related to the Metrocall acquisition (see Note 2). Based on EITF 93-7, Uncertainties
Related to come Taxes in a Purchase Business Combination, goodwill increased by $10.0 million during the
fourth quarter of 2006 due to a change in management’s estimate of the ultimate tax basis of the deferred income tax
assets acquired in the purchase of Metrocall.

Other intangible assets were recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition and amortized over periods
generally ranging from one to five years. Amortizable intangible assets are comprised of the following at
December 31, 2006 (in thousands): )

Useful Life Gross Carrying Accumulated

(in Years) Amount Amortization Net Balance

Purchased subscriber lists . . . ........... 5 $68,775 $(43,266) $25,509
Purchased Federal Communications

Commission licenses. . . ............. 5 3,527 2,718) 809

Other . . ... e e s i 68 47) 21

72,370 (46,031) 26,339

Deferred financing costs. .............. 2- — — —

$72.370 $(46,031) $26.339
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Amortizable intangible assets are comprised of the following at December 31, 2005 (in thousands):

Useful Life  Gross Carrying  Accumulated

(in Years} Amount Amortization Net Balance
Purchased subscriber lists . . . ........... 5 368,593 $(29,043) $39,550
Purchased Federal Communications
Commission licenses. . . ............. 5 3,527 (2.436) 1,091
Other. . ... ... e } 2,160 (2,147) 13
74,280 (33,626) 40,654
Deferred financing costs. .. ............ 2 3,459 (3,459) —
$77.739 $(37,085) $40.654

Aggregate amortization expense for other intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and
2006 was $3.7 million, $24.3 million and $14.5 million respectively. The estimated amortization expense, based on
current intangible balances, is $9.5 million, $9.0 million and $7.8 million, for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2008 and 2009, respectively. No amortization expense is expected to be charged in 2010 or 2011.

The amortization of deferred financing costs of $1.4 million in 2004 and $0.8 million in 2005 were included
with interest expense. Due to early payment of the borrowings under the credit facility, $1.3 million of deferred
financing cosis were reported as a loss on extinguishment of debrt in 2005.

4. Long-term Debt

Debt consisted of the following (in thousands):
For the Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Borrowings under credit agreement . . . . 5— $— — $—
Other . ....... .. ... ... ... ... 13 13 .
13 —_
Less — Current maturities . . ..., . ... 13 o
Long-term debt .................. $— $—

5. Stockholders’ Equity
General

The authorized capital stock of the Company consists of 75 million shares of common stock and 25 million
shares of preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share.

At December 31, 2005 and 2006, there were 27,215,493 and 27,340,033 shares of common stock and no shares
of preferred stock outstanding, respectively. In addition, at December 31, 2006 there were 269,139 shares of
common stock reserved for issuance from time to time to satisfy general unsecured claims under the Arch plan of
reorganization,

For financial reporting purposes, the number of shares reserved for issuance uvnder the Arch plan of
reorganization has been included in the Company’s reported outstanding shares balance.

Cash Distributions ro Stockholders — On November 2, 2005, the Board of Directors of USA Mobility
declared a special one-time cash distribution of $1.50 per share to stockholders, with a record date of December |,
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2005, and a payment date of December 21, 2005. This cash distribution of approximately $40.7 million was paid
from available cash on hand.

On June 7, 2006, the Board of Directors of USA Mobility declared a special one-time cash distribution of
$3.00 per share to stockholders, with a record date of June 30, 2006, and a payment date of July 21, 2006. This cash
distribution of approximately $81.4 million was paid from available cash on hand.

On August 8, 2006, the Company announced the adoption of a regular quarterly cash distribution of $0.65 per
share. On November 1, 2006, the Board of Directors of USA Mobility declared the first regular cash distribution,
with a record date of November 16, 2006, and a payment date of December 7, 2006, This cash distribution of
approximately $17.5 million was paid from available cash on hand.

On February 7, 2007, the Board of Directors of USA Mobility declared the second regular quarterly cash
distribution, with a record date of February 22, 2007, and a payment date of March 15, 2007. This cash distribution
will be paid from available cash on hand.

Arch Wireless, Inc. New Common Stock — Upon the effective date of the Arch plan of reorganization, all of the
Arch Predecessor Company’s preferred and common stock, and all stock options were cancelled. The Reorganized
Company's authorized capital stock consisted of 50,000,000 shares of common stock. Each share of common stock
had a par value of $0.001 per share. As of December 31, 2003, Arch had issued and outstanding 19,483,477 shares
of common stock and the remaining 516,523 shares were reserved for issuance under Arch’s plan of reorganization,
to be issued from time to time, as unsecured claims were resolved. Approximately 269,139 of these shares remain at
December 31, 2006, to be issued pursuant to Arch’s plan of reorganization. All 20,000,000 shares were deemed
issued and outstanding for accounting purposes at December 31, 2003. All shares of Arch Wireless, Inc. new
common stock were exchanged for a like number of shares of USA Mobility common stock.

Additional Paid in Capital — On November 16, 2004, additional paid in capital increased by approximately
$216.6 million due to the exchange of the Company's stock and options for outstanding Metrocall common stock
and options (see Note 2). During December 2003, additional paid in capital decreased by $19.7 million as a result of
the cash distribution to stockholders discussed above. During the year ended December 31, 2006, additional paid in
capital decreased by $48.0 million as a result of the cash distributions to stockholders discussed above.

Earning Per Share — Basic earnings per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average common
shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average common shares
outstanding plus the effect of outstanding stock options and outstanding restricted stock using the “treasury stock”
method plus the effect of outstanding restricted stock units, which are treated as contingently issuable shares. The
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components of basic and diluted earnings per share were as follows (in thousands, except share and per share
amounts):

For the Year Ended December 31,
2004 2005 2006

Net INCOME .. ... . e e e e $ 12,167 % 12,907 $ 40,181

Weighted average shares of commeon stock
outstanding . . .. ... .. L 20,839,959 27,275,040 27,399,811

Dilutive effect of:
Options to purchase common stock, restricted stock

and restricted stock units. . .. ... ... .. ... .. .. 126,446 152,080 182,566
Weighted average shares of common stock and

common stock equivalemts. . ............. ... .. 20,966,405 27,427,120 27,582,377
Eamnings per share

Basic ... ... e b 058 % 047 % 1.47

Diluted. . ... .. $ 058 % 047 § 1.46

Arch 2002 Stock Incentive Plan

Restricted Stock — The Arch 2002 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended, authorized the grant of up to 1.2 million
shares of common stock of the Reorganized Company to be issued pursuant to the Arch plan of reorganization. On
May 29, 2002, November 5, 2002 and June 27, 2003, 882,200, 17,800 and 29,257 shares respectively were issued at
$0.001 per share, to certain members of Arch management. On both May 29, 2003 and 2004, 316,998 shares vested,
and 42,344 shares vested on May 29, 2005,

Any unvested shares granted under the 2002 Swock Incentive Plan are subject to repurchase by Arch or the
Company at the issue price of $0.00% per share if the employment of an employee entitled to such grant is
terminated for any reason other than, in the case of Arch’s chief executive officer, its president and chief operating
officer and its executive vice president and chief financial officer, a change of control. In 2004, Arch and the
Company repurchased 273,658 shares from terminated employees. As of December 31, 2006, there were no
remaining shares under this plan.

The fair value of the shares listed above totaled $5.4 million and was being recognized ratably over the three-
year vesting period. $1.1 million and $0.1-million were included in stock based and other compensation for the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively in relation to these shares.

Stock Options — On June 12, 2003, Arch’s stockholders approved an amendment to the 2002 Stock Incentive
Plan that increased the number of shares of common stock authorized for issuance under the plan from 950,000 to
1,200,000. In connection with the amendment to the plan, options to purchase 249,996 shares of common stock at an
exercise price of $0.001 per share and 10 year term were issued to certain members of the board of directors. The
options vested 50% upon issuance and the remaining 50% vested on May 29, 2004. The compensation expense
associated with these options of $1.7 million was recognized in accordance with the fair value provisions of
SFAS No. 123 over the vesting period, $1.3 million of which was recognized in 2003 and $0.4 million of which was
recognized in 2004. The compensation expense was calculated utilizing the Black-Scholes option valuation model
assuming: a risk-free interest rate of 1%, an expected life of 1.5 years, an expected dividend yield of zero and an
expected volatility of 79% which resulted in a fair value per option granted of $6.65. On November 16, 2004, all
options outstanding under the stock option plan were converted into a like number of options to purchase shares of
USA Mobility common stock.
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The Arch Predecessor Company had stock option plans which provided for the grant of incentive and
nonqualified stock options to key employees, directors and consultants to purchase commeon stock. Incentive stock
options were granted at exercise prices not less than the fair market value on the date of grant. Options generally
vested over a five-year period from the date of grant. However, in certain circumstances, options were immediately
exercisable in full. Options generally had a duration of 10 years. All outstanding options under these plans were
terminated in accordance with Arch’s plan of reorganization.

USA Mobility, Inc. — In connection with the merger of Arch and Metrocall, options to purchase 83,332 shares
of Arch common stock were converted into the same number of options to purchase Company common stock at an
exercise price of $0.001 per share. All of these options are fully vested.

Options to purchase 169,000 shares of Metrocall common stock were converted into options to purchase
317,044 shares of Company common stock at an exercise price of $0.302 per share. The Metrocall options
converted into USA Mobility options and vested on May 6, 2005. The fair value of these options was $9.0 million
which was calculated using the Black-Scholes option valuation model assuming a risk free interest rate of 1.0%. an
expected life of 5.7 months, an expected dividend yield of zero, and an expected volatility of 79% which resulted in
a fair value per option grant of $28.40, Compensation expense of $2.3 million associated with the remaining vesting
period was recognized over 5.7 months; $0.6 million of which was recognized for the November 16, 2004 to
December 31, 2004 period; $1.7 million of which was recognized in the year ended December 31, 2005.

The following table summarizes the activities under the USA Mobility and Arch stock option plans for the
periods presented:

Weighted
Number Average
of Exercise
Options Price
Arch options outstanding at January 1,2004. . .. ... ... .. ... ... . ... 249996  $0.001
EXerCiSEd . . . ottt e e e e e e e (166,664} 0.001
Arch options outstanding as of November 16, 2004 converted into USA
Mobility options .. ... .. ... 83.332 0.001
Metrocall options converted into USA Mobility options ... .............. 317,044 0.302
Terminaled . ... e e (31,422) 0.302
EXerCised. . o oot et e e e e e e (76,267 0.066
USA Mobility options outstanding at December 31,2004 . .. ... ... ... .. 292,687 0.278
Terminated . ... .. e e e (2.814) 0.302
EXercised. . o o e e e e e (287,892) 0.230
Granted . ... : - -
USA Mobility options outstanding at December 31,2005, ............... 1,981 0.001
Terminated . ... ... .. e e e o — —
EXerCiSed. . o o e e e e e (1.981) 0.001
Granted . . .. ... e e — —
USA Mobility options outstanding at December 31,2006 . ... ............ — 5 —
USA Mobility options exercisable at December 31,2006 ... .. ........... — $ —

As of December 31, 2006 there were no options fully vested and exercisable. In May 2006, 1,981 options were
exercised. Any disclosure requirements under SFAS No. 123 related to stock options are not required due to
imrmateriality.
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USA Mobility, Inc. Equity Incentive Plan

In connection with and prior to the merger, the Company established the USA Mobility, Inc. Equity Incentive
Plan (“Equity Plan”). Under the Equity Plan, the Company has the ability to issue up to 1,878,976 shares of its
common stock to eligible employees and non-employee members of its Board of Directors in the form of common
stock, stock options, restricted stock. stock grants or units. Restricted stock awarded under the plan entitle the
stockholder to all rights of common stock ownership except that the shares may not be sold. transferred, exchanged,
or otherwise disposed of during the restriction period, which will be determined by the Compensation Committee of
the Board of Directors of the Company.

The following table summarizes the activities under the Equity Plan:

_Activity
Securities approved under Equity Plan(a) . . ... ..., ... .. .. ... . ... . . 1,878,976
Less: Restricted Stock Issued to Management
2005 Granl . ... e e e e e e e (103,937}
2000 Grant . ... ... i (132,572)
Restricted Stock Units Issued to Board of Directors(b} . ............ .. ......... (8,426)
Common Stock Issued to Board of Directors(c) .. ... oot . (6,479)
Add: Restricted Stock Forfeited by Management
2005 Grant . ..o e e e e e e 21,450
2000 GIant . . ..ottt i e e e e 7,393
Total available at December 31, 2006. . . . . . . 1,656.405

{a) The Equity Plan provides that Common Stock authorized for issuance under the plan may be issued in the form
of common stock, options, restricted stock and restricted stock units.

(b) Restricted stock units issued to the members of the Board of Directors in 2006 for services performed, of which
878 restricted stock units relate to distributicns.

{c) Common shares issued in lieu of cash payment to the members of the Board of Directors for services
performed.

Restricted Stock — On June 7, 2003, the Company awarded 103,937 shares of restricted stock to certain
eligible employees. Effective November 2, 2003, the Board of Directors amended the vesting schedule for the
restricted stock. The vesting date for the initial two-thirds of the restricted shares for each eligible employee is
January 1, 2007, and the remainder will vest ratably over the course of the next year, such that as of January 1, 2008,
100% of the restricted stock awards would be fully vested. The Company used the fair-value based method of
accounting for the award and will ratably amortize the $2.2 million to expense over the vesting period. A total of
$0.6 million and $1.5 mitlion was included in stock based and other compensation for the year ended December 31,
2005 and 2006, respectively, in relation to these shares.

Any unvested shares granted under the Equity Plan are forfeited if the participant terminates employment with
USA Mobility. In 2005 and 2006, 15,835 and 5,615 shares were forfeited, respectively. As of December 31, 2006,
there were 55,616 remaining shares scheduled to vest on January 1, 2007; and 26,871 remaining shares are
scheduled to vest ratably over the course of the following year, such that all shares awarded are scheduled to fully
vest by January 1, 2008.

Additionally, on February 1, 2006, the Company awarded 127,548 shares of restricted stock 10 certain eligible
employees. The vesting date for the restricted shares is January 1, 2009. An additional 5,024 shares were granted
during the second quarter of 2006. The Company used the fair-value based method of accounting for the award and
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will ratably amortize the $3.5 million to expense over the vesting period. A total of $1.0 million was included in
stock based compensation for the year ended December 31, 2006, in relation to these shares,

Any unvested shares granted under the Equity Plan are forfeited if the participant terminates employment with
USA Mobility. During 2006, 7,393 shares were forfeited. As of December 31, 2006, there were 125,179 shares
scheduled to fully vest by January 1, 2009.

Also on February 1, 2006, the Company awarded long-term incentive cash bonuses to the same certain eligible
employees. The vesting date for these long-term incentive cash bonuses is January 1, 2009. The Company will
ratably amortize the $3.6 million to expense over the vesting period. A total of $1.1 million was included in payroll
and related expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006, in relation to these long-term incentive cash bonuses.
Any unvested long-term incentive cash bonuses are forfeited if the participant terminates employment with USA
Mobility.

Restricted Stock Units — On May 3, 2006, the Board of Directors granted the non-executive Directors
restricted stock units in addition to cash compensation of $40,000 per year ($50,000 for the chair of the Audit
Comimitlee), payable quarterly. Restricted stock units will be granted quarterly under the Equity Plan pursuant to a
Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, based upon the closing price per share of the Company’s common stock at the end
of each quarter, such that each non-executive Director will receive $40,000 per year of restricted stock units
($50,000 for the chair of the Audit Committee), to be issued on a quarterly basis.

On June 30, 2006, USA Mobility awarded 4,372 restricted stock units to the Company’s outside directors.
These restricted stock units are fully vested on the date of grant, June 30, 2006. On October 2, 2006, USA Mobility
awarded 3,176 restricted stock units to the Company’s outside directors. These restricted stock units are fully vested
on the date of grant, October 2, 2006. On January 2, 2007, USA Mobility awarded 3,241 restricted stock units to the
Company’s outside directors. These restricted stock units are fully vested on the date of grant, January 2, 2007. No
shares are issued until the earlier of (i) the date the participant is no fonger an eligible director, or (ii) immediately
prior to a “change in the ownership of the corporation”. Prior to payment of vested shares, the restricted stock units
are unsecured obligations of the Company. USA Mobility used the fair-value based method of accounting for the
award. As the restricied stock units are fully vested on the date of grant and relate 10 service performed during 2006,
the Company recognized the expense of $0.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2006.

Holders of restricted stock units are entitled to additional restricted stock units for cash distributions declared
on the Company’s common stock. The additional restricted stock units will be based upon the closing price per
share of the Company’s commen stock on the declaration date of the cash distribution. During 2006, an additional
878 restricted stock units were granted to the non-executive Directors for cash distributions declared.

Common Stock — In lieu of cash payments of $20,000 for directors’ fees earned from April 1, 2006 through
September 30, 2006. one director elected to receive a total of 1,039 unrestricted shares of the Company’s common
stock during August and October 2006, based upon the fair market value of a share of common stock at the date of
issuance. A total of 447 shares will be issued in January 2007 for fees of $10,000 earned through December 31,
2006.

In lieu of cash payments of $159,600 for directors’ fees earned from the date of the merger on November 16,
2004, through March 31, 2006, two directors elected to receive a total of 5,440 unrestricted shares of the Company’s
common stock during June, August and October 2005, and January and April 2006, based upon the fair market
value of a share of common stock at the date of issuance.

6. Income Taxes

USA Mobility accounts for income taxes under the liability method of SFAS No. 109. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and the tax bases of
assets and liabilities, given the provisions of enacted laws. The Company provides a valuation allowance against
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deferred income tax assets if, based on available evidence, it is more likely than not that the deferred income tax
assets will not be realized.

A summary of USA Mobility’s net deferred income tax asset at December 31, 2005 and 2006 were as follows
(in thousands):

2005 2006

Deferred 1ax as5818 . . ..ottt e e $226,045 3199400
Deferred tax Habilities . . . ... ... . . e e — —

226,045 199,400
Valuation allowance . ........... .. ... ... . . . ... — (757)
$226,045  $198,643

The approximate effect of each type of temporary difference and carry forward at December 31, 2005 and 2006
is summarized as follows (in thousands):

2005 2006
Net operating 10sses . ... ... e 542337 $ 44413
Intangibles and other assets . ... ........ ... ... . ... ... .. .. ... ... 142,177 123,619
Property and equipment. . . . ... ... ... . .. ... . 16,049 12,760
Contributions CAITYOVET . . . . .. ..ot e e 2,320 757
Accruals and accrued loss contingencies .. ......... ... ... 23,162 17.851
226,045 199,400
Valuation allowance — chantable contributions . ... .................. —— (757}

$226,045 $198,643

At December 31, 2006, the Company had unused net operating loss carryforwards for federal income tax
purposes of approximately $115.9 million, and a similar amount for State purposes, which will expire in various
amounts through 2026. The Company’s ability to use net operating losses may be subject to additional limitations
pursuant to the ownership change rules of the Internal Revenue Code Section 382.

SFAS No. 109 requires USA Mobility to evaluate the recoverability of its deferred income tax assets on an
ongeing basis. The assessment is required to determine whether based on all available evidence, it is more likely
than not that all of USA Mobility’s net deferred income tax assets will be realized in future periods. Upon
emergence from bankruptcy on May 29, 2002, Arch had not generated income before tax expense for any prior year,
projections indicated losses before tax expense for early future periods and Arch had just reorganized under
Chapter 11. Since significant positive evidence of realizability did not then exist, a valuation allowance was
established against the net deferred income tax assets at that time.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2003, Arch management determined the available positive evidence
carried more weight than the historical negative evidence and concluded it was more likely than not that the net
deferred income tax assets would be realized in future periods. Therefore, the $207.6 million valuation allowance
was released in the quarter ended December 31, 2003. The positive evidence management considered included
operating income and cash flows for 2002 and 2003, Arch’s repayment of debt well ahead of scheduled maturities
and anticipated operating income and cash flows for future periods in sufficient amounts to utilize the net deferred
income tax assets.

Under the provisions of SFAS No. 109, reductions in a deferred income tax asset valuation allowance that
existed at the date of fresh start accounting are first credited against an asset established for reorganization value in
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excess of amounts allocable to identifiable assets, then to other identifiable intangible assets existing at the date of
fresh start accounting and then, once these assets have been reduced to zero, credited directly to additional paid in
capital, The release of the valuation allowance described above reduced the carrying value of intangible assets by
$2.3 million and $13.4 million for the seven month period ended December 31, 2002 and the year ended
December 31, 2003, respectively, and the remaining reduction of the valvation allowance of $195.9 million
was recorded as an increase to stockholders’ equity.

In accordance with provisions of the IRC, Arch was required to apply the cancellation of debt rules arising in
conjunction with the provisions of its plan of reorganization against tax attributes existing as of December 31, 2002.
The tax law regarding the method utilized to allocate the cancellation of debt income is subject to varied
interpretations and differences may have a material effect on the future tax position of USA Mobility. As a result of
the method used to allocate cancellation of debt income for financial reporting purposes as of December 31, 2002,
Arch had no net operating losses remaining and the tax bases of certain other tax assets were reduced. In August
2003, the Treasury issued new regulations regarding the allocation of cancellation of debt income. Arch evaluated
these regulations and determined that an alternative methed of allocation was more applicable to the facts than the
method utilized at December 31, 2002. This method resulted in approximarely $19.0 million of additional deferred
income tax assets and stockholders’ equity being recognized in 2003 than would have been recognized using the
atlocation method applied for financial reporting purposes as of December 31, 2002. Had this revised method been
utilized at December 31, 2002, the only effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements would have been
to the gross amounts because Arch had a full valuation allowance in place at that time.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company evaluated the recoverability of its deferred income tax
assets. The Company determined that {1} the results for the year ended December 31, 2006, were consistent with
management’s previous assessment increased by the additional incremental income from the Metrocall operations
and (2) the anticipated future results of operations indicate that the Company will continue to generate pre-tax book
income, The results of this assessment continue to indicate that no valuation allowance against the deferred income
tax assets is required, except for the valuation allowance against the deferred income tax asset related to the
charitable contributions carry-forward which will likely expire.

The significant components of USA Mobility’s income tax expense attributable to current operations for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2006 were as follows (in thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31,

2004 2005 2006

Current Income Tax Expense:

Federal .. ... .. .. . . $(1.002) $ 2,157  $13.000

I 2 (188) 854 2215

Foreign . ... ..o e 234 105 148
Total Current Income Tax Expense. .. .. ... ... oo, $ (W56) 3 3,116 3157363
Deferred Income Tax Expense:

Federal ... .. ... i e S11,146  $ 5055 $12,200

1] 72 1 6,020 2,406 3,997
Total Deferred Income Tax Expense. . .............. ... .... $17.766  $ 7461  $16,197
Total Income Tax Expense $16,810  $10,577  $31,560

Additional expense related to tangible and intangible assets with a greater tax basis in comparison to their
financial statements basis represents the principal reduction to financial statement income in arriving at taxable
income for current federal and state income tax expense purposes.
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The following is a reconciliation of the United States federal statutory rate of 35% to the Company’s expected
applicable tax rate for each of the periods indicated:

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2004 2005 2006

Federal income tax at statutory rate . ............. ... ... 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Increase (decrease) in tuxes resulting from: )
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit. .. .................. ... 40% 38% 38%
State law changes. . .. ... ... L e 17.0% 62% 27%
Change in valuation allowance .. ......... ... .. ... .. ... . ......... 0.0% 00% 1.1%
Other . . e e e 20% 00% _14%
Effective tax rate . . .. ... . e 58.0% 450% 44.0%

7. Settlement Agreements

During the three months ended March 31, 2005, the Company reached a settlement agreement with a vendor
for roaming credits held by USA Mobility and recorded a $1.5 million reduction to service, rental and maintenance
expenses for this cash consideration. The Company will also use additional benefits of $0.5 million over the next
58 months as USA Mobility customers incur roaming charges on the vendor’s network,

On November 10, 2004, three former Arch senior executives (the “Former Executives™) filed a Notice of Claim
before the JAMS/Endispute arbitration forum in Boston, Massachusetts asserting they were terminated from their
employment by Arch pursuant to a “change in control” as defined in their respective executive employment
agreements (the “Claims™). On May 9. 2005, the Former Executives agreed to dismiss the Claims with prejudice
against all parties in exchange for a settlement payment of $4.3 million, and a previously agreed mitigation payment
equal to nine months of base salary. This mitigation payment may be reduced based on income received from future
employment. The Company recorded this $4.3 million settlement and $0.9 million mitigation payment as an
increase 10 severance expenses for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 respectively.

8. Commitments and Contingencies

In November 2004, USA Mobility entered into a contract under which the Company is committed to purchase
$10.0 million in telecommunication services over a two-year period ending in October 2006.

In August 2005, the Company, through a subsidiary, entered into a Master Antenna Site Lease agreement (the
“Master Leases™) with a subsidiary of Global Signal, Inc. (“Global Signal”) under which the Company and/or its
affiliates may lease space for their equipment on communications sites currently and subsequently owned, managed
or leased by Global Signal. In January 2007, Global Signal merged with Crown Castle International Corp. The new
Master Leases were effective as of July 1, 2005 and expire on December 31, 2008. Under the Master Leases, the
Company may locate up to a specified maximum number of transmitters on Global Signal’s sites for a fixed monthly
fee. The fixed monthly fee decreases periodically over time from approximately $1.6 million in July 2005 to
approximately $1.0 million per month in 2008.

In January 2006. USA Mobility entered into a new Master Lease Agreement (“MLA™) with American Tower
Corporation (“ATC”). Under the new MLA, USA Mobility will pay ATC a fixed monthly amount in exchange for
the rights to a fixed number of transmitter equivalents (as defined in the MILA) on transmission towers in the
ATC portfolio of properties. The new MLA was effective Janvary 1, 2006 and expires on December 31, 2010. The
fixed monthly fee decreases periodically over time from $1.5 millton per month in January 2006 to $0.9 million per
month in 2010.
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In September 2006, USA Mobility renegotiated an existing contract with a vendor under which the Company is
committed to purchase $24.0 million in telecommunication services through September 2008.

In January 2007, USA Mobility entered into a contract under which the Company is committed to deconstruct
2,000 transmitters over a two-year period ending in December 2008 at a cost of approximately 31,700 per site
including shipping and handling costs.

USA Mobility has various Letters of Credit (“LOCs") outstanding with multiple state agencies. The LOCs
typically have three-year contract requirements but are renewed annually. The deposits related to these LOCs are
classified within Other Assets on the balance sheet,

USA Mobility, from time to time, is involved in iawsuits arising in the normal course of business.
USA Mobility believes that its pending lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on its reported results
of operations, cash flows or financial position.

USA Mobility was named as defendant in a breach of contract suit filed in the U.S. District Court for the
Northern District of Texas (Ad Valorem Services Company v. USA Mobility, Inc., No. 4-06CV-742-Y), alleging that
the Company owes a property tax filing services firm monetary damages of up to $3.3 millien in addition to amounts
already paid by the Company to the firm under the contract. The Company was served with the complaint in this
action on October 26, 2006 and filed its answer to the complaint on December 5, 2006, denying all of the Ad
Valorem’s allegations. The parties have exchanged initial disclosures under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 26, but
the court has not yet entered a scheduling order, and no discovery has taken place. In the Company’s view, this suit is
without merit and will have no material effect on the Company’s financial results or operations.

On August 2, 2006, Nationwide Paging, Inc. (“Nationwide”) filed a two-count civil action in Massachusetts
Superior Court against defendants USA Mobility, Inc., Arch Wireless Inc., Arch Operating Company, Inc., and
Paging Network, Inc. (collectively “Arch”) titled Nationwide Paging, Inc. v. Arch Wireless, Inc. and Paging
Network, Inc. MICV2006-02734, Middlesex County Superior Court, Massachusetts (the “2006 Superior Court
Case”). Nationwide alleged that, in 2000 and 2001, Arch breached its contract with Nationwide by supplying
defective pagers and by over billing Nationwide for paging services. In addition, Nationwide alleged that Arch
breached the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing and destroyed or injured Nationwide’s right to receive
the fruits of its contract with Arch. Nationwide’s complaint alleges damages in the amount of $6.9 million.

Nationwide served the 2006 Superior Court Case on USA Mobility on October 27, 2006. The Company denies
liability to Nationwide and intends to vigorously defend the allegations of the complaint.

There are two related cases that are outstanding, Nationwide Paging, Inc. v. Arch Wireless, Inc. and Paging
Nerwork, Inc., MICV2002-02329, Middlesex County Superior Court, Massachusetts (the “2002 Superior Courn
Case™) and In re Arch Wireless, Inc., U.S. Bankruptcy Court, District of Massachusetts, Western Division,
Chapter 11, Case No. 01-47330-HIB (the “Arch Bankruptcy Case”). The 2002 Superior Court Case has been
stayed due to Nationwide’s filing in October 2005 of a veluntary Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceeding. The Arch
Bankruptcy Case involves Arch’s motion for contempt against Nationwide and alleges that Nationwide’s claims in
the 2002 Superior Court Case are barred by the discharge injunction in the Arch Bankruptcy Case. The bankruptcy
court denied that motion on QOctober 13, 2005. The Company appealed that decision. The U.S. District Court
affirmed the decision of the bankruptcy court on February 20, 2007.

USA Mobility awaits the written opinion of the district court and will determine whether to pursue a further
appeal. If it chooses not to pursue an appeal of the decision of the district court affirming the bankruptcy court’s
denial of Arch's motion for contempt against Nationwide, or it pursues an appeal of the district court’s decision but
does not prevail on the appeal, and in either event the stay is lifted, then USA Mobility intends to defend the 2006
Superior Court Case, and also to defend the claims by Nationwide in the 2002 Superior Court Case. Further, if the
stay is lifted, Arch intends to prosecute vigorously its counterclaims against Nationwide. In the Company’s view
these suits are without merit and will have no material effect on the Company’s financial results or operations.
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Operating Leases — USA Mobility has operating leases for office and transmitter locations. Substantially all

of these leases have lease terms ranging from one month to five years, USA Maobility is rationalizing its office and
transmitter locations, and intends to replace, reduce or consolidate leases, where possible.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases at December 31, 2006 were as follows
{in thousands):

Year Ending December 31,

. 3 49,4067
0 36,452
2009 . 17,655
7 13,527
711 0 1,753
Thereafter . ... . e e 028

4 ) $119,782

These leases typically include renewal options and escalation clauses. Where material, the Company
recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease period. The difference between rent expense and
rent paid is recorded as prepaid rent and is included in either prepaid expenses and other or in other assets in the
consolidated balance sheets.

Total rent expense under operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, approx-
imated $102.8 million, $145.7 million and $110.9 miilion respectively.

As aresult of various decisions by the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”), over the last few years,
USA Mobility no longer pays fees for the termination of traffic originating on the networks of local exchange
carriers providing wireline services interconnected with the Company’s services. In some instances, USA Mobility
received refunds for prior payments to certain local exchange carriers. USA Mobility had entered into a number of
interconnection agreements with local exchange carriers in order to resolve various issues regarding charges
imposed by local exchange carriers for interconnection. USA Mobility may be liable to local exchange carriers for
the costs associated with delivering traffic that does not originate on that local exchange carrier’s network, referred
to as transit traffic, resulting in some increased interconnection costs for the Company, depending on further
FCC disposition of these issues and the agreements reached between USA Mobility and the local exchange carriers.
If these issues are not ultimately decided through settiement negotiations or via the FCC in USA Mobility’s favor,
the Company may be required to pay past due contested transit traffic charges not addressed by existing agreements
or offset against payments due from local exchange carriers, and USA Mobility may also be assessed interest and
late charges for amounts withheld. Although these requirements have not, 1o date, had a material adverse effect on
USA Mobility’s operating results, these or similar requirements could, in the future, have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s operating results.

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries, permitted under Delaware law, have entered into indemnification
agreements with several persons, including each of its present directors and certain members of management, for
certain events or occurrences while the director or member of management is, or was serving, at its request in such
capacity. The maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under these
indemnification agreements is unlimited; however, the Company has a director and officer insurance policy that
limits its exposure and enables it to recover a portion of any future amounts paid under the terms of the policy. Asa
result of USA Mobility’s insurance policy coverage, USA Mobility believes the estimated fair value of these
indemnification agreements is immaterial. Therefore the Company has not recorded a liability for these agreements
as of December 31, 2004 and 2005.
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Other Commitments — On February i1, 2004, Metrocall’'s wholly owned subsidiary, Metrocall Ventures
(“Ventures”), entered into an agreement with Glenayre Electronics, Inc., a subsidiary of Glenayre Technologies,
Inc. to form Global Technical Engineering Solutions, LLC (*GTES”). GTES offers product sales, maintenance
services, software development and product development to the wireless industry as an authorized licensee of
paging infrastructure technology owned by Glenayre Electronics, Inc. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement,
Ventures contributed cash of $2.0 million in exchange for a 51% fully diluted ownership interest in GTES.
USA Mobility has a commitment to fund annual cash flow deficits, if any, of GTES of up to $1.5 million during the
initial three-year peried following the investment date. Funds may be provided by Ventures to GTES in the form of
capital contributions or loans. No funding has been required through December 31, 2006. The commitment period
expires on February 10, 2007.

9. Employee Benefit Plans
Arch Long-term Incentive Plan

In June 2003, Arch’s Board of Directors approved a long-term incentive plan to retain and attract key members
of management and to align their interests with those of Arch’s stockholders. Payments under this plan were based
on the annual management incentive payment for 2003, which was paid by Arch in the first quarter of 2004. At that
time, the amount of the annual incentive payment amount was also converted into a number of units, derived based
on the average price of Arch’s common stock for ten days prior to the annual incentive payment. Payment under the
long-term incentive plan will occur on the second anniversary following the 2003 annual incentive payment. As part
of the merger USA Mobility assumed the obligations of this plan. The amount of the payment will be determined by
multiplying the number of units for each participant by the average price of USA Mobility’s common stock at that
point in time. Therefore, the liability associated with the long-term incentive plan will fluctuate in each reporting
period based on the price of USA Mobility’s common stock in each reporting period. Each participant’s units vest as
follows: }/3 upon the 2003 annual incentive payment date and 1/3 on each subsequent anniversary. The plan
includes provisions that require payment prior to the second anniversary following the 2003 annual incentive
payment under certain circumstances, such as the involuntary termination of a participant without cause or a change
in control of Arch. At December 31, 2003, current liabilities included $1.7 million associated with this plan. This
amount was paid out to participants in March 2006.

Arch Retirement Savings Plans

Arch has had multiple retirement savings plans resulting from prior acquisitions, qualifying under
Section 401(k) of the IRC covering eligible employees, as defined. During 2002, Arch completed the consolidation
of these plans into one plan, the Arch Retirement Savings Plan. Under the plan, a participant may elect to defer
receipt of a stated percentage of the compensation which would otherwise be payable to the participant for any plan
year (the deferred amount) provided, however, that the deferred amount shall not exceed the maximum amount
permitted under Section 401 (k) of the IRC. Each of the current and former plans provide for employer matching
contributions. Aggregate matching contributions for the year ended December 31, 2004 were approximately
$0.8 million. Effective January 1, 2005, the Arch Retirement Savings Plan was merged into the Metrocall, Inc.
Savings and Retirement Plan that was subsequently renamed the USA Mobility, Inc. Savings and Retirement Plan.

Metrocall, Inc. Savings and Retirement Plan

The Metrocall, Inc. Savings and Retirement Plan (the “Savings Plan™), a combination employee savings plan
and discretionary profit-sharing plan, is open to all Metrocall employees working a minimum of twenty hours per
week with at least thirty days of service. The Savings Plan qualifies under section 401(k) of the IRC. Under the
Savings Plan, participating employees may elect to voluntarily contribute on a pretax basis between 1% and 100%
of their compensation up to the annual maximum established by the IRC. For highly-compensated employees (as
defined by the IRC) the Company establishes annual contribution limits. For 2006, this limit was $9,000. Metrocall
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has agreed to match 50% of the employee’s contribution, up to 4% of each participant’s gross salary. Contributions
made by the Company become fully vested three years from the date of the participant’s employment (33% in year
one, 66% in year two and 100% in year three). For purposes of vesting, a year consists of 1,000 hours of service or
more, Other than the Company’s matching obligations, discussed above, profit sharing contributions are discre-
tionary. Matching contributions under the Savings Plan were approximately $122,000 for the period November 16
to December 31, 2004, On January 1, 2005, the Metrocall. Inc. Savings and Retirement Plan was renamed USA
Mobility, Inc. Savings and Retirement Plan. Matching contributions under the Savings Plan were approximately
$1.3 million and $0.9 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005 and 2006 respectively.

USA Mobility, Inc. Severance Pay Plan

The USA Mobility, Inc. Severance Pay Plan for salaried employees, hourly employees and commissioned
direct-sales employees (the “Severance Plan™) provides severance payments on a discretionary basis to certain
employees who are terminated involuntarily under specified circumstances as defined in the Severance Plan. The
amount of the benefit to be provided is based on the employee’s compensation and years of service with
USA Mobility, as defined. Eligible terminated employees will receive two weeks of compensation for each year
of service, up to a maximum of six months of compensation with a minimum compensation of two weeks. The
Company maintains a substantially similar type of plan for executive employees above the level of vice-president.
As of December 31, 2006, current liabilities included $2.7 million associated with these plans.

10. Stock Based Compensation

Compensation expense associated with options and restricted stock was recognized in accordance with the fair
value provisions of SFAS No. 123R, over the instruments’ vesting period. The following table reflects the expense
items that include the $4.9 million, $2.8 million and $2.7 million of stock based compensation for the year ended
December 31, 2004, 20035 and 2006, respectively (in thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31,

2004 2005 2006
Service, rental and maintenance eXpense . .. ... ...t $ 370 $ 260 $ 320
Selling and marketing expense. .. ....... .. ... . o .. 32 226 570
General and administrative expense . . .. ... ... .. . i e 4,461 2,346 1,838
Total stock based compensation. .. ...... ... .. .. . i ... $4.863  $2,832  $2,728

11. Accrued Liabilities
Severance and Restructuring

Severance cost charges in 2006 primarily relate to the staff reductions as the Company continues to match its
employee levels with operational requirements.

In the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005, USA Mobility recorded severance and restructuring costs of
$11.9 and $16.6 million, respectively, related to a prior reorganization plan and certain lease agreements for
transmitter locations.

During the second quarter 2005, the Company announced a reorganization plan to adjust its management
structure and consolidate three sales divisions of five regions into two sales divisions of six regions. This plan was
subsequently adjusted to reflect one national sales organization consisting of eleven regions. Under this plan. and in
an effort to continue to integrate operations of Arch and Metrocall, the Company planned to eliminate more than
400 additional positions through the end of 2005. During 2006, the Company continued eliminating positions as
part.of its on-going cost reduction exercise. As of December 31, 2006, the Company had 1,235 employees, a
reduction of 1,609 employees from the date of the merger. As of December 31, 2006, the Company has $2.7 million
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accrued for post-employment benefits, including severance and health benefits, for the employees that were or will
be terminated.

In addition, a $4.3 mitlion settlement agreement with three former Arch executives was paid during the second
quarter of 2005 (see Note 7).

At December 31, 2006, the balance of the restructuring liabilities was as follows (dollars in thousands):

Remaining
Balance at Liability at
December 31, Charge in December 31,
2005 2006 Cash Paid 2006
Lease obligation costs . .................. $§ — $ 423 $ (423 3 —
Severance costs . ... ... ... .. ..., 1,856 4,163 (3,275) 2,744
Total ... $1,856 $4.586 $(3,698) $2,744

The balance of this accrued liability will be paid during 2007.

At December 31, 2003, the balance of the restructuring liabilities was as follows (dollars in thousands):

Remaining
Balance at Liability at
December 31, Charges in December 31,
004 2005 Reclassifications Cash Paid 2005

Lease obligation costs. ... .. $ 3,463 $ 1,092 $§ — $ (4,559 $ —
Severance costs .......... 12,778 11,217 1,994 (24,133) 1,856
Litigation settlement costs. . . — 4.300 —_ (4,300) —_
Total. ................ $16,241 $16,609 $1,994 $(32,988) $1,856

Reclassifications represent reclassification of accrued liabilities for vacation and long-term incentives to be
paid to terminated employees. The balance of this accrued liability was paid during 2006.

Current Liabilities — Accrued Other

The components of this balance are as follows:

December 31,

2005 2006
(Dollars in thousands)
Accrued ouLSIde SEIVICES . . . 0 v i vttt e $ 2816 § 3,980
Accrued OET . . . ... ... .. 3536 3780
Asset retirement obligation —current . . ... ... oL 3.608 4,569
Escheat liability —current .. .. ... ... ... ... 2,088 280
Total Accrued Other . ... .. e $12,048  $12.609
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12. Other Long-Term Liabilities

Other long-term. liabilities consist of the following (dollars in thousands):

December 31,

2005 2006
INCOME LAXES o o v e e e e et et e e e e e e e et e e e $ 3,769 §$17,723
Asset retirement obligation —long term ... ... ... . ... 9,924 8,955
Escheat liability — long term . ............. e — 625
Distributions payable . .. ... .. .. — 466
Other long-term liabilities . .. ... ... ... ... ... ...... . 347 1,615
Total other long-term liabilities . . ... ....... ... .. .. i, $14,040  $29.384

13. Related Party Transactions

Effective November 16, 2004, two members of the Company’s Board of Directors also serve as directors for
entities that lease transmission tower sites to the Company. During the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006,
the Company paid $23.6 million and $10.2 million, and $17.2 million and $18.4 million, respectively, to these two
landlords for rent expenses that are included in service, rental and maintenance expense. Each director has recused
himself from any discussion or decisions by the Company on matters refating to the respective vendor for which he
serves as a director.

14. Segment Reporting

USA Mobility believes it currently has two operating segments: domestic operations and international
operations, but no reportable segments, as international operations are immaterial to the consolidated entity.
15. Quarterly Financial Results (Unaudited)

Quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006 is summarized below (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Year Ended December 31, 2006:
Revenues . ........... 0. $134,892  $127,205 $119,553  $116,044
Operating inCome . . .. ..........ovimirne. . 19,849 18,720 14,914 13,590
Net INCOME . . . ottt et e e e e et 12,265 10,952 8,659 8,305
Basic net income per common share . .......... 0.45 0.40 0.32 0.30
Diluted net income per common share. . ... ... .. 0.45 0.40 0.31 0.30
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Year Ended December 31, 2005:
REVENUES . . .o ot e $165,677 $157,537  $151,954  $143,404
Operating income (loss} . ................... 2,099 (2,868) 12,731 15,187
Netincome (loss) . ........ .. 0.t 137 (3.811) 8,727 7.854
Basic net income (loss) per common share. . .. ... 0.01 (C.14) 0.32 0.29
Diluted net income (loss) per common share .. . .. 0.01 (0.14) 0.32 0.29



USA MOBILITY, INC.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ended December 2004, 2005 and 2006
{In thousands)

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts,

SCHEDULE 11

Balance at End

Service Credits and Other Balance at Beginning of Period Charged to Operations Write-offs Other(1) Period
Year ended December 31,

2004 .. ... ..l $8.645 $13.061 $(19,598) 36,185 $8,293
Year ended December 31,

2005. . ... L. $8,293 $25.411 5(26,752) $§ — $6,952
Year ended December 31,

2006, .. ... ... ... $6,952 $17,204 $(15574) $ — $8,582

(1} Fair value of balance acquired from Metrocall.
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Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 29, 2004, as amended, by and among Wizards-Patriots
Holdings, Inc., Wizards Acquiring Sub, Inc., Metrocall Holdings, Inc., Patriots Acquiring Sub, Inc. and
Arch Wireless, Inc. (incorporated by reference as part of Annex A to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus
forming part of Amendment No. 3 to USA Mobility’s Registration Statement)(1} -

Amendment No. | to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of October 5, 2004 (incorporated by
reference as part of Annex B to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus forming part of Amendment No. 3 to
USA Mobility’s Registration Statement)(1}

Amendment No. 2 1o the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of November 15, 2004(2)

Asset Purchase Agreement among WebLink Wireless I, L.P., WebLink Wireless, Inc. and Metrocall, Inc.
and Metrocall Holdings, Inc. dated as of November 18, 2003(3)

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation(2)
Amended and Restated By-Laws(2)
Specimen of common stock certificate, par value $0.0001 per share(l)

Registration Right Agreement, dated as of November 18, 2003, by and between Metrocall Holdings, Inc.
and WebLink Wireless I, L.P.(4)

Credit Agreement, Dated as of November 16, 2004, among Metrocall, Inc., Arch Wireless Operating
Company, Inc.. USA Mobility, Inc., the other guarantors party thereto, the lenders party thereto, UBS
Securities LLC, as arranger, documentation agent and syndication agent, and UBS AG, Stamford Branch,
as administrative agent and collateral agent(2)

Form of Indemnification Agreement for directors and executive officers of USA Mobility, Inc.(2)

Employment Agreement, dated as of November 15, 2004, between USA Mobility, Inc. and Vincent D.
Kelly(2)

Amendment No. | to the Credit Agreement(7)

Offer Letter, dated as of November 30, 2004, between USA Mobility, Inc. and Thomas L. Schilling(7)
Metrocall Holdings, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plan(5)

Arch Wireless, Inc. 2002 Stock Incentive Plan(3)

Arch Wireless Holdings, Inc. Severance Benefits Plan(6)

USA Mobility, Inc. Equity Incentive Plan{7)

Offer Letter, dated as of May 6, 2005, between USA Mobility, Inc. and Scott B. Tollefsen(8)
Offer Letter, dated as of December 14, 2005, between USA Mobility, Inc. and Mark Garzone(12)
USA Mobility, Inc. Long-term Cash Incentive Plan(10)

t'orm of Award Agreement for the Long-term Cash [ncentive Plan(10)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for the Equity Incentive Plan(10)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for the Equity Incentive Plan(10)

USA Mobility, Inc. 2006 Senior Management Bonus Plan(10)

Letter from Ernst & Young LLP regarding change in certifying accountant(9)

Letter from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP regarding change in certifying accountant(11)
Subsidiaries of USA Mobility(7)

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP(13)

Consent of Grant Thornton LLP(13)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant 1o Rule 13a-14{a)/Rule 15d-14(a} of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, dated March 15, 2007(13)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant 10 Rule 13a-14(a)/Rule 15d-14(a} of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. dated March 15, 2007(13)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 dated March 15, 2007(13)
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursvant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 dated March 13, 2007(13)

(1) Incorporated by reference to USA Mobility’s Registration Statement on Form $-4/A filed on October 6, 2004.
(2) Incorporated by reference to USA Mobility’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 17, 2004,




(3) Incorporated by reference to Metrocall’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 21, 2003.
{4) Incorporated by reference to Metrocall’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on December 18, 2003.

{5) Incorporated by reference to USA Mobility’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on November 23,
2004.

(6) Incorporated by reference to Arch’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.
{7) Incorporated by reference to USA Mobility’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2004.
{8) Incorporated by reference to USA Mobility’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-3 for the quarter ended June 30,
2005.
{9) Incorporated by reference to USA Mobility's Current Report on Form §-K filed on November 22, 2004.
(10) Incorporated by reference to USA Mobility’s Current Report on Form §-K filed on August 2, 2006.
(11} Incorporated by reference to USA Mobility’s Amended Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed on June 26, 2006.

(12) Incorporated by reference to USA Mobility’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2005.

(13) Filed herewith,
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